UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS

EASTERN DIVISION
)
LAWRENCE E. JAFFE PENSION PLAN, ON )
BEHALF OF ITSELF AND ALL OTHERS SIMILARLY )
SITUATED,, ) Lead Case. No. 02-C5893
) (Consolidated)
Plaintiff, )
)  CLASS ACTION
- against - )
) Judge Ronald A. Guzman
HOUSEHOLD INTERNATIONAL, INC.,ET. AL., ) _
)
Defendants. )
)

DECLARATION OF DAVID R. OWEN IN SUPPORT OF
THE HOUSEHOLD DEFENDANTS' DAUBERT MOTION TO
EXCLUDE THE "EXPERT" TESTIMONY OF CATHERINE
A. GHIGLIERI, CHARLES CROSS AND HARRIS L. DEVOR

STATE OF NEW YORK )
:SS.:
COUNTY OF NEW YORK )

DAVID R. OWEN, declares as follows:

1. I am a member of the bar of the State of New York and a member of the firm Ca-
hill Gordon & Reindel LLP, attorneys for defendants Household International, Inc., William F.
Aldinger, David A. Schoenholz, and Gary Gilmer, Defendants in this action. I have been admit-
ted to appear before this Court pro hac vice. 1 submit this declaration to place before the Court
certain information and documents referenced in Defendants’ Daubert Motion to Exclude the

“Expert” Testimony of Catherine A. Ghiglieri, Charles Cross and Harris L. Devor.



2. Attached hereto as Exhibit 1 is a true and correct copy of the Transcript of the
Deposition of Charles Cross, dated December 19, 2002 from Luna v. Household Finance Corpo-

ration, No. C02-1635 (W.D. Wash).

3. Attached hereto as Exhibit 2 is a true and correct copy of the Transcript of the

Deposition of Charles Cross, dated April 9, 2008.

4. Attached hereto as Exhibit 3 is a true and correct copy of the Washington De-
partment of Financial Institution’s Expanded Report of Examination for Household Finance
Corporation III, dated April 30, 2002.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of New York that the forego-

ing is true and correct.

Executed this 30th day of January, 2009, in New York, New York.

OO

David R. Owen
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| UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
o2 FOR THE WESTERN DISTRICT OF WASHINGTON

JOSEPH LUNA and JEANIE LUNA,

4 husband and wife; CARL BENNETT
and BRENDA BENNETT, husband and

5 wife; DAVID J. MURPHY and
GENEVEVE L. MURPHY, husband and

& wife; NEIL NELSON and ELSIE L.
NELSON, husband and wife; BRYAN

7 THOMSON and JEANNETTE THOMSON,
husband and wife; and DANIEL

8 JAMES and MAZIE JAMES, husband and
wife, on behalf of themselves and

e r e e e mam e et e e e e e

9 all others similarly situated,
10 Plaintiffs, }
11 vS. NO. C02-1635

iz HOUSEHOLD FINANCE CORPORATION,
111, a foreign corporation doing

13 business in the State of
Washington; and HOUSEHOLD REALTY

14 CORPORATION, a foreign corpcration
doing business in the State of

15 Washington; BENEFICIAL MORTGAGE
CORPORATION, a Delaware

16 corporation, and other related
entities and subsidiaries,

e et et e e man mer e e e e e

17
Defendants. }
18 .
19 DEPOSITION UPON ORAL EXAMINATION OF CHARLES L., CROSS 111
(VOLUME ONE - Pages 1-220)
20
21
22
23 December 1%, 2002
24 Olympia, Washington
25

Dixie Cattell & Associates {3603 352-2506
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Page 2 Page ¢
! APPEARANCES: 1 BE IT REMEMBERED that on Thursday. December 19,
ool 2 FOR THE PLAINTIFES: MR. ROBERT L. PARLETTE 2 2002. 21 9:10 a.m. a1 210 11th Avenue, Room 300, Olympia,
. . 3 ashinpton, before . ot: ic in an
) ; gﬁrv\i'suﬁi%sﬂg FIRM, LLP 3 Washington, before REBECCA $. LINDAUER, Notary Public in and
- P.O. Box 2]%16 4 Ior the State of Washington. appearcd CHARLES L. CROSS 1L,
4 Wenaichee, WA 98801 5 the witness herein:
3 MS. LOR! K. RATH 6 WHEREUPON. the following procecdings were had. to
RIDDELL WILLIAMS .S, 3 wit
& 1001 Fourth Avenue ’
Suite 3500 8
7 Seante, WA 98154-1065 9 (Ms. Rath not present.)
8 FOR THE DEFENDANTS: MR. DANIEL 1. DUNNE. JR. 10
HELLER EHRMAN .
9 701 Fifth Avenus 11 CHARLES L. CROSS 111 hav:ng been first duly sworn
Suite 6100 by the Notary. testified as
10 Scanle, WA 98104-7098 12 tollows:
] MR. ANDREW BUDISH 13 EXAMINATION
HOUSEHOLD IN-HOUSE COUNSEL 2 )
12 2700 Sanders Road 14 BY MR PARLETTE:
Prospect Heights. 1L 60090 15 Q@ Mr Cruss. vou're here under 2 subpoena. are you noi. sir?
13 6 A lam,
:i 17 0 And in that subpoena 1 had requesied certain documentation
Ié 18 from you and the Depariment of Financial Insututions. and
17 19 my recoliection is that you had called my office and Iefi a
I8 20 message thal you could not process certain materals because
_'Jg 21 there was A femporary restraining order in place apaingst the
5] 22 Department brought by Househotd Finance?
22 23 A Comeut
334 21 Can vou tell me what materials you cannot produce?
35 25 A hovwaould be easier Tor me 1o 1ell sou what | can preduce
] Page 3 Pape 3
o INDIX I Q Ok
2 rkarlﬁtéﬁ? _:’AGIE LINE 1 A Theonls thines I'm allowed to produce for you right now are
3 MR PA d - 4 3 - . ) . ) , . . .
MR DUNNE 189 23 3 m.c L\ammunm? r%pon produced by the Department in April
4 4 of 2002 and a fisung of complunts that vou had requested.
3 3 Q) Ohkay  And how leng will this lemporary restraining order be
?’ 0 n place”
8 EXHIBITS 7 A !havenoidea o
9 EXNIBY DESCRIPTION PAGE LINLE & Andcanyou el me what jurisdichon that's in?
i0 A State of Washinglon, opent complaims 3 23 9 A Ies wn Thurston Count.
0 in date range-alpha. 35 pps 10 ¢ Thurston County. Offhand. you don't remember a cause number
B DF1 expanded repont on examination for 23 7 1 or amthing fike that?
12 Household Finance Corporanion 1. 12 A [ never even went 10 courl, 1Us not much an issug Tor me.
73 pes. 15 Q Okay  And you have brought with you a document which is
13 ; neanti : Sinls .
¢ Washingion Depanmen of Financial 65 16 I-f enbitled or Lnf.npnoned at the top Open Complaints andd Date
i4 tnstitutioss expanded report of i3 Range-Alpha?
examination for Househoid Finance 16 A Correct,
15 Corporaucn 11, 73 pes. 17 And thal. as seolamed before the d ilion gol
16 D Leuter to Craég from Lori dated 9 4 Q . ml m‘. as "'ja“ Lkp .nnf-)- . O;L h‘: . c'_)DSI ot 1;0
$/14/01 with stachments. 18 >‘ldrlu.|. represenls Just a fisting of the case name. the
17 (Confidential); 42 pps. 9 license type. und the examiner and the date received against
‘8 20 various financial instittions?
;g 21 A Correct, Apain, these were all the open complaints we had
21 7 against all our licensees at this poing in time
22 23 Andyouve put 2 pink marker en the pages where the
3 24 complaunts apainst Bencficial start and the complaints
H <
33 23 aginst Hoosehold have staned?
\
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PARLETTE (CROSS)

Page 6 Page 8
o)A Yes 1 Q Okay, And would you eslimaie how many weeks or months the
2 MR. PARLETTE: We'll mark this as Exhibit A. 2 1otality of that training constituted, just an estimae?
3 {EXHIBIT NO. A MARKED) 3 A Let'ssee. Onaverage. 1wo 0 three weeks a year over maybe
4 MR. DUNNE: Since the markers don't get copied 4 a ten-year period of time. 1 don't anend 100 much training
5 when the court reponer copies those exhibits and 5 anymore. I'rnan instructot now for many of the
6 distributes them, do you want 10 get more specific 6 organizations that | used 10 take raining from, se | don't
7 identification? 7 know. That's a rough average.
8 MR. PARLETTE: Fhat's a good idea. 8 Q And youused to work as a federal bank examiner?
9 THE WITNESS: There are page numbers on the 9 A Tor the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.
10 bottom., 10 Q How long did you work there?
H MR. PARLETTE: The Beneficial complaints appear to 1 A For nearty three years beginning in 1986, Then |
12 srart on page 3 of 35 pages and go through page 8 abow 12 transferred 10 the state of Washingion, Division of Banks,
13 three-gquarters of the way down, and the Household complainis { 13 as a bank analyst for nearly two years. and then went into
14 appear Lo starl on page 17 and go through page 23 about 14 private industry running a Morpage company and escrow
15 halfway down. ) i3 company for a period of three ycars - that would be 1990
16 Q {(By Mr, Parlene) Okay. Now. Mr. Cross. in this deposition 16 through '93 - and then returned here to 1he Depaniment of
i7 | have the same alBhiction the court reporter referred to. 17 Financial nstitutions in November of '93 and have been here
18 1speak fast, And il 1ask vou any question which you don't 18 ever since.
19 understand or is unclear 10 you. would you slop me and ask 19 @ Okay. That takes care of a summary of vour, | guess, your
20 me 1o rephirase thal question so that 1 can be assured that 20 oceupational training. specialized oecupational training.
21 any question vou do answer is one that you've understood? 21 Could you give me a synopsis of vour work history?
22 Is that agreeabic? 22 A Since | joined the Department of Financial Institutions or
23 A Yes 23 the entire work hision”?
24 Would vou siate your name and address, ptease, for the 24 @ Eniire work history.
25 record. 25 A And | assume vou want to star alter collepe”
1
J Page 7 Page 9
I A Charles L. Cross |(1: address 15 1 Q. Box 41200, Qlympia i1 @ Yeah.
2 Washington 98304-1200. 2 A Youdon't care about the pizza joints and so forth?
3 Q  Andwhat is vour cducational background. sir? 3 Q  WhatI'm focusing on, Chuck, is your experience and
4 A My background is buchelor's degree in secounting and 4 qualifications 1o be an examiner.
3 cconomics from Western Washington University and that -- 5 A Right | began, as | said, in 1986 with the FDIC, That was
6 CACUSE e 6 as an assistant bank examiner. Responsibilities were
7 (Off-the-record interruption. ) 7 primariiy safety and soundness examinations of banks under
8 {Ms Rath new present.) ] the FDIC's jurisdiction. This, of course, was in the late
9 ¢ {By Mr. Parleuc) We'll pick up where se left off there, 9 '80s, so for a period of time that morphed into closing
10 You have u bachelor's degree 1n accounting and .. . ? 10 banks for the FDIC, primarity in Alaska, but in various
It A FEconomics. 1 places around the country. | also did a bit of compliance
12 © Economics from Westemn Washington, Okay. Anvthing ¢lse? 12 work with the FDIC, was trained in federal compliance
13 A As far as formal educanon? 13 1SSUCS.
14 Q We'll goto the formal educauon first. 14 When | moved to the state of Washington, the work was
15 A Justtrainings as a regulator. the whole skew of training. I3 primarily the same with ne compliance duties because State
16 which 1 can list seme, but | won't hst all. 16 agencies typically den't - Siate banking agencies typically
17 Q Summarize that for us. if you would, please. 17 don't deal with the compliance issues. Those are left 1o
18 A Allnght A lot of naining under some of the federal 18 the feds, so safety and soundness examiner for banking
19 agencies because 1 was 2 federal bank examiner for a period 19 instittions for the state of Washington for the period of
20 of time: a variety of irainings from apencies such as the 20 time | was there.
2] Federal Law Enforcernent Tratning Center, National White 21 When ! went in1o private industry, | was vice president
22 Collar Crimes Center, in-state frainings. and state of 22 and veneral manager of a, 1 don't know, small to midsize
23 Washington. 1don know A vanety of private trainings 3 mortgage cormpany out of Bellinghany, Washington. We had
24 not retated 1o the morngage ndusirny, you knew, vour typical 24 approximately 20 to 25 employees. | did that for a peried
) 235 career rgining throughaut your path 25 of three vears, | supervised all of the sales staff and all
||
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PARLETTE (CROSS)
Page 10 Page 12
:) 1 of the backroom staff: processors, accounting. ali that ] being in charge of compliance of state regulations?
- 2 kingd of siuff, 2 A Inmy current position, yes, since *93 forward, but not as a
3 Q Whal was the name of thal inssition? 3 state bank examiner because state bunking depastments
4 A Security Firsi Mortgage, Inc. 4 generally don't handle compliance. | can'l say that's irue
5 Q Okay. 5 for every state, but the majority of the states leave the
6 A When I rewurned to the state of Washington in ‘93, | came 6 compliance issues to the feds.
7 inte the Division of Consumer Services. There had been some 7 Q Okay. Now, your current litle is enforcement chief?
g deparimental changes. Previously Division of Banks had been 8 A Correct.
9 under General Administration. 1t was moved out from 9 @ Andwhat do you enforce?
10 underncath that and merged with three other divisions into 10 A We have jurisdiction over mongage brokers, and there's a
1 the Depaniment of Financial Institutions. And my former 11 very wide definition of mongage brokers. It essentially
12 bosses at Division of Banks becamc the heads of Departmemnt 12 includes anybody who originates a morteage loan including
13 of Financial Institutions, so they reguesied that § come %] banks, credil uniens. savings and loans. anybody who might
4 back under their emplay, so | started my current career, il i4 origmate a single-family residential mongage loan.
13 vou will, with the Deparument of Tinancial Insiitutions 13 However. under that statwie there's a varien of exemptions,
16 within the Division of Consumer Services, primarily 16 They might be defined as mongage broker, but they may be
17 regulating mortgage brokers at that fime. We had mongage 17 removed from the statute for one reason or another, Banks
18 brokers, consumer loan companies. check cashers and sekiers i3 and credit unions. for example. are completeh exempt from
19 under our jurisdiction from '93 until mid-"93. in mid-'93, 19 the siatute. Morigape bankess that would fail under Fannie
20 we 1ock on the escrow indusiry. and we ook thal over from 20 Mac and Freddie Mac would have a licensing cxemption bt
2 the Department of Licensing. 2t would still be subject 10 our authority for cenain sections
22 In the carly days, I'll say roughly ‘93 and Y4, 1 was 22 of the siatne and our erforcement autherny.
23 very much a jack-of-zll-trades | did evenything lrom 3 We also have jurisdiction over consurner loan companies,
24 licensing issues to handlisig complaints o beginning 24 which were formerly known as consumer finance companies, and
25 investigation work for the Division. We didn'really have 5 industrial loan companies. Those two were son of merged
4
4 Page 11 Page 13
1 ian investigation program st place af that tume. By "93, | ! in, | dow't know. the "80s or whalever into the consumer
2 had wransterred into almost 100 percenl imveshgalive and 2 loan companics. That licensing ype has grow r through the
3 enforcement work and pretly much worked up through the ranks 3 '00s as subprime lenders of mongage foans have feond that
4 there until my current position of enforcement chiel 4 10 he a converient license ko hold, Sewith the growth in
b | currently oversee aboul 15 atomeys and examiners 3 subprirne lending in this countny. we've seen o real growth
5} who have a variety of duties. mcluding routine examination ] in the consumer loan licensees.
7 of our licensees and enforcement work. and there's o whole 7 Today. the way the market is. consumer loan companies
g myrind of duties within that geneeal realm of examination 8 pretty much do the same activity as mongage brokers. They
9 and enforcement and [ supervise sl of it 9 hold a diflerent license, but they do preny much the same
10 Q Youmentioned tn that slerition that pant of vour duties was 10 activity, with the exception of being abke to fund high-cost
1 as & compliance officer. Compliance with what? 1 second mongages, which a morgage braker can't do. We also
12 A Federal statutes. And | don't think 1 used the 1erm 12 handle escrow agents and officers or the - thase ave the
13 compliance, although people always repeat that back 10 me 13 real estate closers in the state of Washington
t4 when | say - well, maybe 1 did, but it would be compliance td We don't handle title companies. We don't have any
13 examiner. Compliance with federa statstes such as Trath in 15 Jurisdiction ever anomeys effecting closing  And we have
th Lending and regulations. the RESPA and Reg X ECOA, and 16 Jorisdiction over check cashers and sellers and i would
17 Reg B. That's E-C-0-A. 17 include, since 1993, pavday lenders, which aie. you know,
18 Q Standsfor...? 18 short-1erm, high-cost loans secured by a postcdated check
19 A Equal Credit Opportunity Acl. Vanous other federal 19 Q@ And Houschold Finance, Houscheld Realts 111, and Benelicial
20 siatutes, Depository Institutions Deregolatory and Monetary 20 Mongage would be classified as consumer loan companies?
21 Control Act, INDMCA, Reg CC | mean. it just yoes on and on 21 A ilousehold Finance and Beneficial hakd comumer Joan
22 and on. There's a variety of - there's quite a litany of 22 licenses  Household Realty docs not hold a cosurmer loan
23 federal statutes that apply to banks that wouldn't 2 ticense.
24 necessarily apply in the situation ¥m i now 24 ) Dothey hold one now?
23 Q Okay. And what aboul - have vou ever been in a pusition of 25 A I'mnot sure if they have applietd of not but | don’t
)

J {Pages 1010 13)
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PARLETTE (CROSS)

—
Page 14 Page 16
) ¥ believe that we've issued one yet. 1 coudd be wrong on ] state of Washingion,
. 2 that. 1 would have 1o check with licensing stail., 2 MR. DUNNE: I'm going 10 object. They're
3 Q Togeta license in the state of Washington. what do you 3 different corporations in different periods of 1ime, so
4 have to show? 4 that's a compound guestion.
5 A Well, the statutc reguires your typical chamcier and 5 @ (By Mr. Parlette) Do you undersiand the question?
& fitness qualifications, bonding requirements, That's the & A LUnderstood the question. The answer is going 10 be no,
7 basic criteria. Of course, there’s details involved in 7 regardless of how you rephrase it, | can't tel] you when
8 that. You have to make application, which is a significant 8 they began doing first mortgages in Washington.
g amaount of paperwork, and show that you're authorized lo do 9 Q With their license as a consumer loan company. does it
10 business in the siate of Washington and master business 10 mention specific authority to underwrite mortgages?
11 license, that kind of stuff. 11 A The license doesn't mention that. The statute covers that.
12 Q Isthere any requirement that they be incorporated in the 12 Q Whal's the statute say about that?
13 stale of Washington? 13 A The stawne authorizes consumer lo0an companies to - it's a
14 A No. 14 strange statute. Specifically authorizes them 1o conduci
15 Q And-— 13 high-rate lending above the rate of usury as a specific
16 A Nor is there a requirement that vou be localed i 1he sine 16 authorization under the statute and that would include high-
17 of Washingion. 17 rate second mortgages. There is no specific coverage or
18 () Andwhen you say they have to have bonding capacity. what's 18 prohibition for first mortgages. First mongages would be
19 the amount of bond? 15 preempted for federal housing creditors or housing creditors
20 A Currently it's - | believe it begins at $400.000. i} 20 falling under | think i's DIDMCA.
21 rermember correctly. Tt changed recemly. $160.000 added 21 Q What's thal mean?
22 per branch afier that. There might be a maximum on it. I'm 22 A Depository Institations Deregulatory and Monctary Control
23 sorry. | would have 10 ook that up, The stane did 3 Act.
24 change. it's more bonding now than il used to he. 24 Q Okay.
25 QDo you happen to know oft the iop of vour head what the 25 A There arc a couple of federal slaiutes that intend 10 create
) Page b3 Page 17
t bondng requirement is for Household? ! sori of a leve! playing field for lenders across the couniry
2 A | don't know what the dollar amount is, but | can el s ou 2 that would preempt or trump staie statutes that might intend
3 they had whatcver required bonding amauni they were supposed 3 1o divide the country inte 50 different chunks of
q 1 have. 4 regulation, if you will. So a company such as Heusehold is
3 AndT'm sure in your listing of the dates 1 could Higure 5 not required 10 hokd a license to do first morigages in
& this out. but can tefl me how many years vou've been in your 6 Washingion. They are required 1o hold a license il they
7 current posilion as casnpliance - chief of compliance? 7 want (o do second mortgages above the raie of usury, which
'8 A Enforcement chief, B is currently at 12 percent, or if they want 1o do the
9 (O Enforcement chicfl excuse me, 0 typical consumer finance loans above the rate ol 12 percent.
10 A | was promoted 1o that in May of this year 10 @ Sothey do hold such a license?
{1 Q Before that. what was your posilion? 11 A Theydo hold such a license. They're not required to hold
17 A Supervisor of Investigation and Enforcement 12 such a license. n fact, even if they made foans thal
13 Q tlow long did you hold that position” 13 exceeded the rate of usury, they aren't specifically
14 A | think 1 was promaoted to supervisor in '35 or '96. Prior 14 required 10 hold the license. [1's just they're subject o
15 10 that, | was a senior examiner, so - I've been doing the 15 violations under the usury statue 1l they didn't hold a
1} same duties for quite a penied of tme. T've moved up 16 license and have an exemption, We have jurisdiction 1o
17 through the ranks. 17 review first morigages under that s1atute. We can review
I8 Q  And you started here at BIFT back in -- 18 any business of our licensees and hold them compliant with
19 A Backin'93. 19 the federal statules that govern their business. so the
20 @ '93, okay. Can you tell me how many first mongupes - 20 federal starunes have been incorporated into our statuies,
21 strike the question. 21 but the jicense is not necessary in order far them to do
n When did Household - when 1 use the term "Household, " 22 first morigages.
23 ['m poing to incorporate Flousehold Realy Ui, Household 23 Q@ Isthere a federal agency that oversees Household's
24 Finance, and Beneficial Mortgage. so they're one. Can vou 24 husiness?
23 1ell me when Household staried doing st mortgages in the 25 A el --

5 (Pages 1410 17)
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PARLETTE (CROSS)

.

Page 18 Page 20

i MR. DUNNE: 1object. Lack of foundation, vague, i information for a two-year period of ttme, but not year by

2 and ambiguous. 2 vear. And | would have 10 direct you 1o Susan Carlson 10

3 Q ({ByMr. Parleile) You can go ahead and answer the question. 3 find out whether you could actually discover that or not at

4 A First. ] helieve Household has three banks, so there would 4 this poent in lime.

5 be federal jurisdiction over those banks. But those - | 5 Q The year 2002, do you have pantial information on that ycar”?
6 think that's a fairly small portion of their business, so 6 A Ne

7 yes. 10 that pari of the answer, 7 Q Now, off the top of your head - strike the question. Al her

8 As far as whal would be considered primary regulation B press conference, Anorney General Christine Grepoire said

9 is how we would define it in the regulatory ficld, the 9 that the likely number of borrowers who would be entitled to
10 primary regulators for Houschold are going to be each of the 10 pavment under the senlement done by the Attorney General
tH stote entities. Now, the FTC would have jurisdiction over a 1t with Household in the state of Washington would be in the -
12 variety of federal statutes and HUD would have jurisdiction 12 ! believe she used the number §1.000. Do you recakl that
13 over RESPA, for example, so there's federal jurisdiction, 13 aumber?
14 but not what we would call primary federal oversight. 14 A Yes
I3 Q Yousaid FTC? 15 MR, DUNNE: Objection to form.
16 A Federal Trade Commission, 16 Q {By Mr. Parfette) And can you tell me what thal number is
i7 Q Aad Housing and Urban Development? 17 composed of or how i1's arrived?
18 A Correct. 18 MR. DUNNE: Obiection to form. lack of foundation.
19 Q Andthe Federal Home Loan Bank Board has no jurisdiction 19 A Atihis time T can't tell you what it's composed of. Al
20 over them, §uake 1? 20 seme point in lime when we actually exiract information from
21 A 1 don't knew what the makeup or the charer of sheir three 21 Househeld's dmabases. we will have a feel for that number.
22 banks are. but for the licensees in our state. Household 22 Bul at this point in time. that nearly 11,000 borrowers is
23 Finance 11] and Beneficial, no. 23 comprised of berrowers who have come and gone from fanuary
34 € What about the control of the currency? 24 1999 through Septernber 30th of 2002. and that would be made
23 A No Again. qualifving that | don’t know the charter status 13 upr ol just fiest mortgage borroswers. juss sccond monipape

Pape 19 Page 21

| ol those banks. 1f they're national hanks. the OCC would be 1 harmawers. and & combination of first 2nd second mongagpe

2 the primary regulator for those banks. 2 borrowers. Some of shem may have repeat finaaces during

30 Now, would you know or could | find cut by doing a public 3 ihose persod of lime.

4 disclosure request how many first mongages were 4 Q By M Parleue) Okay, good. The term PHL is used in some

3 underwritlen by Howusehold in the year 1998 10 the state of b of Household's documentation. Do you know exacetly what

6 Washingion®? 6 “PHL" stands for?

7 MR. DUNNE: Objechion: compound. 7 A Persanal home loan.,

8 A Buring what year? 8 Q@ Andisthat a sccured loan?

9 O (DByMr. Parlette) In 1998, 9 A s scoured foan in - well, [ dows believe i£'s a

10 A No. Let me think for a second. We do examinations every 10 seeured Joan in every case, but iU's a type of Josn that

11 two vears, and we do collect volume of loans in Washingion. It Houschuld wraote that is fashioned along the lines of a

12 | think what we could report is. in 1999 | think we could 12 second morteage line of credit. Household didn't consider

13 repuert the last two years' volume of foans, so it probably 13 nersonal horne loans realty 10 be real estate loans, but they

14 would be for ali of "98 and &1l of 1999 However. | belicve 14 were seeured. notin every case. but | believe in the

13 ai the moment that those repons might be protecied by the I3 majenity of cases they were sccurad by reaf estale.

16 lemporary resiraining order. | would liave (o ask our te Q  Were any of those personal home louns fsed by term and

17 Assistant Attorncy General, 17 amount or were they always open lines of credit?

18 ) And the year 2000 - excuse me. 1999, you've already 18 MR. DUNNE: Objection: luch uf Toundation,

19 addressed thal. [t would be in the same exemination period? 19 A lden'trecall night now. The company is large encugh and
200 A Correct, '98 and '99. Then we had - the next exainination 20 has tnough different types of products that I'm

2 period was 2000 and 2001, 21 uneomfonable in saying what products are what.

22 And do you know off the top of your head or could 1 find out 220 (% M. Parleite) And do you 2l Depariment of Financial
2} 1hrough a public disclosure request how many {irst mortpages 23 Insmutiens have data on the cepitalization of Househeld

2 I{eusehold underwrote in those rwo years, 2000 and -- 24 wndd iy subsidiariey that are ticensed here in the stae of

23 A Againsame exact answer. We would - | believe we have the 23 Washumgion”?

6 (Pages 18 to 21)
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PARLETTE (CROSS}

Page 22 Page 24
} -‘\. I A The oniy information that we have is through SEC filings | kaving a handful of typos throughout the report.
S I thal are public records. We don't routinely perform what 2 @ Okay. So with that understanding, we'll make it Exhibit B
3 are called safely and soundness cxaminaiions of our 3 when you have a chance at the break to get us a clean copy
4 licensees which is to determine, you know, have 1o detérmine 4 of the same thing and we't) call that Exhibit C, the clean
5 their net worth and asset quality and so forth. We don'l, 5 copy of the report,
6 during an examination, extract that information, 6 A Okay. Thanks.
7 Q Does the Siate make any effort 10 assure itsell of adequate 7 Q |had asked you a question about the number of complaints,
8 capitalization. or leave that to the SEC? 8 and you were just interposing an answer there about 1999,
9 A Well, we don'l really leave it 1o anybedy, We have bonds in 9 At some point in time, did you start 10 become alarmed by
10 \his state, 50 we're not concerned with capital adequacy. 10 the number of complaints thal were coming in against
it Q@ The document Exhibit A, which we've admined in your 1t Household?
12 deposition here. have you made any attempt 10 count those 12 MR. DUNNE: Objection; leading.
13 complaints for Beneficial and Household? 13 A In 2000 we became concerned aboul what we saw as an
14 A No. This was printed out moments before vou arrived. My 14 increasing wrend in the number of complaints.
13 staff person forgot to do it for me and raced to the prinier 15 Q (ByMr. Parlerie) Did you personaily examine these
6 and did it jusi right before you came in. 1] complaints as they came in?
17 Q Okay. greal. When did it first come to your attention that 17 A Yes. Some of them,
18 \he complaints against Household, and again ! use it 10 18 @ And who else here at the Depanment was analyzing those?
19 include Bencficial. seem to get inordinawety large here in 19 A Vivian Carler. Ard if you have happen to, al some point in
20 Ihe stale of Washingten? 20 time look in a file, you will see there are three different
24 ML DUNNE: OGbjection: form. 21 names because she went through a divorce, back to her old
22 A Wesaw - 22 name. and then & marriage again, so you'll see a variety of
) MR. DUNNE: Objection: lcading. 23 names for her. but she's the only Vivian that's worked for
24 A Wesaw an increasing trend in complaing activity in 1999 and | 24 the Departmem  Patrick Hardman, H-a-r-d-m-a-n, and John
23 continuing to 2000, 25 Samuclson.
|
; Page 23 Page 23
IQ  (By Mr Parlette) And at any point i ume. did this -- I Q  Andarc those three individuals s1ill emploved here al DTF?
2 A 1you don't mind, P)l modify that. | do have some T A Yes Albough Vivian has transferred 1o another division.
3 mfonmation here in my repont, Looks like we had a dip in 3 hui she's sull vader DF1
4 1999 We became more concerned with complainis in 1999, bus 4 )} Didsou penodicatiy conduct meetings with Vivien, Patrich,
3 il dhoes Jook fike there’s an actual dip in activity and then 5 and lohn to consult on what you were ohserving”?
4 H started 1o accelerate in 2000. 6 A Yes Thes were directly under my supervision. so we had
7 @ You're referring 10 & document that vou have in front of 7 vers close nteraciion,
8 vou, Let's poahcad and get thi marked as Exhibit B and §  Q  How olien would you meet relative te Household and the
G identilied. 9 things vo were seeing?
10 (EXHIBIT NO. B MARKIED) 10 A 'monolsure that we had - that | had any formal mectings
11 @ I'mgomg to hand you what's been marked as Exhibit B and 11 with those theee on Household. bot we had a weekly status
12 ask if you can identify that, please? 12 meeting on all of the cases we were working every Monday, so
13 A This is the Department's expanded repon of eximinasion for I3 1ssues concerning Household would be brought up during that
14 livusehold Finance Corporation | as of Aprid 30. 2002, and 14 meeting. you know, on any given Monday.
15 b would actuaily ask that you atlow me at some Llime on a i3 Duvourecatl when you first brought o the sttention of the
16 break 1o print you a good copy of this. Thisisa-1 16 direcior of Depanment of Financial Insututions vour
17 pulied 1his out of a bax on my way racing here because 1 17 voncerns about houschold?
18 wasn't prepared this moming. This is a - 1S 15 the draft 18 A 1 don' believe | ever brought then (o the director of
i9 run carly on. and it has iypoeraphica! emors which you can 19 Fingncial Institutions’ attention. but the direcior of
20 hingd right here in the heading. There's a clean. 20 Division of Consumer Services would have been who | would
21 nomiypographical esror version, same lenpth, alt the same 2t report 10 -« )
22 information, same signalure and cvervihing on # that i 22 Q  Isee
23 would prefer to print for you -- 237 A --and he reported up 1o the director of the sgency. )
24 Q Ohay. 24 can’l remember - | don't recall having a mecting direcily
25 A --ihan this one only because if's sort of embartassing 25 with the thrector of the agency on lHouschaold,
|
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Page 26 Page 28

1 Q Who is the dircctor of the Division of Consumer Services? I Q Well. let's sce. My recollection was, you put *98 and 99

2 A Mark Thomson, ne P. 2 together. Would that be an examinalion period?

3 Q@ Mark Thomson? 3 A Yes. That would be a period under examination. yeah. Sol
4 A T-h-o-m-s-o-n. 4 think, if you looked backwards in time, you would probably
5 @ WNoP,yousaid? 5 find our exam reports going 2001-1999,'97-'95, | believe is
6 A NoP,yeah. 6 the trend you would see.

7 Q Ishe still the director of Consumer Services? 7 Q getit. And ihe documents you have in front of you as

8 A Y. 8 Exhibit B, was 1hat one an examinalion conducted in the

9 (¢ And when did you first bring to Mr. Thomson's antention the 9 ordinary course of business?
10 trend you were seeing in the Househotd complaints? 10 A Woeidentified this as an examination. 1's an expanded
11 A 1don"t secatl, but Houschold being our second - 1 beligve n examination because in 2001 we did a routine examination.
12 our second larpest licensee, we were, as with any of our 12 And this exam was keved more ofT the complainis that we had
13 Jarge Jicensees, we would communicate frequently aboul the 13 been reviewing and somewhat off findings from the
i4 company. The Depanment has a long history with Household. 4 examinalion staff during the routine exam,
15 and so we would frequently interact in regards to Household. 15 Q Isee
16 | do know in late {999 we began discussing what we 16 At was an expansion of their routine exam.
17 considercd to be an alarming nature of the complainis that 17 Q When did vou decide to do this expanded report of
18 WE WEIC SEeing. 18 cxamination?
19 Q And what was the alamming natre of the complaints? 19 A | befieve it was in. | want to say. December of 2001 is when
20 A We were sceing good-faith 5timales come in where a range of 20 the director and mysell agreed that we needed 1o funher
21 discoum points were shown on the good-faith estimate. And 21 document our findings.
22 my interpretation and my Iee examiners’ wieTpretation was 22  And the director was Mark Thomson?
23 that this was not in compliance with Regulation X to the 23 A Mark Thomson.
24 Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act. and we became 24 Q  inyour ordinary biannual examinalions. what's the purpose
23 concerned and began interacting with Household on that 25 ol those”

Page 27 Page 39

¢ issue, essentially challenging them on thesr compliance with 1 A ' a compliance-focused examinarion. The purpose is,

2 Reg X. 2 determine a licensee’s compliance of adherence 10 certain

3 Q And in this process. as the complaints would come in. did 3 federai and state statutes which are aimed at consumer

4 you talk 10 the complairant. you or your investigalors under q protection in financia! transactions,

] vour jurisdiction? 5 Q 1sthe purpose of this expanded repont any different than

6 A Talk 10 the complanants? b that?

7 Q Right 7 A No,not really. 1t's more focused and more specific, bt

8 A Attmes. When we're handiing complamls. we're more 8 it's - the purpese sn't any ditferent.

9 docurnent driven than we are intervies driven. Interviews 9 Q Theindividual complaints upon which this are based by
10 are nore often saved for investigative work. The volume of 10 consumers, how are thosc complaints resolved or acted upon,
Il complaings is too greal to be calling up cornpiainants and 11 | should say?

12 ashing what their story was. | can’t say we didn't 1alk to 12 A By the Department?

13 consumers because from tinse to hime vou need maybe some 13 Q Yes

14 clarification or some document they didn't provide. But 14 A [need 1o understand your question a little b better.

I35 nol. as a practice, would we be mterviewmg the consumers. 15 Q  Sure.

16 Q And does the Depantment have an annual or biannual review 16 A Do you mean in the normal course or this case?

17 penod for its licensees that you undertake inthe ordinary 17 Q lnthe normal course of busingss semeone says, | got

18 course of business? 18 mistreated by my mortaage broker or by Houscehold. Let's
19 A We do a routine examination thal 1 supposed 10 be scheduled 19 just use Household as the example. They send in & written
20 cvery 24 months, We dow't alwiy s make that 24-month time 20 complaint. [s there a resolution of their complaint by the
21 frame. However. with Househotd | think we, since they were 2] Department?
22 such a targe licensce, were preny vood about making our 24- 22 A Usually.
23 month time {rame. 23 Q And how does that resolution occur. when i does occur?
24 Q  Would those startin the odd year and end in the even vear? 24 A The complaint arrives in the depariment. We have
25 A Whm do you mean by “stan™? 13 essenhally four phases that transpire. Phase one is lo

¥
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PARLETTE {CROSS)

Page 30 Page 32
:‘ 1 send a directive out 10 the licensee saying, we need 1 making il sound as if it's a finding of the dirceior,
2 speeific information in order 1o review this complaint. 2 Q Inorderto have a finding of the director, whai does that
3 Phase two is a follow-up 10 phase one if we don't get 3 take?
4 everyihing that we need or if we don't ger anything, as 4 A Again. that's not clearly defined because | don't dictale
5 oflen is the case. Phase three is when an examiner sits 5 the director's inding. The director could simply stand up
6 down with a complaint file that hopefully is now sornewhat 6 and say, "1 find a violation of this," but typicaliy it's
7 complete with documentation from both parties. being the 7 going Lo be someshing under the director's signature that a :
8 complainant and the respondent. They perform a compliance 8 viplation transpired. ;
9 review of that file and make findings of - make the initial 9 Q Whentalking about the director, we're speaking of the :
10 findings of violation, apparent vinlations. and prepare & 10 director of Department of Financial Institutions”
3 set of requirements that we would ask the company (0 11 A We'te speaking of the director of the Depantment of
12 complete in order to resolve the complaint. 12 Financial Institutions who delcgates his of her authority
13 @ Do they have any obtigation to complete those, the company? | 13 down to 2 division direcior 10 make those findings and might .
14 A The company is nol required 10 underiake corrective action 14 cven funher be delegated down from that point, so . .. :
k5 requested through a complaint. Every complaint resolution 15 Q Wasthere ever a violation found against Houschold or any of
16 comes with a paragraph thal wams the company that if they 16 its subsidiaries by anyone who was delegated that authority?
17 don't undertake the cotective measures that we've laid oul. 17 MR. DUNNE: Objection; vague and ambiguous.
18 we would have no choice bul 10 enter an administrative 1B A No. ;_
19 cforcement action forcing them te do that. so the actual 19 Q (By Mr. Parletie) And again. as | understand what you're
20 complainl document itself doesn't rise to Lthe [evel of an 20 saying is. the process got interrupted by this multistate .
1 action under the Administrative Procedures Act. [U's an 21 effort to have some sort of consensual resolulion? .
22 infermial request, if you will, 22 MR, DUNNE: Objection: leading. :
23 Q  Andihey - the formal resolution under the APA. 23 A The process wasn't interrupted so much as there was o
4 Administrative Procedures Act, would be tnggered by an 24 parailel process taking place and we achieved resolution
23 administrative cnforcement procecding brought by DEI? 25 before the enforcement trick reached compietion and fiting
! Page 31 Page 33
I A Asatement of charges, ves. 1 of charges.
2 Hasthat ever happencd against Household'? 2 Q (ByMr Parlete} Okay. Soif } am putting this atl
3 A Ne 3 together, in your report, expanded report of examination,
4 Q  Andcan youtell me why? Why not? 4 when we see the words “apparent violation,” what that is, is
5 A Wejoined with a mullistate effort and brought what we felt 5 a conclusion by an examinct thal it appears 10 that examiner
6 were their viclations 1o & consensual resoluion. é there is a vialation, but there's not the formal process of
7 Q Welltalk about that fater. 7 determining a finding of fact that it is indeed a violation?
8 You used two lerms. viclation. 1 presume, of either 8 A Thatis correct. Keeping in mind with this case that the -
o federal or stale regulations or an apparent violation of the 9 those apparen findings were being made by myself. Andat |
10 federal and siate regulations. Are those terms of ant? 10 that period of time, it would be a very high ievel of :
IV A Yes. We use the term "apparent violalion” prior to actually Tl examiner, actually supervisor of investigation enforcement, |
12 filing charges because they are essentially il 12 days before [ was promoted to enforcement chief.
13 findings. H is just a teem of art to atlow the process. 13 @ Okay. At the time that you were doing this expanded repon
14 the understanding, that, you know, it's not a linding by the 14 of examination, were you in contact with other state
15 director that a violation has oceurred. 1t's a linding by 15 regulators in other states?
16 an examiner who is nol i a position 1o commit the 16 A Atthis point in time, Apri} 30, 20027
17 Depariment to charges for those violations, 17 @ | think you said you started this process, you and the
18 Q Inorder 10 have a viplation, you would have (0 go through 18 direcior decided 1o - stanted in December 2001, You
19 the Administrative Procedures Act. [s that a true 19 compieted it in April of 2002. In that period of time.
20 stalement’? 0 between those dates of December and April, were you in
21 A Ndon't keow if'it's true, but it's - lel me sav it's not a 21 contact with your equivalents in cther stales?
22 clearly defired process. Iwon't say that there haven't 22 A Yo,
23 heen times where examiners have used the tenm “vinlation”in | 23  What other states were you in contact with?
24 licu of apparent violation. We just prefer that our 24 A Minnesota, Georgia, Idaho, Oregon. Those were 1he main
23 examiners talk in tenns of appurent viotations instead of 25 ones. And then some infrequent contact with Michigan,
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Page 34 Page 36
\} ] California, lilinois. I'm not really clear now. | interact I Q Any other organizations, other than the ones you've just
o - with all of the siates a Jot and we discuss a lot of issues. 2 listed?

3 I'm chairmman of the Mongage Fraud Comminee for AARMR. 3 A lam asubject matter expen and instrucior for the National
4 which is the national association of state regulators, 5o we 4 White Collar Crimes Center, I'm a member of the -

5 have meetings and we interact on 2 1ot of issues, so | 3 Q Excuse me, National White Collar Crimes Center, is lhat a
6 frequently 1atk with other regulators. But those that | 6 government committee?

7 listed there are the ones that we actually were interacting 7 A Itis funded by the U.S. Department of Justice. but it is a

8 on, lel's say, a case level with, 8 sland-alone prganization that assisis lavw enforcement.

9 Q You ust mentioned an organization which is intercsting to 9 Q How long have you been on that committee?

10 me, What did you call it? AARMR? 10 A 1became a subject malter expert - well, let me rephrase. 1
Il A Yes. The American Association of Residential Morigage 1t began teaching for them in 1997 and became a subject maner
12 Regulalors, A-A-R-M-R. i2 expert | believe it was 1998,

13 Q And hat's composed of state agencies? 15 Q And what's the subject matter in which you're an expen?
14 A Yes 14 A Financial erimes, white-collar crime.

13 Q Isthe federal government in any way tonnected with or have 15 Q Anyother commitiees?

16 any representation on that group? 16 A | belong o the - no other committees. | belong 10 Pacific
17 A Mo, They participate with us, but they're not formally 17 Northwest Tax License and Fraud Association. and I'm a

13 connceled. 18 certified government financial manager, CGFM. W'sthe

19 ()} You're the chairman of that group? 19 egovernment equivalent of a CPA.
20 A No. I'm chaiman of the Mongage Fraud Commitiee. which is 20 @ And what goes inlo getting that cenification”
2t ong of the committees under AARMR. 21 A Youknow, nothing at the point intime | got it | was
22 Q How long have you held that position” 22 grandfathered in because of my background and educaional
23 A |think I'm halfway through my second vear now 23 experience and 5o forth, Now you have 1o take a wst along
24 O | failed ro ask this in the background questions. it are 24 1he fines of the CPA, so | got in kind of easy, Then I'm

25 there any olher comminees that you serve on that bear on 13 associnte ceriified fraud examiner.

}

/ Page 35 Page 37
1 vour job sesponsibilities here? [ Q Andwho dees the licensing again? The Pacific Nonthwes Tax
2 A Yes I'malso on the Traning Committee for AARMR. lama 2 License Fraud”?

3 casual committee member for the Rescirch Commistee for the 3 A They don't do licensing. That's just an orpanization,
1 King County Coalition for Responsible Lendg and also at 4 Pacilic Northwest Tax License and Fraud Association. it's
3 nmes participate en Remedics and Education Commitiees. Fin 3 the assaciation for Washington, Orepon, and knwer Canada
) more like - | don't know. 1 appear when | can {ind 1ime i denhing with everyihing from licensing to tax fravd o
7 almest. more ol @ puest appearance. | don’t make it te most 7 financial erimes. It's evervbody from the FBI to the
I of the nectings. 3 inspectar general. local Jaw enfarcement, prosccutors, |I's
9 Thavsa counyy - Y aflofus 10y a preny big groop.
10 A King County. yes. 10 Q Okay Andwhat inggered that question. you said you were
I Q- committee? H un associare fraud --
12 A Commintee for Responsible Lending. 12 A Associate cenified fraud examiner.
i3 Q Isthala governmenl orpasization of volunteer? 13 Q  Cenified fraud examiner. .
14 A Well, not reallv. Nt's government and quasi-government and 14 A Wheeh just means that [ haven't sat for the exam 1o bea
13 then consumer-group orierted. ‘I he Washingion representative 15 CFE. ncenified frand examiner. It's a nalional
16 for ACORN, for example, participates on some of these 16 dusignation. It's the CPA of the fraud arena.
17 commitlees, You see groips such as the Fremonl Associasion 17 Q Ohav. Who certified you? Thal's my question.
18 having participation or the Washington State Bar. Actually. I8 A The organizanon, Certifted Fraud Examiners. Associauon of
19 the King County chapier of the Washingien State Bar is 19 Certilicd Fraud Examiners.
20 wwvolved. City of Seattle, HUD's local representalion. At 20 Q  Anyother litics or awards or honors?
21 times the FTC sends a member to the meet:ngs. I's son of 21 A Al kinds of that Kind of swff.
2 a loose coatition of people who are interesied n the 22 Q  Ler's gothrough them.
23 subject of predatory lending. 23 A 1was awprded a columnist of the year by the Nationat
24 ) 1see How long has that commitiee been in exislence? 4 Associaion of Mantgage Brokers for the year 2000, ety
23 A Bov,ayear and a half. 23 see 2001 | was the examiner of the year awarded by AARMR
]
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Page 38 Page 40
) i [ don't know, You know, 1'll have to think for a while. 1 1s limelv disclosures, The fourth s confusion over momhly
h 2 Q Doyou have any of this stufT listed out on a vitae of any 2 payment amount or misrepresentation of monthly payment
3 sort? 3 amount. Fifth was misrepresentation of prepayment
4 A Alitlebitol i, 1 do. 1have a short bio that | use 4 penalties. The sixth was insurance packing. And the
5 when | do speaking engagements. Mostly it's stuff thar's 5 seventh is what | call in this report upseliing loans but
[ dumped in a drawer. Certificates of, you know, instructing 6 hrough the multistatc process beczme known as the piggyback
7 this course and that course, that kind of thing. 7 fean scenario or the simultaneous second with a first. .
8 Q Ifduring a break you or your secretary can come up with 8 ©Q Twoloans insicad of one? :
9 that bio -- 9 A Correct, :
iI0 A Sure 10 Q@ Andit's my understanding that the complaints against the
1y Q --wecan-- il subsidiary hnown as Beneficial Mortgage are not listed in
12 A Ir's onc paragraph. 12 this expanded repon.
13 Q --stmplify this thing and speed it up. 13 A That's correct.
14 A Okay. 14 @ Have vou dene or have vou arrived at any conclustons about
15 Q@ Now, when you were in conlact with these other state 13 their practices relative 1o what you've observed about
16 regulators, was there an observation by these other states 16 Houschold”?
17 of the same pattems that you were seeing here at Household? | 17 A We found strong similarities. but we haven't performed the
18 A They were stating similar patterns, 18 in-depth review on specific complaints of Beneficial. as we
19 Q Anddid you hold meetings with any of these other people to | 19 did with Househoid.
20 specifically discuss the practices of Household? 20 @ Had vou miended 10 do that before 1his resolution of the
21 A Yes, We held two meetings. 21 muliistate Attomey General settlement?
22 Q When were those? 22 A Yes the parallel rack that was taking place was a
23 A January and February of this year, | believe it might be 23 movement lowards filing charges, and charges would have been
24 Janvary and March, but somewhere around 1he start of the 24 {iled against Household Finance, Houschold Realty.
25 vear. 23 Bepeficial, and likely we would have named Household
!
! I'age 39 Page 41
I (@ Where were those meetings heid? ! Internanonal as well, and that would have required a full
2 A Bothof them were held here at DFI, although some of the 2 n-deph review of Benelictal's complaint activity as well
3 people appeared by telephone. Minnesoty only appeared by 3 as Houschold's
q telephone, Georgia howed out early on, said they didmt 4 Q Had vou gotien started on that analysis of the complaints
3 have the resources to be invelved in a multistate 3 apamst Bewehenl?
6 investigation or examination of Househeld, so they showed 6 A No Ihad st briefly reviewed some of the complaiet
7 early imerest and then said - they had some serious funding 7 activily to mahe sure that what we belicved was iranspiring
8 restrictions on them. 8 al Benefenl really was. What 1 mean by that. we
9 Q)  Andwere you then designated by this group 1o take the lead 9 ilentilied very clear soficitation and business practices
10 on this? 10 that we believe were corporate-wide, not just segregated
It A No 11 into, vou hnow . one of the entities. We believed it wvas -
12 Q Youjust did&t? 12 we believed that it was a corporate-wide practice for all
13 A No. | mean, ! just did my job, and | just happened 1o do 13 three eniies. so the review was preaty much just to check
14 some of it before some ather people. 14 those Wles and see 1T our assumption was correct.
15 2 | getit, Now, when you did your expanded report of 15 QG Wasyour assumplion correct?
16 examination, what trends or patterns did you observe that l6 A |beheve so
17 save vou cause for concen? 17 Q  Andihan assumption was that the patterns were the same?
18 A There were five or six trends or patems, | will attempt 18 A Strongly smmilar,
19 these from memory and possibly flip to this report. 19 Q  And when did you actually commence work on this expanded
200 Q Feel free 1o use that report whenever you want. 20 report”?
21 A Maybe l'lf do that right now just to be more precise. 21 A That's dilficult to answer because in my dulies the
22 Beginning on page 43 is what | called identified pattems in 2 complanis thit ended up in this report would have fallen
23 recent complaint history, The first patem is 23 under i unsdiction a1 all momenis in 1ime. so 1 1hink we
24 misrepresentations and failed promises 10 consumers. The 2 were - i be we didn't alwavs reatize it but we were always
25 second 15 confusion over rates, points, and fees. The third 23 moving lowards some prodiuct such as thes. The actual
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Page 42 Page 44
\) 1 drafling of the report | believe | began in the end of I a slightly differcnt experience for each one of us, but we
s February, starl of March. 2 were in agreement on the origination process.
3 Q Okay. Now, is this - the document that you're going 10 have 3 Q (ByMr. Parlette) And that's the origination of the loan
4 as Exhibit C when we get it, which is the corrected without 4 process?
5 the typos - 5 A Correct.
6 A Okay. 6 Q And which office did you visit?
7 @ - did you consider tha! to be a final repont? 7 A Bellingham.
B A Yes. 8 Q And who did you deal with there, do you remember?
9 Q And it is my undersianding that the Department of Financial 9 A A young guy. | had this in my notes somewhere, but | want
] Institutions gave Household an opportunity then to respond 10 to say Dominic. And then at a later point in time - boy, |
H 10 that final repor. 11 wouid have to find the name - a woman tock over the file
12 A Yes. 12 from him because he was out sick, | believe was the deal
13 Q Anddid Household respond 1o it? 13 with him, sc there’s a woman that took over the file al some
14 A Yes. 14 point in time.
15 Q And did that - theis response in any way change the 15 Q Letme give you some names and see if it refreshes any
16 conclusions you had arrived at in this repont? 16 memory, Lort Gale, Sasha Tomlinson.
17 A No. 17 A I'mgoing 10 have 1o say | don't remember at this moment in
18 Q Do vou have or can [ get a copy of Household's response? 18 time because those names are familiar to me, and 1 don't
19 A Oniy from Household. 19 want 10 say they're familiar because [ visited the office.
20 Q That's also a under -- 20 | apologize.
21 A Under the TRO. 21 @ Thatsall right.
22 Q 'That's one of the blocked documents, okay. 22 A | believe u was August 102001, That's a loag lime ago.
23 A Andihar's what our Assistant Anorney General tells us, 23 [ just did one - | just stopped in the office and only
24 The corporate officers of Household told me they wamed me | 24 talked 1o Dominic. if that was his name, for about two
25 10 give out their response anylime 1 gave anybody the 23 minutes or 0 and then him and | originated the loan over
; Page 43 Page 43
i report. but apparenty 1he TRO does protect that. 1 the phone later that day
2 Q Youcallia TRO. Typically a TRO is good for 14 davs. | 3 Andihe lady 1hat vou came in contact, was that by phone?
3 think. 3 A Yus. She contacted me by 1zlephone and said that she was
4 A You know. its probabiy in the form of an injunction now, 4 picking up for hirm because he wag out sich.
3 I'm sorr. 5 Q  Have vou ever met Melissa Rutland-Drury?
& Q  Andcould vou describe in detail your investigative or 6 A Nutrmy hnowledge. Adthough, §'m from Bellingham and |
7 examination cllons that sent into the dralting of this 7 understand she's been up there aiong bme. IU's possible
8§ repor? 8 we might have come in contact, but 1 don'l have any
9 A Theinvesugation was primarily fucused on. | believe. g recollection ol that.
10 {9 compiaints that have been received against Household. 10 Q  And who were 1be other twe examiners that went [0 the other
11 What | did was an in-depth analysis of these 19 complaints 11 oflices”
12 10 identity the patterns and practices discussed within the 12 A John Samuelson did Olvmpia and Patrick Hardman was at
13 report, in addition 1o that, mysell and 1wo of my stall 13 Lakewood.
14 originued mongages with three different §louschold offices. 140 And when did they make wheir visitations? About 1he same
15 Q@ And what were those offices that you onginated these 13 time lrame?
16 IROMgages with? 16 A About the same tume. Whthin days of mine.
i7 A Bellingham, Lakewood, and Olympia. Yeah. Bellingham, 17 Q That would have been in August of 20017
(8 Lakewood. and Qlympia. 18 A Yes | heheve that Johw's was all telephome. We're
19 Q Did you notice similaritics in treatment berween those three 19 rying w inix nup and sec wha kind of response we got
20 branches when vou went to test the system?” 20 depending un how we did it Patrick did vwo or three actual
21 MR. DUNNLE: Objection: lack ol foundation. vague 21 visits to the uflice. sil-down Jong mectings with the loan
22 and amhigueus. 22 officer Mine was a combination of going in and meeting and
23 A There were similarities. Myself and my twa examiners had - { 23 lhen doing the rest by iclephone, and John was completely by
24 my lwe exeminers reporied back their findings to me. and 24 Lelephione
25 their indings were not dissimilar from mune, afthough ity 25 Q lsee And when vou imstiated this process. do you believe
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CONFIDE

Page 44

i you were initiating 2 loan application?

2 A [know I was initialing a loan application,

3 Q Anddid Houschold have an application form for you to fill
4 oum?

5 A No. That's not the way the company conducis its businegss,
6 Q Tell me how the company daes conduct is business with
7 respect 1o an application.

8 A They take the application directly inio their computer

2 system so they don't use paper form of application. The

Page 48

Objection; compound. vague and ambiguous. and lack of
foundation,
Go ahead, please. Sorry. I'm somy.
THE WITNESS: | understand.
MR. DUNNE: | dont know if vou've been through
this process before, but this is for the record. and the
coun —~
MR. PARLETTE: He does this all the time. 1 just
ignore him.

e R N N N

21 dare, amount of debt that they might hive 1n other loans,

22 and sources of income?

23 MR. BUNNE: Objcction.

24 A ldon't know

25 ME_TDUNNE: Let me object plense, Mr. Crass.,

10 industry standard had always been using a Fannie Mae or THE WITNESS: | understand you're preserving your
{1 FMA 1003 form. You hear it referred to as a 1003. That objection for the record.
12 form of taking loans has been around since the 705 or A | can't remember what [ was saying, ! think | was saving |
13 early '80s. And Houschotd is the - in our undersianding. is 13 don't know becanse | don't know specilically what up-line
14 the most propressive technology-wise of our licensees. And 14 controls might be in place that that loan oflicer would have
13 a few years back. they abanduned that approach and began 13 10 interact with. Theoretically anybody a8 any time. any
16 doing more dircetly into the sysiem so there's less paper 16 toan. any company could change information, so theoretically
17 flow taking place. 17 it's possible. What controls Houschold has in place to keep
18 @ Who inputs the information? The customer ar the 1lousehold 18 it from happening, I don't know., or 10 caich it when it
19 representative? 16 happens.
20 A No. The Rousehold representative inps the information, | 20 Q (By Mr. Parlette} ht scems to me a vial piece ol
21 @ Docs the customer ever sign the application? 21 information that Houschold would hove 1o have in order Lo
22 MR. DUNNE: Objection: vague and ambiguous. 22 decide whether or not 1o issue a loan would be income
23 Go ahcad, 23 information.
24 A Alsome - I've never seen a signed appiication by 2 24 MR. DUNNE: Ghjection 1o form.
25 customer. That's not a requiremnent. Therd's no law that 25 Q@ (By Mr Parlene} Would you agree with that statement?
Page 47 Page 49
! governs - thal requires thal onr applican sign the 1 MR DUNNE: You're asking him about a question of
2 application. hut I've acver - I've never seen one by 2 Jaw . about a question of busimess praclices. Vague and
3 Houschold. 1 believe that the customer does not. aithough 3 ambipuous.
4 they sign ceriain awshorization to go forward with the toan. 4 A Lenders iypically want 1o know income irformation. but
3 Q (By Mr. Parletie) Does the customer ever have the 3 there's nothing requiring any lender 10 use any spectfic
6 opportunity to rcview the application? 6 information on an application. If a lender wanled 1o. they
7 MR DUNNE: Saime ubjection: vague aml ambiguous 7 can sunply take your name and 1elephone number and make you
8 and lack of foundation. 8 adoan, There's o restrictions on that. espevially a
9 A Nolto my knowledpe. 9 company like Household thit funds its loans swely its own
10 Q (By Mr, Parlette) Did you have an opporiunity 10 review the 10 lunding base. 1t might be different for companies that are
1] application you made? R sefling into the secondary market lo Fannie Mae and Freddie
12 A No 12 Mac and have 1o fotlow 1hose specific guidelines. but
13 @ The information thea that is put in the appiwition, how 13 there's no requirement
14 does the custormner know that it's accurate™ 14 Q (By Mr. Parlete) Does the customer indeed ever know in
15 MR. DUNNE: Objection; "application” 15 vague and 5 Househobd's case that an application for a loan has been
16 ambiguous, lack of foundation, i6 made?
17 A | don't know that the cusiomer does have any hnowledge (hat 17 A Well. the sppfhication for a Joan falls under federal
13 i's accurglc. 18 definition. 50 whether a consumct knows it or nol, we
19 (By Mr. Parlette) s there anything 1o prevent a Household 18 certainty know when an application has been made.
20 representative from misrepresending sueh lacty as binh 20 O Mr. Cross. in your examination of Houschold's praciices.

21 have you ever come across a Stanklardized letier that has
2z been senl 10 consumers (hat sav that vour kean that vou've
23 apphied for has been rejecied?

24 A Yes. or canceled
25 Q  Pwantyouto take this - 1wt vou to assume at foce vahue
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Page 30 Page 32
\) } that cenain people have come 1o me and said, "I never I Q IsRobin Allcock still employed by Houschold?
2 applied for a loan and | get this letter out of the blue. | 2 A Hmm. |don'tknow. |haven't heard anything from Robin for

3 simply asked a question about my current loan with Household 3 a period of time.

4 and then | get a respunsive lenier that says the foan that 4 @ How many of these "come to Jesus” meetings occurred?

5 you've applicd for has been rejecied.” Have you seen thal 3 A I'mgoing to say two or three with Tom Echols and ewo with

6 practice anywherc? ’ 6 people from 1linois.

7 MR, DUNNE: Objection; vague and ambiguous. 7 Q That would include Tom Detelich and Robin Allcock?

8 .A 1[isaw i1, } didn't know that that's what 1 was seeing. 8 A Yeah ibelieve - I'm pretty sure Tom was there and Robin

9 but again, what it sounds to me like what you're spelling 9 was there, We have a long history with Household. and

10 out is that Household was being technically in compliance 10 company represeniatives used to come here once or Lwice a

It with federal regulations, whether the borrower knew itor 11 year just to meet with us anyway. so | started to become

12 nol. 12 hazy when we meet and who was aclually here, but | belicve

13 © (By Mr. Parlenie) The borrower's concern in this instance 13 that during the two meetings that 'm referzing to. which

4 was that the letier, having been issued, went on their 14 are subsequenl 10 us having - starting to have this fack of

15 credit record and showed that they had been rejected for a 13 cooperation problem with Household. that Tom and Robin were
16 loan that they never knew that they appiicd for. s there 16 invelved in those meetings.

17 any prohibition against 1hat? 17 Q Do you have notes or minutes from those meelings?

18 MR. DUNNE: Objection 1o form. lack of loundation. 18 A There are some limited notes that [ obtained from the

19 Itassumes facts not in evidence. 19 director. Again, | believe | was in - not again. | don’t
20 A No prohibition. to my knowledge, 20 think 1 have said this. |believe [ was at one. maybe two
21 Q {By Mr Parletc} Okay. Did cither Patrich Hardman or John | 21 of the 1wo to three meetings with Tom Echols and only one of’
22 review the application that was made in their instances” 22 the two mectings with the rest of Household.

23 A No 23 (@ The rest ol them were with the director?

24 Q lnthe process of cxamining the compiaints thit have been - 24 A With the direcior and the program manager, who was my hoss
235 these 19 complainis that this report was based on. did vou 23 al that peint in time. Whitticr Johnson.

/ Page 3i Page 83
1 make requests 10 Houschold for documenis and information” I Q Andihe individuat representing the State would have been
7 A Yes 2 Whittier Jehnson and who would -

3 Q Was llouschold coopesative? 3 A Mark Thomson.

4 A No 4 Q Mark Thomson. And Muark is still here at DFI?

3 Q  Wonld vou describe your - or give us a maore detailed 3 A Heis.

3 cxplanation of 1heir lack of cooperatian? 6 () Are those notes or minutes governed by this temporary

7 A Wehad been experiencing a lack of cooperation since. { want 7 restraining order, prefiminary injunction, whatever i is?

8 10 sy, late 1999, carly 2000 10 cur requests for 8 A Well those are our notes, 5o | don't know. | would just.

9 information. This is something thal the Departiment was 9 you know, apply caution and ask our Assistant Attorney

10 concerned about. [t became an increasing issue with us over 14 Gencral before releasing anything,

It time. enough so that we brought the company in 1o meet with 11 Q Yeah. So what | would do is a public disctosure requess if
12 the director on a few occasions. We call these "come 1 12 | wanted 1o see those and see what happens?

13 Jesus meetings” where a regulater sits down wath the company 13 A Yeah

14 and says, "We don't like the trend of things here W are 14 Q inthese "come to Jesus” mectings, did the Staie have ¢

13 vour regulator. We want you 10 be responsive to us ” 15 threaten admunistrative action in order to get the documems
16 Q Who at tHousehold represented - what indiveduad represenied 16 produced?

17 Household in these mectings? 17 MR, DUNNE: Objection; lack of foundation. He

18 A Atvximes just Tom Echois, E-c-h-o-b-s. Hes the foeai. | 18 testificd he didn" attend all of them.

14 don't know. legislative lobbyist, if you wit. I'm not suse 19 A That's difficelt for me 10 answer because, afthough we did
20 what his actual tithe is, but he works for Houschold, deals 20 indicate that that would be the likely outcome, the company
2t with legislative issues here inthe Nortlmest. Thnow he 2] still wasn't very responsive. Se the question was. did we
22 inleracted frequently with the director on these ssues of 22 have 1o threaien in order to gel them to be responsive”? And
23 responsiveness. We also met with. 1 believe, Tom Detelich 23 sort of despite the director’s very strong message that this
24 and Robin Allcock, possibly various other people  11's been 24 is going the wrong direction for you and we don't wani 1o
25 aneriod of ime now. 25 have to step it up to the next fevel, we still didn't ge:
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Page 34 Page 56
) 1 the responsiveness we were seeking. 1 A Yes. | have to meet the director to go Lo a senator's
"] 2 Q (ByMr Parlene) And is that lack of responsiveness 2 office at 10:43, so | have like - probably in about five
3 detailed in your expanded report of examination? 3 minutes [ need o jump out of here.
4 A Muchofiiis, yes. 4 Q Okay,
5 Q Isthere any that's not in there that you recall? 5 A Andthen they promised | can be on first with my
6 A Well what | want 1o qualify is that my interaction on the 6 presentation and then be back here, but it might be a good
7 lach of responsiveness is contained within the repont. The 7 time o break for lunch a1 that 1ime and then come back.
8 director may have his own version of when he looked somebody 8 @ Okav. Do vou wanl Lo go on for five minutes here?
9 in 1he eye and asked for and what he felt he got or didnt 9 A ltsyourcall.
10 gel. And | ihink he has a personal opinion about that that 10 Q  Allright. Let's keep doing it,
] | didn's bring into the report. 11 A That's fine. ’
12 Q Panof your examination was on these good-laith estimates. 12 Q Other thar the names of the individuals you just mentioned -
13 Did you find occasions where good-faith estimates had not 13 Tom Echols. Tom Detelich and Robin —
14 been prepared by Household and not given to consurmers? 14 A Allcock.
13 A W had situations where consumers said they had not gotien 13 @ -- Allcock - are there any other people al Household you
16 their disclosures and the company didn't produce - either 16 dealt with?
17 didn't produce the disclosures for us or in some cases 17 A On the complaints themselves, we primariky interacted with
18 preduced disclosures with bad dates or dates that wouldn't 18 Tom Schneider. and at least at that 1ime | believe the title
19 he in compliance with the requirements. 19 he gave us was dirccior of compliance.
20 Q  Wasthere any statistical analysis done on the complaints, 20 Q@ Andis he physically located in Household headguaners in
21 the |9 complainis vou reviewed, and how many did or did nol | INinois?
22 have pood-faith estimates given to consumers? 22 A Thats where his letters would come from.
23 A lciinsome numbers and | guess you - it's such a smatl 23 Q@ Andswhat was Tom Detelich's itle?
24 population here, | shy away from talking about siatistical 24 A |can'tremember. He's way up. What he's 1old me is. his
25 analysis, bul 1 think | said 1his many of this many -- 25 responsihilities involve oversight of all of the lending
i
’ Pape 33 Page 57
1 Q isex I operations ol §ouschold Realty. Household Finance. and
2 A - uefound ths in, 2 Benreficial.
3 Q  ihd you find that the pood-[aith estimates were routinely 3 Q Sovouwere going to the puys who knew or should have known
4 kept by Househotd? 4 whal the praciices were?
3 MR DUNNE. Objection; vague snd ambiguous and 5 MR DUNNE: Objection to form.
6 also lack of foundanon. 6 Q {ByMr. Parivite} Top guys?
7 A Totha specific question. | don't know. The question | T A Wewnent tothe people who were held oot 1o us as the ones
3 woauld kaow 15 whetler they were produced for us. not whether 8 that contrelied the practices.
9 they were kept by Houschold, 9 Q  Doyou remember what Rolin's - 15 Rebin a man or woman”
10 O {By Mr Parlene) Okay. Tell me aboul the production of 10 A Woman,
11 zood-taith estimates by Household. 11 Q  Dovouremember what her title was?
12 A Asirecall. more eften than not. they produced good-taith 12 A No. | don't remember Robin's title. but it was in the
13 csumatcs for us. We, almost in every case. had probiems i3 complrance section. She inleracted. along with Tom
14 wilh those pood-faith estimates, but whetlier a good-faith td Sehacider, on the complaints with us. | don't specidically
i3 estimite was produced for us and the borrower said they 3 remember her titke
16 didn’t get or it was produced for us but it had a due 16 Q  And you hud mdicated. to compile this report that's in
17 beyond the time period allowed to be delivered 10 the 17 fronl of » ou. you or your investigators had analyzed 19
18 horrower or whether the very content of the good-fanth B claims?
19 estimate was, we felt, was not in compliance with the 19 A !personally went through she 19 complaints in this
20 statute, but | think in a majority of the siluaticas. as | 20 repord -
2t remember - I'H just give you one big apology here. Fhave 21 Q Isew
22 not even llipped through this repon sinee early Junc of 22 A - indetmid | dide't assien these. Some of them had been
23 this vcar. so that's my tecollection at this point in tune 23 previcusly assigned w some of my exarniners, but then | ook
24 ol the guod-taith estimates. 24 them over,
25 Q Chock. you indicated to me you had 16 po 10 a mecting 25 Q  And sourehied primanly on the documentation that was green
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Pape 58 Page 60
1 to you by the complainant and Household? ] identified them?
2 A And1did interview a few consumers. 2 A Dhaven't identified any violations. | have not - 1oday |
3 Q Andthen in addition, you did three tests. You did one, and 3 haven't said anvihing about any violations, Butthere are a
4 two other examiners did one apiece? 4 significant amount of apparent violations contained within
5 A Yes. 3 this report and | don't have time 10 - | can go through
6 Q Anddid you find a geographic distribution of the practices 6 them. but 1 don't have time before we break here to go
7 throughout the United States - throughout the state of 7 through those.
8 Washingion -- 8 Q Arcthose ai! listed in writing in this report?
9 MR. DUNNE: Objection; vague and ambiguous. 9 A Atthetime they were. | would have lo ponder whether
10 Q (By Mr. Parlene) -- that was of interest to you? 10 subsequent there were additional violations or not.
11 MR. DUNNE: It's vague and ambiguous because n MR. PARLETTE: Okay. We'll take a break here.
12 you're not defining what practices you're referring to. i2 {Recessed at 10:40 a.m.)
13 Go ahead, please. 13 {Recanvened at 12:05 p.m.)
14 A The complaints, of course, were geographically distributed, 14 @ (By Mr. Parlened Chuck. the question [ think immediately
15 and ['m not sure to what degree you're looking for. But | 5 priot to that was, | was asking you for your conclusions
16 believe | want to say six of the 19 complaints were from 16 about discovering any common patterns or practices and we
17 Betlingham, so they had the buik of the complainis, and the 17 pot into iF aH those that vou discovered were in your
18 rest were spattered around the state, but mostly in the 1-5 18 repart. You had indicated. | believe, that your repor was
19 comidor, 19 based upon vour review of 19 complaints.
20 Q (ByMr. Parlerie) Did you review any complaints that were | 200 A Yes.
21 not mentioned in the repont? in other words, were there 21 Q  Did vou review complainis other than the 197
22 complaints that came in cn top of the 19 in Febreary or 22 A VYes
23 March of 20027 23 Q  Anddid you believe those |9 complaints were representative
24 A There were complaints before and after these 19 that | 24 or tvpical of the ones thar yvou received?
25 chese. for one reason or ancther, not to include -- 23 MR, DUNNE- Objection: vague and ambiguous,
Page 39 Page 61
I Q |se I A They were representative of many of the complaints we had
2 A - nthereporl 2 received at corlivr limes and were very, very similar 1o
3G Sothes didwinfloente your findings in any wa? 3 complainis we received subsequent tothe date of the report.
4 A Well no. They influenced. The volume of complaints was a 40 QB Mr. Pirleney Okay, Now, while we were all at a break
3 direct inNuence [ had to choose a cutofT point at some 5 {or lunch, [ went over the document that was produced this
6 port  time, So the subsequent complains weren't because 6 moming as LLshihit A, And withoul any afTirmation that my
7 they didn'y carry snerit becavse | had 5o derive a cutoff 7 COUNE Was QUCUNULC, MY TEVIEW WaS in any way accurate, il
8 he ones prior 1o these complaints would have been not 8 looked to mo like this list that you gave us staned
9 included beeause they were older or. 11 certain situations, G somuwhere incarls 20010 We have a date reccived column.
10 complaints prior and during this period of complains were 10 and | didn't sve any complaints againss Mouschold or
11 refated more 10 |ust. say, a specific servicing issuc. 1t Beneficial that predated March of 2001,
12 Mavhe somebady is compiaining that they didn't pet their 12 A That's bucause this s a list of open complaints.
13 payoll statement or something like that, So | would look at 15 ¢ Okay. And so it would not be aotal list of all complaints
14 those. but then. vou know. not include them because they 14 received since 19987
15 weren't relevant 1o the practices we were idemilying, They 15 A No
16 would have been additional smalier recurrence of pracrices 16 Q Andhow we could estimate that number would be to ook ai
17 that | didn't want to muddy the waters with. V7 your Exhibil 2 and in there [ think you recited in 1998
18 Q Right. Based upon your review of the materisls supplicd by I8 against Houwschold, not including Beneficial. you've recewved
19 Household and the complaints that were (ied by consumers, 19 12; in 1999 ¢ight: in the year 2000, 7; and some through
20 vour investigations, and your discussions with consumers and 20 20017
21 I tousehold representalives. did you discover any common 2 A Um-hmm - s Well, 22 in 2001,
22 patterns or practices of Household that would constitue 22 Q 22in 2004
23 violations of ledesal or siate law or your own repulations? 23 A Andthen 13 us ol the date of this repont in 2002,
24 A Yes 24 Okay  And those complaings that don'l appear in Exhibit A
25 Q  Would you identify those please or have we aheads 25 here that were received in 98,99, and 2000, we can assume
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Page 62 Page 64
1 were acted upon and ctosed? s that — ! same complaimt or two differem Nelsons. Pemberion. Sman.
2 A Yes. Theyre no longer - yeah. They would have been pi I see threc Nelsons an here. There could be - it's possible
3 closed. 3 there's some double counting in here. Yeah. | think -
4 @ Okay, And!wantto ask you if this is an approximate 4 well, | don't know. Nelson is such 2 commen name. There
5 number, from your knowledge, if you've got it. I 1allied up 3 could be some double counting in here. ) just apologize.
[ what was in Exhibit A here against Household from the time 6 We're convening svstems and ending up with a Jot of strange
7 frame - well, as you state, are open, and | came up with 7 info.
g approximately 94 complaints. Does that sound like & — 8 Q You just reviewed the Household?
9 A Was it Household, or Household and Beneficial? 9 A Just the Househald. You know. this was causing me concern
10 Q Just Household. 10 when 1 looked - when { said Acosta because | thought tha:
11 A Just Houschold. n was a Beneficial complaini. it's carried wider Household
12 MR, DUNNE: Objection to form. 12 here and | just flipped over to Beneficial and it's carried
13 A It sounds about tight. | remember there being about, | want | 13 there under Beneficial. | believe that is a Bereficial
14 10 say, 240 complaints for the two companies since 2000, 14 complaine. |t probably just got logged into both places.
15 some number like thal. 1 ran the number for the direcior at 13 Meed 10 be a litthe carelul with 1his report.
16 some prior point in time. Yeah, Your count sounds like 16 Q And the ones that vou've just iterated would be done
17 iU's in 1he ballpark. | can get you an exact count at some 17 subsequent 10 your expanded repon of examination™
18 potnt in time, 1t's just our systems are kind of weird 18 A Well. some of them are pan of the expanded repen., Sman.
19 right now. 19 Twao or threc of them here were part of it
20 Q (ByMr. Parlente) ifthat's not too much trouble, what | 20 Q@ Allright.
21 would like to do is have you send that 1o me and { can give 21 MR, DUNNE: Cun b ask vou o read back, the st of
22 a copy 10 Mr. Dunnc and just supplement this record with 22 name 1o me, piease.
23 that number? 23 THE COURT REPOREER: "Bawes. Acosta. Byers. Byington.
24 MR, DUNNE: I'm not geing to agree to that. | 24 Figueroa. Gusman, Luna Moore. Nelson, Pemberton, Smart "
25 object 10 the procedure. 25 Q (By Mr. Parletie) Now, Chuck. veu were shout 16 get into
Puge 63 Page 63
1 Q (ByMr Parfette) You can give il ta me. and he doesn’ | the common pattems or practices that you did discover. And
2 want a copy 2 you had listed seven of them earlier in your deposition.
3 MR. DUNNE: I'li take a copy, but you can't 3 Those are siaring in vour expanded repon al page 44. is
4 supplement the record. the deposilion thal you're iehing, 4 that a corvect slaterneni?
3 MR.PARLLTTE. Fine 3 A 43 on the typugraphical error one. Lel me fook at this one
6 A Yeaho | might ash vou fo send me an e-manl 10 remind me 6 and see what's on page 44, Well, it's page 43 on both of
7 breause -« 7 them,
& Q (ByMr Parlette) Remind you. veah &8 Q While we were tatking. your secretary brought in a new
9 A --thimes are a linle crazy night now. 9 docuinent and ler's mark that Exhibit C. | had asked for one
16 Q And |l understand the office is poing 10 move? 10 with other thing, | guess your vitac or your --
11 A Theoffice witt move. yeah. 11 A I'msory.
12 Q Which wili make it even crazier” 12 @ That's all nght.
13 A Yeah. Wc're nit moving until March. so . .. 13 MR. PARLETTE: Lets mark this Exhibit C, the one
14 Q Thenumber 1 counted for Beaeficial on Extubit A here was 14 thal was jusi brought in
[ 55 Does tiu sound approximaiely right? 1t would be -- 15 (EXHIBIT NO. C MARKED}
16 A It doesn't surprise me. 16 Q (ByMr. Parlette) Could you identify Exhibit C for us,
17 Q  And of the ones that are in this Exhibit A. have vou 17 piease?
18 reviewed any of those. the ones that are open? {8 A Thisis the Washington Depaniment Financial Institutions
19 A Do you mind if Flook at u? 19 Expanded Report of Examination for Househeld Finance
20 Q@ Yeah. Goahead and look af it. 20 Corporaton I41 as of April 33, 2002, hopefully minus minor
2i A Some ol the naimes might jump oul at me. | might have looked 21 typographical errors.
22 a1 Bates, Acosta Byers ! lvoked at. Byington | looked at. 22 @ Are the substantive comments or messages identical with
23 1thank I looked a1 Freoeroa. possibly Guzman. 1think 23 Exhibit B?
24 Guzman Luna Moore { think [ looked at. Nelson There's 24 A Yes. Absolutely nothing was changed except for, just 1o
23 more (han one Nelsan here, so | don't know if that's the 25 give you an example. tn the header "corporation” is
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Page 66 Page 68
1 misspelled. It's corrected in this one. 1 arguments provided by both sides. And what this establishes
2 Q Okay. 2 is. there was a significant amount of misrepresentations and
3 A Fewtypos here and there like thal. 3 promises made that were not followed through with consumers.
4 Q Isthe pagination the same. Do you know? 4 Where this could becomne a fitle confusing is thai this
5 A Happeared 1o be. At first | thought from the page number 5 specific pattern didn't carry forward into the multistate
6 you're calling off it wasn't. When ! laoked, both of those 6 that gverybody seems to be so farniliar with. 1t's - there
7 began on page 43. 7 isn'l a specific - for example, there isn't a specific
§ Q Okay. 8 viplation identified in the Consumer Loan Act of failed
9 MR. DUNNE: Well, your pagination differs from my g promiscs. We have a gencral catchall that refers to
10 version by a page, which is also — 10 deceptive practices, representations, and so forth. So
I THE WITNESS: Or possibly his because he was not 1 that's where [ was penerally heading with this section.
12 on 44 as well. 12 What | was attempling to do was captere this patern that we
13 MR. PARLETTE: Mine starts on 43. 13 were hearing from consumess of what was promised 10 me was
14 MR, DUNNE: It's not in the same place as this. 14 nol what | get.
15 A Well, I'm going to wager a wild guess on his. You did not 15 Q Okay. Inageneral sensc?
3 get that report from me. | don't know where you got it 16 A Inapgeneral scnse. yeah.
17 Q (ByMr. Parletie) Right. 17 Q@ And the specific promises might have been identified as -
I8 A Butyou didnt get it from me, so that could account for the 18 can you pive us examples of specific promises?
19 pagination issues. 19 A Interest rate was the most - well, was one of the most
20 Q Okay. Let's-- 20 oceurring failed prormises. a lower interest rate than the
21 MR. DUNNE: Not on mine because | did get it pal hotrowers obtained. The other really majer area was
22 THE WITNESS: Did you get it from me or our 22 prepayment penaltics. that the borrowers felt they wouldn't
23 anomey? 23 hiave a prepayment penally and they actually did.
24 MR, DUNNE: Well | don't know whether § got it 24 Q Okay. And vour second patiern or practice that you
25 directly or indirectly from DFL. 25 discovered?
Pase &7 Page 69
1 Q (By Mr Parlene) Let's stay with one document, and et's 1 A Confusion over rates, points, and fees.
2 use the one thal your seerelary just brought in. Exhibn . 2 Q ‘Thatson of overlaps insofar as you mentioned rales with
3 A Okay. 3 the number one that we just discussed?
4 Q Would you tumn 1o the page where the identified parterns of 1 MR. DUNNE: Objection: lcading,.
5 complaint history stant being discussed 5 A Number one could carry ~ number one son of sets the 1one
6 A Inmy document that's pape 43, In hoth documents (i ) 6 for all of the other patterns to follow. Without number
7 brought in here. itvs pape 43 7 one, none of the other patterns likely would have been in
8 Q And thal is encoptioned - the paragraph is encaptioned 8 existence. So beginning with number two, it gels more
9 identified patierns in recent complaints < complant 9 specific down 1o aciual sort of types or events instead of
10 history? 10 just general misleading practices, which number one
11 A Complaint history. yes. 11 caplures. So as | said previously, rales, yeah.
12 Q Tmwith you. Allright. Now. the first one that v ou 12 Misrepresentation on rates, number two talks specifically
13 identilicd was whai”? 3 about rates.
14 A Misrepresentations and [aled promses. 14 Q (ByMr. Parleue) Okay. Expand. il you wouid, please, how
15 Q Could you summarize for us what that constsued”! 15 consumers were misled about their interest rate that 1hey
16 MR, DUNNE: Arc you asking ftim 1o sumnirize the 16 were |0 have received,
17 contents of (hat section of the report? 17 A Wehad--
18 MR PARLETTT: What he meant by misreprescalanions 18 MR, DUNNE: Objection, leading.
t9 and failed promises. 19 A Weidentified a specific pattern in Washinglon State but
20 A Give me just a moment to look a1 thes apain 20 also clear across the country. And | say identified,
21 Q (By Mr. Parletie) Okay. Thisis - 21 reported to us by reguiators across the couniry, a
22 A Thisis a general capturing of a combination of bumuwery 22 solicitation practice referred to under two different names,
23 representation of what transpired in their transacunn or 23 One was an effective rate solicilation practice. The other
24 representation to the Department of what transpired m their 24 wiss the equivalent imerest rate solichation practice. As
23 ransaction and my review of the complaints based on 25 far as § was able to tell, effective and equivalent are
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Page 70 Page 72
) | incrchangeable 1eems in how they were used. ! expanded report, how many of those contained a complaint
i 2 Fhe practice was 1o lead borrowers 1o belicve that 2 that the interest rate was nol what was represented?
3 their interest rate was going 1o be roughly half of what the 3 A Letmelook here. 1t might take me a moment to find,
4 inlerest rate really was on the contract. And the most 4 Q That the contract inlerest rate was not what was represented
5 often cxample that we saw was an interest rate - 2 3 to them,
6  contractual interest rate of 14 percent being misrepresented 6 A ldoniknow. Ithink it's somewhere in this report. but
7 10 consumers as being an effective ralc of 7 percent, so 7 it's a fairly lengthy report. And 1 can’t remember where
B haif of the 14 percent. This was sold, if you wiil, to 8 I - 1 will answer the question by saying that if]
9 borrowers through what is known as the E-Z Pay Plus Plan. 9 identified it, it's contained in the report. Andifirs
10 We found the E-Z Pay Plus Plan 1o be consistent with the 10 not, then 1 didn't identify it, but | seem to remember
il cffective or equivalent rate solicitation practice. That | counting how many in cach category. l1's just not jumping
12 it - there are different vehicles under the E-Z Pay Plus 12 out &t me right here.
13 Plan. Two of them are the biweekly plan where payments are 13 Q Okay. Lel me ask this question: Has the Depariment. on all
14 made every other week and then the bimonihly plan where 4 1he complaints that have been filed 1o date, done a
13 payments are made twice a month, say on the Estand 13th of 13 statistical analysis of how many then contain a complaint
16 every month. i6 that she interest rate was notl as represented?
17 In 2 nuishell. borrowers were either told or shown 17 A No.
i8 sometimes graphically that because they were making pavments 18 © Could that be done?
19 wice as often, if you will. 1hat their interest rate was 19 A Intime it could be done. 1t won't be done anytime scon,
20 effectively cut in half. 20 i't1 tell vou that, because we're 630 complaims behind
21 @ (By Mr. Parlente) [id you ever hear any S10T4€s or sec any 21 right now.
22 complaints where it was summarized just that simpty. that 22 Q s itpossible to pet a copy of those individual compiaint
13 your rate. if you went on E-Z Pay Pius, would be half of 23 forms that were filed by consumcers?
21 what it would be normatiy? 24 A MNotat this lime.
25 A What we had was cxampies of amontization tables where 13 Q) Whyisthat?
i
‘ Page 11 Page 13
! horrosvers were shown what would happen. and the tables would | A Thevre protecied  That's what our Assistant Attarncy
2 carry. Tor example. a 6.9 percent rate or a 7 perceni ate 2 General says. ali of those files are protecied under the
3 And it would be a diagram 10 show borrowuers that by paving 3 injunction.
4 more. thereby reducing their interest, (hey acheved this 4 Theinjunction purporiedly protects Household trade scereis”
3 elfective lower rale. so we siw documentation we feh 5 A Thars my understanding. Again. thal case has been
6 clearly suppored that. 6 compictely handled by an Assistam Artorney General and
7 ¢ Did you consider that represeniation 1o be false and 7 iU's - 1t's a side issue that 1 - just really hasn't been of
8 misleading’ B much concern or intercsl to me one way of the other
$ A Dclinitely. Y {3 TRaght Irs of major interest 10 me because 1 would like 1o
10 Q The use of the lerm “effective interest rate” or "equivalent 10 et my hands on those complaint forms and do & statistical
t inlerest rate.” was that ever used in the context of the LE analvsis. Can you - strike the queslien.
12 Internal Revenue Tax code? In other words. a sepresentation 12 Your understanding is, il were lo make a public
13 made 1o consumers that their effective interest rane woeuld 13 disclosure request for them. you could disclose them 1o me.
14 be lower because they would save money on their ianes and a 14 but for Floustho'd's restraining order or preliminary
13 calculation to support that? 15 injunetion?
16 A Notihat ] remember. 16 MR. DUNNE: Objection: iack of foundation. calls
17 Q Okay. So from your memory, the effective or equivalent 17 for a fegal optnion.
18 interest rale was in connection with the E-Z Pay Plus Plan? 18§ A Now that the investigation is closed. some of them § could
19 A In connection with the amortization - expected amortizatton 19 disclose to you. Thosc that we did not feel fell within the
20 results under the B-Z Pay Plan, Not in every sttuation 20 parameters of the consent decree thiat was just achieved
21 Mot every consumer came back and said, | was shewnan 21 woubd silf be considered open investigative matiers and
2 amortization labic where my interest rate would be dower 22 prolecied as such umxler 42,17, These 1hat were part of
23 Many of thern just reported that their rate was supposed to 23 the - we felt were part of the clements of the consent
24 he hatf of whal it really was. 24 decree, noay that thal matier has been brooght o a
25 Q Chay Ofthe 19 complaints specifically analyzed i your 23 resolution, could be disclosed because they're no longer
)
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Page T4 Page 76
™~
I part of the open investigation. i I'm not sure.
2 @ (ByMr. Parletie) What would be the cutoff date on those 2 Q Have vou reviewed raining manuals that were provided to you
3 ones that would be included in the investigative - 3 by Houschold?
4 A Realesiaw mortgage transactions that originated between 4 A lhave
5 January 1999 and September 30th, 2002, would be 53 Q Did you see anything in those training manuals thal
6 discloseable, if not for the injunction. 6 discussed effective interest rate or eguivalent interest
7 Q@ Before we digressed, we were off on this effective interest 7 rate or how to calculawe it?
8 rate being different than the contract rate. ls it your 8 MR, DUNNE: I'm going Lo object %0 having him
9 belief, Mr. Cross, that the majority of those complaints 9 teslify to the contents of docurnents that we don't have
10 contained a complaint that the cffective - excuse me, that 10 here.
11 the contract rate was nol as represented? 11 A 1don believe that | found that contained. specific
12 MR. DUNNE: Could | have the question read back, 12 comtent material for effective or equivalent interest rates.
13 please? 13 within the training manuals.
14 THE COURT REPORTER: Question: "Before we 14 @ (ByMr Parlene} I'm going to hand you a document which
15 digressed, we were off on this effective interest rate being 13 was produced by Melissa Rutland-Drury under subpoena at her
16 different than the coniract rate. s it your belief, 16 aborted deposition of tast week as Exhibit B and draw your
17 Mr. Cross, that the majerity of those complainis comaineda 17 auention 1g - stick vour finger here in the document. It's
18 complaint that the effective - excuse me, that the conract 18 perhaps the first ten or 13 pages of that,
19 rate was not as represented?" 10 A Seyou don't want me o stan here. You want me 1o stan
20 MR. DUNNE: Obijection; mislcading, vague and 20 before that?
21 ambiguous as to which complaints you're referring 1o. 21 Q Right. Start at the beginning. My question 1o you is. have
22 Q (By M. Parlette) Okay. Let me clarify that. I'm 22 vou seen any of this information before?
23 referring 1o all complaints which you have personally 23 MR. DUNNE. While you're Jooking through that. I'm
24 reviewed that were filed against either Beneficial or 24 just going 10 say 1hat this document is the subject of
25 Household. | want 10 know if the majority of those. from 13 matien for protectise order that's presentiy pending before
; _
- Page 73 Poge 77
! your mentory, comained complaints that the interest rate was | the court. so | would ask that the coun reporter designate
2 not as represented by the Household representatives. 2 this portion of the transcript as confidential,
3 A My answer 1o that is, | don't know, but a significant number 3 MR PARLETTE: For the record. Mr, Dunni and 1 arg
4 of them were, Majority is & - sort of pushes me 10a 4 in an ongoing dispute about whether or not this can be
5 specific number. A significant number were. | continue 1o 3 mrotected. I'm representing |'ve not shown it to anyone,
6 look through here looking for the numbers for you. But 6 other than attwmeys in my Himm or aliormeys working on this
7 being a cautinus sort, [ would stop shon of saying a 7 case. but | am using it in purpose of this deposition with
8 majarity. [t might not be a majority, but it was definitely 8 Mr. Cross hecause presumably he's the chief state
9 a significant number. 9 investigator Tor this.
10 Q And in your eves, what would be a significant number? 16 MR. DUNNLE: That's fing. | don't have an
It A aAbunch Youknow, | apologize. You're asking me a very El ohjection 10 using it for purpeses of liigation witha
12 specific question to which [ can't give a very - enough that 12 deposition witness.
i3 it made it in as the number two issue of identified 13 A | have seen versions of three of the pages that you have
14 patterns. |\ became one of the most significam areas of 14 showed to me. The others, [ haven'y seen before. | did
15 resolution in the consent degree and would definitely have 13 subpocna from Hausehold alt of the training materials. and
16 been cause for us to file very significant charges under the 16 haven't seen those other papes.
17 Consumer Loan Act, . 17 Q  (By Mr. Parlenie) Ler's po through it and identity
18 Q Did you sce any - in your review of malerials that were 18 spectlically the pages thin vou have seen before,
19 reviewed by you, did you see any documentation that 19 A The pages identified as 3 and 4, which are --
20 liousehold employees had been wrained to use the effective 200 Q  Theyre nolin sequential order, so let’s read the caplion
2 interesr raie or equivaleat interest rale as a sales pitch? 21 ofit.
22 A Specific documentaion? 22 A -7 Pay Plus Loen proposal for Fred Lombard, 1've never
23 ¢ Um-hmm 23 seen this document for Fred Lombard, but | have seen it for
24 A |sawdocumentation relative to or supportting this pitch, 24 a couple of other consumers. It looks the same, ust bad
25 but whether it wag documentation intended Lo train or niol. 23 sumebody « a differeal person’s name at e lp of 1t
}
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et

Page 73 Page BD

| Q lsthisthing known as the homeowner loan proposal? 1 11 perceni - §1.96 30-vear loan.

2 MR. DUNNE: Objection: Yack of loundation. 2 In your investigation, did you come across anything

3 @ {ByMr Parlene) Do you know? 3 that would confirm thal the Household representatives in

4 A )belicve the Siate of New York referred 1o it in that way, 4 Bellinghamn were trained by others outside Bellingham 10 do

5 but Fve ncver heard anybody at the company refer to it that 5 this, this equivalent interest rate comparison.

6 way. 6 MR, DUNNE: Objection: misstates the record,

7 Q Okay. 7 Missiates the contents of the leher.

8 A The page directly behind that, which is identified as E-Z 8 MR. PARLETTE: The letter wilk speak for itself.

9 Pay Plus with Right Rewards Loan Proposa) for Fred Lombard, 9 MR. DUNNE: You won't find those words in the
10 I've seen a version of this for a different consumer. And 10 lenter,
11 wo pages forward. the hlended rate presentation. 1 have 11 A Can you ask me juss that last pant of the guestion again?
i2 secn. | belicve this - actually. | believe this document 12 Q {ByMr. Parletie} Yeah. Have you found anything in your
13 was included in the training materiats, 13 review of the documentation that was sent lo you by
14 Q N was? 14 Household or produced by Household that shewed or confirmed
15 A 1believe that it was. | believe that's where 1 saw i, was 13 that Houschold hod 1rained the people in the Bellingham
16 in the training materats. 16 office o use the equivalent interest rate comparison®?
17 Q Okay. 17 MR. DUNNE: Same objection. Equivalent interest
18 A Butif my memory serves me. this is the only page | remember 18 rale Comparison is vague and ambiguous. It's not what this

19 from the books of training materiats that | received. 19 letter talks about.
20 Q@ WNow. lel's po through the ones you had net seen before. 20 Q {(By M. Parlene) Do you nnderstand what I'm saying?
2} Let's start a1 the beginning. Had you scen this letter from 21 A lunderstand. veah. With the exception of the one docurnent
22 Lori Gale addressed 10 Cratg Castalin which is on the from 22 1 saw in their waining materials. 1 would have 1o say no. |
23 of Exhibi B? 23 wasn'l provided with ans documeriation from - | wani 10
24 A 1dont believe so 1don'l recognize ber name. 24 qualify that by saying. 1o the extent that that
25 @ Would vou tahe a moment and read that letter. 25 documemation belong< with these training malerials, |
Page 79 Page 81

I A Tomyscll? t wasn't - | don’1 semember being provided anything directly

2 Q Ycoh 2 by Household that showad that 1he loan officers had been

3 A Iwereadu 3 trained in this way

4 MR. PARLETTE Okay. Belore we gel the record 4 Q Okay. Neaw how doyou read Lori Gale's Setier?

3 confused here. dets mark this as Exhibit D 3 MR DUNNE: Objection: vague and ambiguous. Calls
6 MR, DUNNLE 10 you hiave a copy for me. Bob! [} for a narrative.

7 MR PARLETTE. [ sormy. | don't. Dan, 7 A Are vou asking what &5 my impression”

R MR. DUNNE, Can i read it? & Q (ByMr Parfeue) Yes

9 MR PARLETTLE Sure, You bet. 9 MR, DUNNL Smme objections,

10 Q (By M Parlenie) Have vou read that lester? 10 A My first impression 1s that [ didn't do a very pood

P A 1justread the letter. ves 1 investigation. which 1< a hittle bt embarrassing for me,

12  Had vou seen that lener before? 12 because § hadn't seen shis document before and there was a
13 A No. 13 point in vime that | would have foved to have seen this

14 Q Intha lenier bon Gale purports to say that when she way 14 documeni, [t supporis - to me. 1t independertly suppons

15 transferred 10 1he Belhngham office in June of 2000. a 13 what | found by review g he foan files and talking to

16 couple davs tater she was shown by Sieve Tumer of Household 16 consumers. |t has. tor much of it until vou get towards

17 ways to sell cur buwveekly program. Do vou know who Steve 17 the end where she starts savimg that her borrowers always

18 Turaer 15? 18 undersiood the contrict rate. unwl you gel to (hat point.

19 A No. ldon' 19 it's pretty much what § Jound and what my examiners reponed
20 € She poeson 1o say that subsequently & gentleman by the mame 20 10 me and what Dan Gallatin {rom Minnesela reported. svhat
21 of Eric Reault in August came 1o the office 1o do his rehet’ 21 Ben Bruce from New York reported. and Ann Gauliney from
22 assipnment. and he showed additional ways to show the 22 Michipan. and the sames just o on and on and on.

23 amortization schedule The eonclusion that she draws is 23 Sor it - so manm of us reached this opinion about what

24 that we were trimned 10 use this wmontization schedule 24 was taking place with the nerest rale misrepreseniation

23 compirrison of i 30-vear 7 percent loan to a she says. a 23 that | believe very strongly (hat we had it figored eut, bt
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Page 82 Page 84
' ) ] we al} figured it out independently and didn't know this l of a couple of lean products, just by looking at the surface
. until we came together and started talking. Now, I'm seeing 2 of it.
k) a document from 2 year and a half ago that seems 10 say much 3 Q Boihk loan products bear the same inferest rate though. do
4 of what 1 found on my own, so .. . q4 they ni? One is paid biweckly: the other is conventional
5 Q (ByMr. Parletie) Would you read this document as an 3 10-year, once-a-month mortpape?
[ admission by, at jeast Lori Gale, a Household employee, that 6 A Yeah. Iunderstand that. ! jusl want 1o make sure of the
7 they utilized this eftective imerest rate comparison te 7 ene I'm locking al. That's the way it appears without --
£ confuse customers? [ MR. DUNNE: Objeciion: lack of foundation.
9 MR. DUNNE: Objection; leading. S Q (ByMr. Parlette} Had you seen that document before?
10 A 1 would be careful about doing that only because I've never 10 A [ haven't seen this document befare,
11 met Lori Gale and it's not signed, you know. I'man H Q Mis-
12 investigator, and | try 1o Stay as neutral as | can while 12 A The only reason 1 hesitate is. if 1 pulfed out a calculator.
13 I'm conducting an investigation. So other than vou have 13 | could probably answer your goestion. but | don’t know
14 given me this document. | don't know anything about it. 5o 14 cxactly that the 11.99 percent runs across these lines.
15 depending on how it came into my possession and whether | 13 Q Aliright
16 had some other support (o il. yeah, | defimitely would use 16 A This appears to be a newspaper anticle. "Biweekly Loans Save
17 it. If I could relv on the content ol it, ves. But | don't 17 Maney.”
S know if I can rely on the content of k. I8 Q Have you seen that anicie before?
19 Q) {ByMr. Parleite) Fair answer, 19 A Notihat ] recall.
20 Turning 1o the other docurmems that you had nos seen 20 Q Could youake a minute and read that. please”?
21 previously, would you idemify which ones vou had ot scen. 21 A Ircad it fast, bul I've read 11
22 A The next page is calicd s1eps o finding equivalent interest 22 MR. DUNNE: | would like to read st please.
23 rate, 1 don'l remember secing that document. 23 hefore you ask any questions
24 Q What does that purport to be. the steps to finding -- 24 {Document passed. )
25 MR. DUNNE: Objection: lack ol loundation, Wha's 23 MR, DUNNE: Okay
) Page 83 Page 83
' the point of that question”? Bob. 've got o 1ot of 1 Q (ByMr. Parlenie) At the top under the paper clip there
2 questions to ash. 2 appears 1o be a fax - 1 don’t knuwe whint you call iy,
3 MR. PARLETTE: Okay. 3 A Header.
4 MR, DUNNE: Do ihe deposition. but 4 Q Header, right. How do you resd that (ax header?
5 Q  (ByMr. Parlette) Go aheid. 3 MR, DUNNE: Objection 10 lorm. Do you want him 1o
6 A it has some caleutations on 1L 1hat seem o refer how 1o po 6 read the documen numbers into the reeerd?
7 abous, as it savs, finding the hiweckly payment and number 7 MR, PARLETTE: |want 1o krow how he interprets
R of biweekly payments and su forth  Jt uppears 1o bea ] lhe fax header.
9 calcutation for coming up with something relative (o the P MR DUNNE: Lack of Toundation. Objection to
10 biwcekly payment propram. It's identified. finding 10 form.
B equivalent interest rate. but the equivaient - the word 11 A luappears 1o have a date, April Sth, 2001, a time of 1306,
12 cquivalent 1sa't defined on here anywhere. 12 which s military. 1t would be [:06. [ have no idea what
13 0 Okay. What's the nex1 document? 13 the next designation 5. which is an FR. The next says HFC,
14 A Biweckly payments/3A 33 is the namwe of the documemt 1’5 a 14 which if 1 was examining Houschold. | would sec HFC all the
15 combination of typewritien stull and hand-serolivd numbers (3] ume, su HFC is shom for Flousehold Finance Corporation,
16 upon it 16 Alier that, a series of numbers. T den’t know what those
17 Q@ Have you ever seer anything that looked like that”? 17 numbers mean, Then there appears (o be i telephone number
I8 A Never seen this before. 18 that fades of¥ the page.
19 @ Okay. 19 Q@ Would you presume. as an examiner, that that is something
20 A MNextpage s a Schwab Mutual Fund Select List appears 1o 20 that was sent by HFC or rectived by them or do you know?
21 have come from the Intemet from probably Schwab, Chasles 21 MR, DUNNI: Objection: lack of toundation.
22 Schwab’s Web site would be my puess. 22 A I 1was standing in a Household branch and | found this
23 (Q Okay. 3 documen, | winld assume thal maybe 1L had come there, 1)
24 A Nextonc is identified o5 $100,000 loan at 11.99 pervent 24 was - if 1 was - again. it all depends on he contact. 1
25 principal pav-down companison. This elearly 15 a companson 25 can'l say 1here aren’l other FIFC's somewhere.
/
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Page B Page 88
j b Q (ByMr Parletie) Right. Inthe - as you read that 1 Q (ByMr Parlertc) Okay. Allright, Lower down in that
T newspaper article, which purponts to be from USA Today, | 2 same Exhibit D, there's a page that entitled Calculate
3 couldn't figure out the date miyself, how did you read that? 3 Effective Rate. Had you seen that page before?
4 What conclusion did you arrive from that? 4 A No.
5 A Well, my conclusion is that this guy may know what he's 5 Q And] had earlier asked you a question aboul whether
6 talking about in the general context of what we know to be 6 effective rate, from your review or examination. was in any
7 biweekly payment plans. But in the comext of this case, he 7 way connected with tax brackets. and you, | believe.
8 doesn't have it right and that's becanse Household uses two 8 answered no, you hadn't scen that or heard about that,
9 terms, biweekly and bimonthly. What he describes here as a 9 A Well, you asked il | had specifically heard that wn relation
10 biweekly is really what Household would call a bimonthly, 10 10 iy Household --
11 Q When he says that the 12 percent mortgage described in the 11 Q Right
12 contents of that article has an effective interest rate of 12 A --case. No. Are you asking generally if | ever heard of
13 7 - | can't remember the number - 7.6, is he correct in thai 13 effective rate connected with -
14 ar can you follow his logic? 14 Q@ No.no. In connection with Household. your examination.
15 MR. DUNNE: Objection to form. 15 A No. | don't remember there cver being a conneciion with
16 A 1 follow his logic. He has what | consider to be a very 16 taxes and effective with Houschold.
17 sirong qualifier in here, which is the term "yielding an 17 Q Toyour knowledge, they've never produced such an effective
18 cffective interest rate,” which jcaves me and anyone with 18 rate calculation using the 1ax bracket that I've shown you
19 any financial training with a different perception than jJust 19 here in 1his?
20 using the tenm "effective intcrest rate.” Here he's talking 20 A Notio my knowledge.
21 about comparing mathematical results and sort of drawing a 21 MR. DUNNE: Produced to whom?
22 conclusion from that, so 1 definitely follow what he's 2 MR. PARLETTE: Tothe Depaniment.
23 saying. 1'm not exactly sure how to answer your question. 23 Q  (By Mr. Parlente) And now finally, have you seen a page
24 Given - | don't know who he is or what he does. 1 he's 34 encaptioned Calculate Tax Saving?
25 just some guy that writes articles to help people understand 25 A 1dom'trecall sceing a poge bke that.
) Puue K7 Pape 30
| thines. 1 don't have a problemn with what he savs. H he win I Q  Aliright. |Let's put that buck togethey. Was the -
2 one of my licensees. | would probably tell him 1o be 1 believe vou suid the effective or cquivalent interes rate
3 cautious about that kind of a delivery of a message. 3 sales program was found in several other stales?
4 Q@ (ByMr Pardene) Okay. Do you kaow if Houschold used thin o+ MR, DUNNE: Objection: vague and ambiguous ang
3 article and sent it out to their branches? De vou have any 3 leading.
6 knowledgpe of that? 6 A bwaslold that
7 A MNoknewledpe. 7 Q (B Mr Parletie) Okav. Doyou know how many states?
B Lel'stum to the next page. 8 MR, DUNNE: Samwe objections: fack of foundation.
9 A HMow 1o explain effective rate 1o cusiomess. ! don't beheve Y A No. ldon't know how many. but Thnow that 1 was told that
19 I've seen this belore. in by at least 1310 20 stares.
11 Q Okay. It 4} (By Mr. Parlcue) In the state of Washington. do you have
12 A Thisoneiscalied App & Snap. That doesa't ring a bell 12 an opinion abou how many branch offices were utihizing this
13 wilh me. 13 sales pitch?
4 Q Okay. 4 A No
15 A This - actually, § should have said 1 do think Vve seen 13 Doxyou have an opinion whether it was the majoraty of them
6 this bold page, selling first rongages. | think this might 16 A No. |just don't - 1 don't have an opimon xbot i1
17 be a major sceetion in one of the manuals [ looked a1 1t 17 ¢ Do you have an opinien that 1t was more than just
18 looks Tamiiiar, but W's a - just appears 10 be like a breal. 18 Bellingham?
19 page for something, for a chapier or something like that 19 A Yes
20 @ Allnght 20 @ Infactthis Lort Gale. if we can believe her letter, says
2§ A The Rate Game. 1 don't think [ have scen the Rate Ganw 21 she knew that other offices were ubilizing it --
22 before. This niexi one has a couple columns. Bark and HFC 22 MR DUNNL: Objection to form. eading. lack of
23 1 haven't seen this one before. 23 foundation
24 MR. DUNNE: I'liake it 24 Q  (By Mr. Purlette) -- s that not true”
25 A The next1wo are the ones I've identified as having scen 25 A bhelieve the leter sard that
)
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PARLETTE (CROSS)
Page 90 Page 92
\) ! MR. DUNNE: The letier speaks for itself. 1 MR. DUNNE: -- Exhibit C?
“- b 2 A Shesays we weren't the only ones. 2 MR. PARLETTE: Pardon?
3 Q (By M. Parletie) Do you know who Craig Castalin is? 3 MR. DUNNE. Exhibit C?
4 A That doesn't ring a bel}. 4 MR. PARLETTE: Yeah.
5 Did you view this equivalent interest rate problem to be the 5 A Thetitle of tha, confusion over rates, points, and fees 1
6 number two in importance when you feferred to it as being 6 would rewrite, if given the opponunity, to what is
7 number two - 7 contained in the first senlence which says, rates, points,
8 MR, DUNNE: I'm going to object to - 8 or fees. What 1 was alempiing to do there was identify
9 MR. PARLETTE: i'm not done with the question. 9 that there’s different lerminology, but it's really rates
10 MR. DUNNE: Go ahead. 10 and points I'm talking about in the section, bui some people
11 Q (ByMr, Parletie) —~ or was it just numbered number two in 11 call them fees.
12 your investigative report? 12 Q (ByMr, Parlene) Okayv. The item three that you have down
13 MR, DUNNE: Objection. Equivalent interest rale 13 on your patiemns, identified patterns, is entitled timely
14 is vague and ambiguous. 14 disclosures?
15 A ¥ was - actually number two comprised three things: 15 A Yes.
' 16 confusion over rates, points, and fees, so it was inclusive 16 Q And this relers to timely disclosures of what facts?
17 in there. So it was - | hesitate to say iU's listed in 17 A Good-faith estimates and Truth in Lending disclosures.
I8 order of priority. | wrote this repert 10 try to clearly 18 Q@ What's a good-faith estimate?
19 paird a picture and the order - the progression of things 19 A A good-faith estimaie 1s a document in a form that is
20 are aligned oftentimes in certain ways so that the reader 20 intended to give burrowers advance nolification of what the
21 can sort of understand how the pattern might unfold mere so 21 costs in the toan are expected 10 be.
22 than just what js more important than something else. 22 Q) Isthis required by federal law?
23 Q ({By Mr. Parlette) Okay. We've talked about rates. s 23 A It is required by both federal und state law.
24 there anything more that you would like to say about the 24 Q And what is the federal law?
25 rales, equivalent rates or effective rate? 25 A Irs RESPA. Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act. and the
)
! Page 91 Page 93
| MR. DUNNE: Objection: calls {or a narrative, 1 regulanon is Regulation X. part 3300.7.
2 A There's 2 whole area of rates and discount puints that were 2  Andthe state faw that requires n?
3 covered in the report and addressed by the multisiates that 3 A RCW 304
34 we haven't latked about here. We haven't 1alked aboul the 4 Wasthis ineffect in year 19997
3 effective or cquivalent rate. 1 had issue with what's known 3 A In 1999 1 was in eflect in the form of a regulation. bt
6 as & matrix of discount points and rates. [ had a strong & was moved into statuie in 2001,
7 issue with that. Now. thal would have heen incorporated 7 @ lsee Anddo you recali the regulation that required the
8 into the effeetive or equivalent rate scenario., bui it was ® good-faith estimate?
9 sort of a stand-atone concern or harm in and of itself. 9 A Doy, Why dont | took nup here. I1's the easy thing 10
10 Q (By Mr. Pariette} And you discuss that more theroughly in 10 do. Sorry. We have a bunch of regulations.
11 this report. We'll et into that. Il Q Yeah. You sure do.
12 A Ithink | might discuss it more thoroughly than anything 12 A 208620
13 else in the repon, 13 Q  And when is the good-faith estimate required to be piven
14 Q@ Now. what about 1he - that relales 1o points charged by H under federal Liw?
i3 Househohd? 15 A Must be delivered within three days of the date of
16 A Discounl points. 16 application.
17 Q Discount points. What abeut fees? You have here confusion 17 Q And ender staie law?
18 over rales. points, and fees. What's the fee conlusion? I8 A Same
19 MR. DUNNE: You're asking him again io recite the 19 (¢ Same. And what di¢ you find was the practice of Household
20 fee confusion that's referred 10 in this 1epon? 20 and Beneficial with respect to the good-faith estimate?
21 MR. PARLETTE: 1 want 10 know what he means by 21 MR. DUNNE: Objection: ne foundatien as to
22 that. 22 Beneficial. The queshion s overbroad.
23 MR DUNNE: What he means when he's talking abow 23O {Bv Mr. Pariene) | widl rephrase the question because your
24 it in the report -- 24 report only does speak 1o Houschold. and limet to Household
23 MR. PARLEITE: Right 25 A { found that in some instances borrowers claim that they
4
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PARLETTE {CROSS)
Page %4 Page 96
T
A H never got their disclosures, and sometimes those disclosures ! same thing at Lakewood. But | wouldn't know this for any
2 were made available for our review by the company. 1 found 2 consumes complaints because | wouldn't have had the
3 at times that the disclosures appear to not exist at all, 3 postmarks from the consumers.
4 were not made available for a review, and the borrowers 4 Q Right. Sotwo of the three tesis that the Department of
L] claimed 10 not be aware of the disclosures. 1 found that in 5 Financial Institutions did, two of those three, you could
6 my origination and in my two examiners' originations that 6 tell that they were backdated, the good-faith estimates?
7 there were not only timing violations, but failure - in cne 7 A Yezh. 1could tell thai the dates were dated at a point in
8 instance, failure to produce any disclosures whatscever, 8 time that would make them appear to be in compliance when
9 zero, absolutely none. With me, the disclosures were just 9 the disclosure clearly was not in compliance. It was late.
10 late; and with my examiner, Pat Hardman, his disclosures 10 Q And you could tell by the postmark on the envelope?
I were late as well. 1} A Yes
12 Q 1believe in your repor, al least one inslance, you 12 Q What else did you 1ake issue with on the good-faith
13 referred 10 the good-faith disclosures being backdated. Is 13 estimates?
14 that a true statement? iI4 A The primary thing that we took issue with was the use of a
15 MR. DUNNE: Objection to form, leading, lack of 15 range of discount points on the good-faith estimate. We
16 foundation. 16 felt, and still feel, that it's a viclation of Reg X, RESPA,
17 A Can you point me towards that section of the repont? 17 1o carry - 10 disclose 1o borrowers the range in the fashion
18 Q {By Mr Pariene) T ] can. Lev's sce. | believe it's on 8 they were disclosing it. Had it been a very namow range,
19 my page 50 relating to your experience in the Bellingham 19 we might have told them 1o knock it off, but we probably
20 office. 20 wouldn't have much as an issue as we did cver the fact that
21 A Under what - give me the paragraph heading. 2} they were enormous ranges between low and high.
22 Q Irs Betlingham branch. Loan originated on August 10. 22 Q Insome cases, were the ranges from zere to --
23 A Okay. ’ 23 A Very high numbers, yeah.
24 Q My page 30. 24 Some high number.
25 A s there a darker heading previous 1o that -- 25 A Yeah,
4 Page 95 Paze 97
1 Q@ Yes I Q@  Implving that there were mstances when Household didn't
2 A - Depanment's Experience -~ 2 charge points?
3 Q Depanment's ¥aperience with HFC Branches. 3 MR DUNNE Objection: leading. vague and
4 A W'spage 36 on mune. + ambiguous.
5 @ Yeah. | noticed the pagination would probably be goofed up 3 0Q 4By Mr Parlene) Weuld that be the inference you would
6 because al -- 6 draw as an exammur?
7 A You have s diffcrent font, it appears. 7 A No The impiication would be that on that speeific
8 Q Ycah right 8 transaction the borrpwer woutd be able to have the loan
9 A Okay. 9 without any ponis
10 Q@ And it would be the third full paragraph down. Loan 10 Q Right
1 originated”? I A iden't want 1o Say its implied that they ever actually did
12 A Oniheentire page? Under Bellingham branch, right there? 12 that.
13 @ Right, right 13 Q@ Okav. | didn'l mike my guestion clear.
14 A Okay. What thiss referring 1o is that the disclosures 14 Your fourth item of vour patiern - idenlilicd pattern
15 were dated fo make them appear as (f they had bren delivered 13 was monthly pavaient wnoum?
16 sogner than they were really delivered. - 16 A Yos
17 @ You use the word "backdated”? 17 Q What did you discovers there?
18 A Yes. Somn bhelicl was the disclosures were nol generaned 18 A Wehad--
9 and put in the mail until August 21st. but they carsied a 9 MR, DUNNI- Again, vou're refersing to whal he
20 date of Avgust 16th. 20 reporied in the report thar's Exhibit €7
21 Q@ lgeiyou Did you find that to be true in any other 21 MR.PARLITITE That's right.
22 instances. cther than vour own experience at the Bellingham 22 A Wehad borrowers that told us that the amount they were
23 office? 23 making. the pavment, wasn'l what they beligved their pavment
24 A ) think with Painck Hardman we saw the same thing  Let me 24 was poing to be. Fhe confusion ofiertimes came under the
| 23 see if we did here. Yeah, Patrick Hardman experienced the 25 form of biweekly or bimanthiv plan where il didn't work how
‘
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PARLETTE (CROSS)

Page 98 Page 100

1 the borrower claimed it was going 1o work. 1 enough.”

2 The most specific one there was Georgia Smart was very 2 THE COURT REPORTER: Answer: "Borrowers don't
3 specific on how the biweekly plan and bimonthly plan worked. 3 know enough about lending transactions to dream these things
4 She was able to describe in good detail in her complaint, 4 up out of their own heads. So if a borrower specifically

5 which indicated she knew - she had questioned and gotien the 5 stales il was to include my taxes and insurance, you know,

6 answers and knew what she was talking about enough 10 be & my experience is a borrower's been told thal by somebody.”

7 able to make il clear to me in her writien complaint that 7 MR. DUNNE: Thank you.

8 she understood how these programs worked. And she was 8 Q (ByMr. Parlerie) Mr. Cross, did you [ind written instances
9 adamam that she was supposed o received a biweekly plan, 9 in the documents vou reviewed where Household compared the
10 but she really received a bimenthly plan, which effectively 10 monihly payments thit were made under the borrower's

11 amortized the loan slower than the biweekly. She was sold 1 previous mortgage before il had been refinanced and the one
12 the biweckly and pu into a bimonthly. 12 that was represented o them would be their monthly payment
13 Other borrowers claim they were led to believe that the 13 under Houschold's morigage where the previous morigage

14 biweekly amount. which is half of what a monthly amount 14 included 1axes and insurance. and 1he Household comparison
i3 would be. was realiy what their paymens was going 10 be, and 15 that was given 10 the borrowers did not include taxes and

16 they were shocked to lind out later that they were required 13 insurance”?

17 10 make - that was really only half of a payment. They 17 A 1bclicve so. but | can’t picture any of those transactions

18 thought it was a whole payment, 18 right now. but  believe so.

19 @ (By Mr. Parlerte) They thought that the biweekly payment - 19 Q Did you find that to be a commwon pattern where taxes and
20 A They though that because Lhey had been sold this idea of 20 insurance just weren't discussed a1 all?
21 the lower interest rale that the paymens - the payments 21 A | found it 1o be s conemon pattern that borrowers were
22 reflected subsiantially lower payments. They thought that 22 confused. Bormowers bedieved thair taxes and insurance were
23 1he half payment they were making was really the whole 23 eoing to be included in 1he pay nent and they weren't.
24 payment, They didn't understand they were just making a 24 ¢ And you have been emplosed as a bank lending officer?
25 hall payment. They thonght that was their whole payment, 23 A Examiner.

Puge 99 Page 101

! Q Foramenth? I Q Bank examiner, You worhed thuugh in private indusiry, did
2 A Yes 2 vou not?

3 Q Andwas there any confusion over taxes and msurance -- 300A 1did

4 MR, DUNNE: Objection; vague, 4 Q  Did you ever make loans?

5 Q {ByMr. Parlette) -- being included or not included? 3 A Yoriginated foans.

6 MR, DUNNE: Objection; vague and ambiguous. 6 Q Ociginmed louns. Are you lamiliar with the practices that
7 A There were borrowers who believed that their paymen 7 most bunks in the stale of Washingion use on originating

8 included taxes and insurance wher it didn't. And whal 8 mongage loans’

9 Household argued. as | remember, on several or a few 9 A Well, I'm familiar with standerd originalion practices.

10 different complaints was, we don't do our loans that wiay. 10 Apain, those words like “most” cause me discomfon.

H We simply don't include taxes and insurance. [1's not part 11 Q Right Isitthe - isil the general praclice of morigage

12 of our practice, so how could they ever have possibly 12 lenders 1o have an escrow account that includes taxes and
13 believed that we would do that? That was their response. 3 insurance?

14 My opinion was lhal somebody who - borrowers don't know | 14 A Tudepends on what type ol lending you're talking about.
15 encugh about lending transactions to dream these thinas up 13 For convenlional mongages. ves. For subprime mongages,
16 oul of their own heads, So if a borrower specificatly 6 no.

17 states it was 10 include my taxes and insurance, you know. 17 © !sce. Ifaperson ts coming ow ol a conventional

18 my cxperience is a borrower's been told that by somebody. 18 mongape, more thin likely they would have taxes and

19 MR. DUNNE. Let me have you read that testimony 19 insurance in an cserow account?
20 back please because | want to make sure | get that exactly. 20 A More ofien than not. 11 had 10 puesstimade, § would say
21 Could you read it back? 21 90 percent of all ceny entronal loans have these impound
22 THE COURT REPORTER: Answer: "There were 22 accounts.
23 borrowets who believed that their payment included 1axes 35 @ Do you helieve it's an obligation of Houschaid to tell the
24 and” -- 24 consumer that taxes and insurance wre not included in their
15 MR, DUNNE. Start with "borrowers don't know 23 monthly pavmens?
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PARLETTE {CROSS5)
Page 102 Page 104
\) 1 MR. DUNNE: Objection; calls for a legal ! confusion issuc there. Could you explain what that is?
A2 conclusion and - go ahead, 2 A Giveme just a moment.
3 A 1don't know if! believe they have an obligation to tel 3 Q Sue
4 the borrower they are not included, but | think they have a 4 A Yeah. This situation directly related 16 what [ was saying
5 very clear obtigation Lo clearly disclose their transaction 3 earlier where the borrower was led to believe that the
6 and not lead anybody 1o believe that they would be included. 6 payment was half as much as it really was. On the actual
7 Q (ByMr. Parlene) Okay. Under your subparagraph little i- 7 documentation, Household showed in one of the blank lines
8 or ii under paragraph Roman 1V, monthly payment amount. at | 8 how much the payment would be and later said, well. clearly
9 the very bartom, vou refer to the Fort Knox Bank. What was 9 you can see thal we made a mistake and the payment should
10 your issue there? 10 have been double that amoum, The bommowers say they
11 A I found thai Houscheld had apparenily made unilateral 11 entered into the transaction because 1hat dollar amount was
12 decisions to change the agreement that the borrower entered 12 shown 1o them and that's what they felt they could afford
13 into on how the payments were going 1o be deducted from 13 per month, And then these are automatic withdrawals from
14 their accounts, The agreement that | found in each of the 14 their accounts. Suddenly twice as much money siaried coming
13 fies | reviewed very clearly said thal Font Knox Bank could 13 out of their account. Wait a minute, Thai's not what we
16 only make changes in that by the borrower making thosc 16 agreed 10.
17 changes. And when borrowers 1ett us we didn't want this o 17 And the response from Houseliold was. that's the
18 change and it just changed, so somebedy had (o el Fon 18 contract vou signed. The nole vou signed says it witl be
19 Knox Bank 10 do it. My assumption was that it had to be 19 this much in payment. You know. there was 2 mistake.
20 Household that was instructing the bank to make those 20 Repardiess of the mistake. vou have to take the larger
2 changes. since they were in receipt of that, pal pavment. That mistake. if it was a mistake. was clearly
22 @ Did you ever .- 2 disclosed 10 the borrowers on how much 1heir payment was
23 MR. DUNNE: Excuse me. | would like vou 1o read 23 going to be. | can easily see where the borrowers relied
24 that back beginning with “somchody.” please. “somehods had | 24 upon that.
23 10 tell.” 23 Q inthe Smant complaint you sas that the terms of payment on
\
J Page 103 Page 105
1 THE COURT REPORTER: Answer: "So somebody had 1o | the document were altered after the horrower signed.
2 tefl Fart Knox Bank to do it My assumplion was that it had 2 A Yes, Topet the specific facts. ler's flip back 1o the
3 1o be Houschold that was instrucuing the bank e make those 3 Smart complaint because | want w be careful on that.
4 changes. since they were in receipt of that.” 4 whether that's from her testimony or her iestimony plus
3Q  (ByMr Parlenie) Yeu made that assumption. Mr. Cross. 3 documents that | saw, | think | mipht have had 1wo versions
6 hecause the borrower had 10ld you they hadiyt contacsed Fert 6 of documents which supported her claims. Let me look at
7 Knox Bank and changed the deduction? 7 that. In this siteation, she had been given an E-Z Pay
8 MR, DUNNE: Objecnon: leadmg 8 document that contained specific informaton about what the
S Q (ByMr Porlette) s thut a rue slatement” 9 plan was poing to be and then later -~
10 A Yes. And I'm oot sure if the berrowers directly suid. 71 10 MR, DUNNE: 1§ can intecrupt vou, just to make a
1 never centacted Ferl Knox Bank.” The borrower said. "My 11 quick objection to lack of foundation, whal the facls are as
12 payment got changed on me ™ The indication was that it }2 opposed 1o the findings.
13 happened without their knowledge. ) Cio uhead,
14 ¢ Do you know how many instances that you discovered there 14 A Laler she entered into negotiations. if vou will. with
i3 that would meet that patiem? 13 Jouschold, and she obtained some more documentation from
16 A Well, [ think that might be hsted in the repor. 1don’t 16 them. She got another form. which was how the payment was
17 remember off the top of my head [ believe in some 17 reaffy working. and 11 was diffcrent than the one she
18 sitations also Houschold reporied (o us that they did make ig originally had, She 1old me she didn't know or approve this
19 the change. They just put a different spin on she ston 19 aftered form. plus she was presenting me with documentation.
20 than the borrower did. [ any event. my issue withen the 20 She actually presented me with two forms, one unaltered and
21 report was that the agreemen, the E-Z Pay Plus apreement, 2] vne altered. so that's what F'm saying in that seetion.
22 has somic very specitic language in it thal you can read. and 22 Q (B3y Mr. Parlette) The altered one had been provided to her
23 it does not appear [rom thar language 10 allow Household o 23 by Houschold or provided o you?
24 be the one t¢ make the chinge. 21 A Ithad been - | believe - | have 1o fook inthe file. but i
25 0 see. Under Roman i lisle Roman fit, vou identify a 23 hehieve it was provided (o her, so she ashed FHousehold. ™1
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PARLETTE {CROSS)
age 106 Page 108
) 1 need all the documents in my file. | need 1o understand why I 1 point out jn the repont is that, when you look at the
- 2 you're doing this,” and they gave her that one, which was 2 note. it's buried deep in the nove in smaller fonl. It's
3 different than the one they had given her previously. 3 part of the Jegal language. |t's not on a pape that gets
4 Q@ Atthetime of closing? 4 signed. Anybody who wants 10 hide 2 prepayment penahty from
5 A Yes 3 a borrower can do it very easily.
6 Q We're going now to the pattern that you describe as the 6 In other words. there’s - in order for a borrower - if
7 prepayment penalty. What was your issue with the prepavment 7 you didn't say anything about a prcpayment penalty and a
8 penalty? 8 borrower didr't sit down and read every word in their
9 MR, DUNNE: Again, are you referring to the 9 documentation, it's highly likely they would never know they
10 findings in the repon? 10 had a prepayment penahty. Even given the borrower asking a
1] MR. PARLETTE: 1am. R} question Yike Georgia Smart did. "Do | have a prepaymeni
12 MR, DUNNE: Thank you. i2 penalty?™ il's very easy to keep a borrower from noticing
13 A Borowers consistently complained that they were either 13 they have a prepayment penalty. 1 only appears in two
14 unaware of a prepayment penalty being on the loan. so the 14 places. One place is about five or six peint Font
15 were surprised to find it there. Or some borrowers Lold us 13 two-shirds of the way down in the Truth in Lending
16 very strongly that they made sure during their conversations 16 disclosure statement.
17 with the company they would not have a prepayment penaity. 17 ] am very aware of an industry practice, I'm not going
18 Georgia Smart apain comes to mind. She had had a loan 18 1 say it's Houschold praciice. but industry praciice of
19 at one timc that had a prepayment penalty in it. and she 19 tvan officers placing their hands over certain ponions of
20 expressed that thal was a transaction that she would never 20 the documents, My examiner. Patrick Hardman. said that his
2 again enter into. She was very specific in geting promises 21 loan officer was very adept 21 covering up pontions of
22 from her foan officer that she definitely would not have a a7 documents that he was trving to look at when he was
23 joan with a prepayment penaliy.- She admits to being a 23 cxplaining the programs 1 him.,
24 little [ooiish poing to signing and not reading all the fine 2 @ {By Mr. Parleue) 1s Household Finance?
25 print. Later ended up. when she jooked at the documenis 35 A Yes
3
) Pyge 1007 Page 109
1 closer afler closing. weli after closing. she did have 3 ! MR, DUNNE: 1 object and move to strike that -
2 prepayment penalty. 2 ANSWer as NOnTesponsive.
3 Q (By Mr. Parlene) Were the prepayment penaitics imposed by 3 Go ahead,
q Household consisient or did they vary (rom transaclion 10 4 @ (ByMr. Parlette} Do you know which branch, again,
3 transaction? 3 Mr. Hardman was dealing, with?
6 A The ones | saw were consisient. 6 A Lakewood.
7 Q And what do they constitute? 7 ©Q He described, § believe in the report, that there was a
8 A The five-year prepayment penalty. [ the Joan was prepand 8 conceried effort by the loan officer to cover up?
9 above a certain percentage amount within a Nive-year penod O A That was his feeling.
10 of time. then the borvower would have 1o pay. ! belicve. sn 16 Q Okay. lt'sin the TILA statement and in the --
3 months' worth of interest on 1he outstanding balance at that It A Note,
12 point in time. | believe is how they read in Washingion, 12 (@ --note itsetl, the promissory note?
13 Some of the states report that the prepavment penaliies read 13 A Yes
14 six months” worth of inlerest on the original halance of the 14 O isitever disciosed on the good-faith estimate?
13 loan, but 1 think in Washingion they read six months with 15 A Some lenders may disclose it there, but i's not a
16 interest on the outstanding hajance at the time the 16 requirement.
17 prepayment occurred. 17 Q Okay. The sixth item you identilied is insurance packing.
18 Q@ isthere any more on the prepayment penalty that you 18 What was your issue there?
19 discovered 1har we haven't discussed? 19 A Similar 1o sanve of the other issues, that borrowers did not
20 MR. DUNNE" Objeetion to form, cails for ¢ 20 know that they were closing on a loan with insurance
21 narrative. 21 financed inlo thal toan. And in uther situations, borrowers
22 A Well. | had issue with the argument Household bad made 1o me 2z reporting that they were led to believe by their ioan
23 over time in these complaints that the existence of the 33 officer that the insurance was required in order to obtain
24 prepayment penatlly was in the documents and basically it wis 24 the loan, which is 2 clear violation of both federal and
23 the borrower's obligation 10 read those documems. And whivt 23 state faw.
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PARLETTE (CROSS)
Page 110 Page 112
\) I Q Wasthere a patiern that that existed in some offices more 1 exceuives”?
~ ]2 than others? 2 A | teviewed it | have it. but [ don'y have it in memory.
3 A We found greater what we cali insurance penetration in some 3 @ Okay. Do you know whether or not there's - if they do
4 offices than in other offices. 1 think that's captured in 4 receive spme incentive O COMMISSION OF Some monelary ¢
5 the report here. So 10 the extent we could use insurance 5 incentive, whether they have to pay it back if the insurance
[ penetration as an indicator of what we would call apgressive 6 is subsequently canceled?
7 sales practices or = which would result in insurance packing 1 MR. DUNNE: Objection; lack of foundation.
8 thal, yeah, my belief is that when you find high penetration 8 A Idon'trecall secing thai caveat in that commission forms. ;
9 rates, there is usually insurance packing taking place. % Q (ByMr Parlerte} Household offered credit life insurance. .
10 @ Did any complainant complain that they didn't understand the | 10 they offered disability insurance, some sort of uremployment :
i1 1crms of the insurance were only limited to $30,000 in five 11 insurance, Are you aware of any others that they offered?
12 vears? 12 A 1saw some aulo insurance. but only on rare occasions.
13 A | can't remember the dollar amount being complained about. 15 Q And were ali these insurance premiums single premium advance
14 but 1 did have ar feast one complainant who complained that 14 payment? i
13 he ended up with inserance that was never any goed for him 13 MR. DUNNE: Objection; lack of foundation.
16 because his age versus how long the insurance was good for, 16 Are vou asking. again. for findings in this?
17 who it was even good for. 17 MR. PARLETTE: I'm asking from his knowiedge.
18 Q Was the insurance - strike the question. 18 MR. DUNNE: Lack of foundaion.
19 Is there a requirement under cither federal or state 19 A No. They weren't all single financed - single premiums
20 law that the insurance be cancelablc? 20 msurance financed with the loan. Some was monthly
21 A Youknow. [ would have to rescarch that. 11 was cancelable 21 insurance.
22 on these loans. 22 Q  (By Mr Parlette) If the consumer didn't have 1o write a
23 Lid you find a psttern or practice where customers were told 23 cheek. would they « for the insurance premiums. how would
24 that they could sign up for 1he insurance but cancel it 24 they kneny that insurance had been 1aken out?
25 within the first month?® 23 MR. DUNNE: Calis for speculation and lack of
-': Irage 111 Page 113
t MR. DUNNIL: Objection o form. | foundation.
T A Didl find thu? 1 A Taken out or added 1o the loan?
3 Q (By Mr Parlene) Yes. 3Q  (ByMr Parletie) Added tothe loan is a bener way of
4 A No. 1 heard rumuor of il, but | didn Gud tha, 4 saving that
5 QDo you know of any incentive that an account ehecutive or 35 A The HUD | showed that,
6 loun oflicer would have Lo sign peopte up for insurance. in & Q  They would have 1o exam the HUEY 1 Yorm 1o see n?
7 the same breath el them they can canced it right away? 7 MR. DUNNL: Objection.
R MR. DUNNE: Objection; lack of foundation, 8 0 (By Mr Parleue) Did you find any complainams who were
9 A Welk | know that the compensation for originaling or 9 surprised that they had insurance at ail?
10 closing loans with insurance was a sipnificant amount 1o the 10 A Yes.
11 ioan officer's commission. so it would just have to be my 11 @ Ofthe t9 complaints. do you remember how many of those
12 opinion that heavy compensation plans can lead sowards i2 situations there were?
13 the - ubviously it would he an incentive for somcbody - 13 A No. Ldon'ttemember. |think again it's somewhere huried
14 could be an incentive [or somebody to do something they td in this report. What vou would kave (o do is go through - |
15 wauldn't daif that incentive wasn't there. Whether | can I3 analvzed complaint by complaint throughowt this report. You
16 say that some foan officer, you know . followed that 16 would have to go through and see how many times | provided
17 incentive . . 17 that issue under that specific complaint.
18 MR. DUNNE- Could | ask you to read the firsy 18 Q  What federal luw or state jaw does it violate when you 1el)
19 senlence of the answer back. please? 15 a horrower that they must 1ake out credit Bl insuranece?
20 THE COURT REPORTER: Answer: “Well, { knuw hat 20 A You can't require it under the Truth in Lending Act.
21 the compensauon for originating or closing Joans with 21 Actually, ' you require it - if you require it, you have to
22 insurance was a sizrificant amount to the loan oflicer's 22 include it in the annual percentage rate caleukation, which
23 cemmission.” 23 on the loans 1 looked at, it was not included. In addition
24 Q {By Mr Parlenct Do veu know anvihing about the 24 10 that, under Washinglon State law under the 31.04. you
23 compensalion fomula for Household executives. account 23 cannot require the insurance.
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PARLETTE (CROSS)
- Page 114 Page 116
) 1 Q Andthusifaloan officer or account executive tells a ] the property.
“ 2 consumer it's required but the TILA form doesn't reflect 2 (@  What's the significance of a high LTV 10 a borrower?
3 that, then that would be a viclation of TILA? 3 A The significance ~-
4 A That would be a federal violation. And regardless if they - q MR. DUNNE: Objection: calls for speculation,
5 if it showed it or not the - regardless of whether it was 5 averbroad.
6 contained within the Truth in Lending disclosure or not, it 6 A The significance to the borrower is that they are trapped in
7 would still be a state violation because our law is very 7 that transaction and cannot get out of the transaction.
B simple. Tt says you can't require it. 8 It's a very effective tool identified among the multistate -
9 @ [ithink it's the last patiern or practice that you 9 as a way of keeping borrowers trapped into Household loans
10 identified as number seven is upselling loans? 10 and nol being able to refinance out with other lenders.
Il A Yes 11 Q (ByMr. Parlenie} In your review of -
12 Q@ Would you tell us what your issue there was. i2 MR. DUNNE: Move to strike as nonresponsive.
13 MR. DUNNE: You're asking him to summarize what 13 Q (ByMr Parette} In your review of the records, have you
14 the report findings were? 14 ever comie across a statement where Chairman Allinger said
15 MR. PARLETTE: Right. 15 exactly that to some stock analysts. that we make our
16 A | found that there was an apparent practice of - it was a 16 customers - this is paraphrasing. We make pur custoimers
17 two-prong practice, One praclice was to eat up additional 17 toyal by getting them high LTV's.
3] equity out of the borrower's property, which generally was I8 MR. DUNNE: Objection: mischaracterizes the
19 realized to Household in the form of discount peints, and | 16 statement and leading.
20 can explain that a little more clearty. 20 A | don't recall that staement.
21 The second prong was 10 put borrowers in a position 21 Q  (ByMr. Parlette} Your poim is. | guess, and correct me if
22 where they had a fairly or reasonably high interest rate 22 I'm wrong, with high loan 1o value ratio, if 2 person wamts
23 first mortgage but then a very high rate in the, say, 25 to get away from Household. they would find that another
24 24 percent range for a sccond mortgage. So my belicfisthe | 24 bank would not refinance them --
235 intent was Lo get as much high cost loan to be taken out by 235 MR. DUNNE: Objection.
1
! Page |13 Page 117
| the borrower as absoluely possibie, I Q  (By Mr. Parleng) -- with a greater than 100 percent or
2 Many of the transactions | looked at, and the same held 2 80 percent LTV?
3 true for regulitors in the eiher stines - this is what they 3 M. DUNNE- (hjection. Jeading and overbroad. 1t
4 reported Lo me. we had several meetings about this - was 4 doesn't redale 10 any particulue horrower,
3 that the amoum of the second mongage was almost identical 5 A Thatis my position or my powt Than (Fa borrower has a
6 10 the amount of the discoun points in the first mortgage. [} higher than industsy norm LTV, they're going o find it very
7 ‘The oaly purpase we could cven see tor the second mongage 7 diffzcult 10 [ind somebody thi wall refinanee them out of
8 exigting was 1o pay these very high points on the first 8 that.
9 morpage. 9 Q  (By Mr. Parlette) In vour opimon as the chiel examiner for
10 Q  (By Mr. Parleite} The upselling of loans, what do you mean I the state of Washington. whal's the normal LTV?
I by the word “upselling™? (B MR, DUNNE: Objecleon. vague and ambipuous, lack
1Z A Borrowers generally came in for one of two purposes. The 12 of foundation.
13 either wanted 1o refinance from where they were at or they 13 A Depends on what type of kending vou're talking about, In
14 just wanied 10 get a second mongage. But in many 14 the conventional markel. you will not hargly ¢ver see
i3 situations, | lousehold tetis us in 19 percent of the 15 anything above 97 percent L1V and generally you're going 1o
16 situations, but in many of the situations, the borrowess - th want 10 find it 93 percent or below  There's some special
17 walked out with two simulancous loans, not the singie foan 17 programs that will do 97 percent LTV In the subprime
i8 they went in looking for. And these loans wers high 18 markel. higher LTV loans are found. and these was a period
19 inferest rate boans at - that lefl them with high LTV's. 19 of time, unt} aboul two vears ago. where many lenders were,
20 Sometimes we saw - L'V is loan io value - we saw borrowers [ 20 for tack of a betier word. experimeniing with 125 {oans.
21 walking in with an cyuity position in their property and 21 123 percent LTV's. Bul the market dnfied away from that a
n walking out being way under water on their property, m 22 couple vears ago
23 ather words, owing lar more than whal the property was 23 Q (By Mr. Parlenie) Dritted anay ynd gone down?
24 worth. When they had gone in, they had equity in their 21 A Gune down. Too much nsk with those kind of loans.
25 property. When they came out, they had negarive eyuity an 15 Do vou recall any mmalyses ol the 11V that bosrowers were
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PARLETTE {(CROSS)

. Page 118 Page 120
} | left with after they refinanced with Household in doing your I A Correcl
— 1 2 repon? 2 Q Arethose proiected by -

3 A No. 1didn"t do a specific analysis. | think on certain 3 A Youwould have to ask them.

4 complaints 1 identified what the LTV was. but | can tell you 4 Q - the resiraining order?

3 what the company lold me what their praclice was. 50M 1

6 Q What was that? 6 MR. DUNNE: I'm sornv if | stick my hand out. I'm i
7 A Thatthey would make first morigages up 10 100 percent LTV 7 just trying to signal that sometimes | need to make an

8 and then would tag discount points on top of that, so they 8 objection. | don't mean to appear to be rude in any way

9 could take it above 100 percent LTV if they needed to add 9 when [ do that.

10 discount peints en to that. Everything additional beyond 10 THE WITNESS: Did you want te make one?

1} that would be picked up by a second mongage. The LTV could 11 MR. DUNNE: No. Fm fine now

12 get up fairly high, | would have to look at specific 12 A Youwould have to ask them. but the injunction is against

13 transactions to tell you how high. 13 the state of Washington. It's not linsited 1w DFI.

14 ©Q Sothey would - if | got what you just said. they would 14 Q {By Mr. Parlette) Okay. Arcall of the DFI complaints in

15 loan - they 1old you ihey would loan up 10 300 percent LTV. I3 the AG complaints?

16 excluding the points? 16 A Oncofthe AG investigators. Jan Simonds. 5-i-m-o-n-d-s. was
17 A Comect, i7 doing a ¢ross referencing and 1 don't know where thal

18 Q Would add the points into the LTV for the first mortgage and 18 finally came out. I think they were sanstied that they had

19 then loan on top of that with a second? 19 evervthing that we had. bul we don't have cventhing that
20 A Comrect. 20 they have. | think that's the direction it weni.

21 MR. PARLETTE: Lcr's lake a break for the court 21 @ Okay. And isthat going 1o be wtilized in the distribution?

22 reporter. 22 Her fles, are these complaints gomg 1o be ulitized in the

23 (Recessed a1 1:33 pan.) 23 distribution fermula that finally s armivedd at onthe AG

24 {Reconvened at 2:03 pm.) 24 settiement?

25 Q (Bv Mr. Parlene) is there a DF1 file for this expanded 5 0A

They could be. We believe we will get so much information

Page 119 Page 12}

repon that you did? Is there some background material -- from the company we may ot have e access those files, bul

1 |
2 A Wwell-- 2 i don't rule i1 out,
3 @ --used as source material? 3 € Okav. Now. going back 10 - | was through number seven on
4 A Well, there's - well, the file - it isn't in the file for 4 my - did we conclude 1hal the page numbers are different?
5 this report, but, you know. it's an investigative [ile from 5 A [helieveso.
6 the beginning of time urtil current, | don't know. } 6 Q Onmypage 43 of the DITespanded report, it referenced
7 probably have, | don't know, 8,000, 10.000 pages in it. 7 paragraph seven. upselling laans. and | dun't know what page
8 something like that. 8§ that would be on yours.
9 Q@ On Household Finance? 9 A Mincit's page 8.
10 A On Household, Benefictal. Household Realty. On the casc. 10 Q Page--
13 Isthal subject 1o this temporary restraining order? I A Weseem to be drifling hive pages apant
12 A Weli, much of it clearly would be. There's - alot of it is 12 Q Five pages apan, okav. {seversthing afier pape 48 an
13 correspondence between the multistale and anytime an 3 expanded explanation of the seven patterns or practices that
14 Assistant Anomey General, whether from this state or 14 vou discovered?
15 another state, appears, they will idemtify that as atomey- 15 A No
6 client privilege and protect that. So on vinually every 16 @ Then we better go through Irom there onoput,
17 document you're going 10 find that. | will have 10 leave it 17 MIR. DUNNE: That was the wiong answer, For the
18 to Susan 10 protect that stuff. Tha's what they do. They % record. [ was joking.
19 come in and sit down for hours going through stuff, and | 19 Q {By Mr Parlette} You're on the simne page 1 am now, a
20 just know from experience that all those e-mails and 20 matrix thal staces rate points and discounts as a pereent of
21 letters, they're all set aside because there's an attorney 2 loan.
22 in it A Yes
23 Q Andthere's a parallel group of complaints that were filed 23 This is. Fthink. the issae vou sere relerming fo carlier
24 with the Consumer Protection Division of the Attomey 24 about the points or the busdavn of interest rates. Conld
25 General's Oftice. 23 vau gspiain what your issue was there!
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PARLETTE (CROSS)

Page 122 Page 124
Y 1 A Household informed us how their syster worked, and it 1 | never showed them the thing. 1 asked them, vou know. did
Al revolved around what was calted a credit guide score, They 2 you ever see anything, that explained to you if you paid more
3 would - their software would assist them in underwriting the 3 in discount points you could lower your rate or il you ot a
] loan 1o develop a credit guide score for the borrawer based 4 higher rate you paid less in discount points or how this
5 on a bunch of criteria. Once a credit guide score was 5 range of discount points that appears in the good-faith
[ develaped for the borrower, they were able to offer the ] estimate works, ard not 2 single borrower was ever able 10 8
7 borrower some of a series of different ioan programs that 7 1el] me Lhat they understood thal or ever seen anything
8 were controlled really by rate and the LTV available to the 8 explaining that to them.
9 borrowers, how much could they borrow, how much percent 9 Q Okay.
10 could they borrow, and what were the range of rales 10 A This section discusses thal. the practice of using the
1] available. The matrices that ] saw would sometimes be three 11 credit guide score and the matrix to price borrowers into a
12 to a page and be three pages long, so maybe there would be 12 lpan. I's a fairly lengthy section here that deals with
13 nine available programs and one of these might be what they 13 different issues revolving around thar, But the shost of it
14 were going to offer that borrower. ' 14 ts that it was my belief and finding that borrowers were
15 It would appear in the form of a matrix that didn’t 15 consistently deceived about how this range of discount
16 look like this but was not dissimilar to what's on my 16 points that was appearing in the good-taith estimate would
17 page 49, which is a table of discount points and rates 17 work for or against them. Borrowers repeatedly seemed 1o be
18 showing an inverse relationship between the discount points 18 surprised how much they paid in points but repeated!y
19 and the rates. In other words, the more points you paid, 19 believed they were petting a 7 percent loan rite. Well, the
20 the lower the rate. The less points you paid, the higher 20 1wo can'l go hand in hand.
21 the rate. 2l First ofT, | never seen a 7 pereent rate oflered by
22 Q Andlet me interrupt you heve. Points as Houschold used n Household, But even if you're dealing with the lower end.
23 them was a prepaid interest charged 1o buy a rate down? 23 sev. 11 pereent rate roughly - sorry. 1 lost my train of
24 1 think that would be a fair representation of it. 24 thought on that. Sorry. 1was going somevhere, and | don't
25 Q Okay. 23 know where 1 was going.
J Page 123 Page 123
I A Wenever infervicwed 2 borrower that ever saw - that cver 1 We found that borrawers cansistently paid at the top or
3 said or was able 10 1etl us That shey ever saw the matris. 2 even above the top discount points disclosed to them on the
3 We knew the matrix exists because thal's what Household told 3 good-faith cstimate. There are many instances where the
4 us. We never interviewyd a borrower that was abie te tell 4 discount points they actually paid at closing exceeded the
3 us they had ever seen it None of the three of us who 3 cost of what was shown 10 them on the good-faith estimate.
6 applied for loans ever saw the matnix. However. we know 6 Very few instances were identified where borrowers paid
7 very well that 2 snatriy was used beeause |Household delivered 7 below the wop of the discount points shown on the good-faith
B us 2 significam amount of materials that explained how they 8 estimate,
9 used the matrix. and they even explained tor s how ey used G Q@ Where it exceeded the top on the good-faith esiimate, is
10 the matrix. 10 that a violation of federal kaw?
11 Q Approximaiely how many borrewers did Houschold intervien? i MR. DUNNE: Objection. !t's an incomplete
12 A Did Houschold interview? 12 hypothetical and without foundation.
13 @ Cxcuse me. That DFI interviewed of Household barrowers 13 A Not necessarily.
14 1 don't remember. | spoke with 13 or 20 probably. 14 Q {ByMr. Parfente} What do you mean when you say that?
13 Q  Anadihe other investigalors, how many would they have speken 13 & Well, federal law is not that specific. It doesn't say you
16 t0? : 16 can't exceed this lop range. 1t talks more lo accurately
17 MR. DUNNE: Lack of foundation. 17 disclosing what you know 1o be, you know, the cost based on
I8 A WNone, | think. 1don’t know if they cver spoke with 18 your experience and knowledge of the industry, you know,
19 spmebody oF not. bul they weren't specifically assipned to 1% your knowledge of your own products along those lines,
20 interview anybody. 20 50...
21 (By Mr, Parlette) 1see. When vou say, we never found a 21 Q1 guess that's inberent in the word "pood farth,” is it not?
22 barrower that saw such a matrix. you're referring 10 the 13 22 A | believe i is, yeah,
23 or 20 that you interviewed? 23 Q Weives the lender some wiggale room there but they have to
24 A Yes. And fcan'tiedl you how many | asked a number of 24 be in good faith when they're representing the cosis?
23 them specifically. hiave vou ¢ver sceo this thing. vou know 235 A Yes.
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PARLETTE {CROSS)
Page 126 lPage 128
A I @ Anddescribe for me then your finding or belief. You were | would be a rormal range of points for a conventional lender?
7 2 about 1o go into that, 1 A [iscount poinis?
3 A Well- 3 MR. DUNNE: Objection.
4 MR. DUNNE: Vague and ambiguous. 4 Q (By Mr. Parlette) Um-hmm.
5 A Owr finding - my finding was that borrowers consistently 5 A The normal - the norm, [ would have to say, would be
6 ended up at the 1op or frequenily above the top of the rale 6 anywhere from an eighth of a point 1o one poiat. |1 is ot
7 structure. | found only few instances where borrowers ended 7 uncommon 1o sce two points and on rare occasions maybe
8 up somewhere below the top, yet borrowers were consistently B drifting up 10 three points. But typically the majority of
9 surprised at how much they were paying in discount peints. 9 the loans you're going Lo find are in the one point or less
10 You look al a good-faith estimate and it says on there on 10 discount point range.
11 line 802, which is the discount point line, let's say zero 'l And for the subprime lenders. what would the norm be in the
12 10 38,500, but botrowers are surprised they paid $8,500 but 12 state of Washington. from your knowledge of the industry?
13 somehow believed they were getting a 7 percent loan. 13 A ldon't know.
14 And it's - in addition to them arguing that they were 14 Q Did vou find whether in the first mortpage refinances that
15 very confused about the transaction, i's easy 1o see how 13 most ol the loans that you examined came from conventional
16 they were confused aboul the transaction. They were being 16 tenders to Household as 2 subprime lender?
17 delivered a set of information that kind of didn't really 17 MR. DUNNE: Can | have the questuon read back.
18 make sense and, our opinion, was not in compliance with the 18 plense?
19 federal regulation govemning the content of the good-faith 15 THE COURT REPORTER: Question: "Did you find
20 estimate. And ended up, the result being borrowers paying n whether in the first mortgage refinances that most of the
n imore than they expected to pay. 2] loans thal you examined came from conventional lenders 1o
22 So in short, my opinion was that this whole good-faith n Housshold as u subprime lender?”
23 estimale range coupled with this matrix of buy-down was 2 23 MR. DUNNE: Thank vou.
24 very sophisticated artifice to mislead borrowers about the 24 A o vou mean did the borrowers first have a conventionat foin
25 transaction they would ultimately receive. 23 andd then refinanced with Household?
1
! Page 127 Page 129
bt Q {ByMr. Parlette) [id you ever find a comman number that Q@ {By Mr Parletie) 1ught
2 was used for the points for the discount” 2% Agaen, that word "most™ bothers me, but there were o number
3 MR. DUNNE: Objection: vapue and ambiguous 3 that 1 sasm that were like thm
4 A Yes. 4 0 Can vou give 2 reason why a borrover moved fiom a
3@ (Bv Mr Parlene) What was that? 3 consemional lender to a subprime tender?
& MR, DUNNL: Same objection. 6 MR, DUNNE: Calls for speculation, incomplete
7 A 725 and 7 4 were the 3wo mest common discount peint 7 Iy potietical.
I numbers. ¥ A Yhere could be 2 myrind of reasons s by somebody would po
g @ (By Mr Parlene) Did you do an analysis of how many of the Y from a conventional fender to a subprime lender. Might have
10 iransactions you reviewced had 7.237 1 inst & job. changed jobs. had deleriorating credit during
11 A | betieve 1 did dothat. but | alse believe | did an H the period of ime they were with the conventional tender.
12 analysis based on loans from May of 2001. find 1hat on m» i2 Thetr property didn't meet - no longer met conventional
13 page 34 1ts a liule table tike this. 13 tending standards. There could be quite a varicty of
ld ) Okay. Yeah. 4 reasons why somebody might go from a conventional 1o a
15 A Thereilis. No. 13 subprime lender.
6 Yeah. Thisis it? ta (0 By Mr Parlette) Those would be Justifiable reasons for
17 A There's a column that says Discoumt Charped  Next cobumn 17 eoing (o a subprime lender?
18 says Number of Loans. Next is Percent of Fotsl Loans. 18 & ltwould be vp 1o cach borrower to make that determination.
19 Q Right. 19 Yesh.
20 A Youcan see out of the loans 1 reviewed, 239 loans made in A Youkaow. ..
21 the month of May 2001, that 88 percent of those loans had 31 4) Now--
22 discount points above 7 percent and a fairly small 2 A Depends on the specific situation.
23 percentage were below T percent, 23 Q  --when | wok the deposition of Metissa Ruttand-Drary, |
24 TFor a conventional - from your knowledee of lending. L showed her a videotape that was purported to be a wraining
i 23 morgage lending industry in the state of Wastunglon, what 25 tape of Fouschold Famance where they sind that they were
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PARLETTE (CROSS)

Page 130 Page 132
3 . going to start to target people who were good credit risks 1 it points and credit life insurance?
12 who might have two jobs, but just conldnl get ahead but 2 { don't remember.
3 they had good payment records. Were you aware of any such 3 Q Credit life insurance packed into a loan that a customer
4 targeting by Household in 1998, 19997 4 didn't want would have the same effect as increased points,
5 MR.. DUNME: Objection; mischaracterizes the 3 would it not?
6 evidence and assumes facts Aot in evidence and lack of 6 MR. DUNNE: Objection; leading,
7 foundation. 7 It would have the same effect.
8 A 1never saw anything like that. 8 Q (ByMr. Parlene) And the net effect of that, would it nat,
9 Q {ByMr. Parletie) Were you aware of retargeting by 9 sir, be that it would eat into the berrower's equity in his
10 Household in 1998 through 1999 of trying to specifically 10 home?
1l targel, as a group of borrowers, people who were not Lh MR. DUNNE: Objection; ieading.
12 subprime but rather were - had good credit ratings? 12 A Comect.
13 MR. DUNNE: Objection; mischaracterizes the 13 Q (ByMr. Parlenie} At the bortom of that page there's a
14 evidence, assumes facts not in evidence, leading. 14 colloquy - or not colioguy, but there’s discussion about a
£5 A 1 canson of shoricut you by saying I'm - | was - | don't I5 safe harbor exempiion, Whas was that all about?
16 thirk | was, at any point in time, aware of whal their 16 Household maintained for, | don't know, two, two and a half
17 targeting practices were for any of the variety of things 17 years, that they had a safe harbor under RESPA that allowed
18 that you might be able to ask me. | don't know what they 13 them 10 disclose the range of discount points in the good-
19 targeted. 19 faith estimate in the fashion in which they disclosed those
20 Q (ByMr. Parlene} Okay. On page - my page 49, so it must 20 points, The Department had maintained since late 1999 1hat
21 be your page 54, you're talking, | think, about the three i they did not enjoy such a safe harbor under RESPA for that.
22 tests that you and your colleagues made of the Houschold 22 We challenged them over and over on that. That remained a
23 system. No, | take it back. These are specific complaints 23 point of contention between us and the company, possibly
24 that were filed. In that paragraph that starts "The second 24 even to this day,
35 half of Mr. Schneider's statements.” do you sec that one? 25 HUD had - | asked HUD for an opinion on this in July of
4 Page 131 Pagc 133
I A s there a numhber or anything? | 2000, Being a federal agency. they were very sfow in
7 Q Weil lets see. It's my page 49. I'm just adding five to 2 responding. but linally responded to me on July 3th, 2002,
3 it 3 compleiely agreeing with my analysis that the discownt
4 A How does the senience begin? 4 puints were handled incorrectly under RESPA,
3 MR, BUDISH: 533, | think. 3 On page 30 of my reponi. it must be page 33 of vours, you
4 Q (ByMr. Parlette] It's under a botd heading, Department's G “1an esplaining vour experiences at the various branches
7 Understanding. 7 when vou went out 1o test and the ether two individuals went
¥ A Foundir R oL 10 test The system.
9 O Seccond hall of Mr. Schneider’s statement. Take a minute to 9 Yus,
10 read that paragraph. 10 You make the statement that in a) three tesis you found
11 A Okay. Pveread it t thit Houschold representatives had misrepresented or
12 @ Okay. Tell me whal you meant when you were tatking about § 12 withheld information or failed 1o comply with state and
13 the phrase, "Increased loan amounts appear more a function 13 tederal law and regulations. Can you expand on that? What
14 of Househeld Finance linancing the upper end of discount 14 do veu mean when they misrepresented or withheld
i3 points.” 15 information”
6 A Thisis somewhat of what 1 was talking about before where 16 MR, DUNNE: Object tu the extent it lacks
17 vou found the increased loar amoum due to the fact that 17 toundanion with what happened with 1he other two, That's
18 there was this laree amount of points or the loan. And 18 information that's conveyed by bearsay .
19 Mr, Schneider argued in several siluations that the reason 19 Go ahead. please,
20 the loan amounts were su large was hecause the borrowers 20 1 hink what vou're just asking me is. what did 1 mean by
21 asked for them 10 by targe. But | give three exampies here 2t the statement | made in the repor’!
22 of complaints | went through where the only reason they were | 22 (By Mr. Paslene) Right
23 larger is because points were added on. | run this analysis RE Which was the purpose of sending mysell and my examiners
| showing that. e} out. 1 don't think vou were specilically asking about my
25 ) Dothese - on those Three ciases. was 7L jusl points ar was 23 Findlings of misrepresentation,
!
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PARLETTE (CROSS)

Page 134 Page 136

) 1 Q That'sright. 1 calied the manager in. and the manager would not allow him
“| 2 A You'rcasking what did ! mean here. The purpose of the 2 10 leave with any documentation. He said he would have 10

3 three of us going out was 10 find out who was - try o find ki bring his wife back in 10 sit throrgh a sales presentation.

4 out who was tedling the truth because Housebold was elling 4 He would not be allowed 1o 1ake documentation to show to

5 us all these borrowers are mistaken. This isn'l how we do 3 her.

6 business. Bul we had borrowers telling us this is my 6 That sort of treatment of iim seemed to suppon what

7 experience, The bostowers werent getting together. It 7 many consumers had 1eld us. that they were controlled

8 wasn't until, | don't know, like the summer of this year 3 through the process. They were misled. conlused,

[} where | think you started rounding borrowers up inlo one 9 Q He just confirmed what had been complained of by others?

10 group. | never had got - no borrower | talked to ever knew 10 A Yes

11 | was 1alking 1o any other borrowers. so - but | was hearing Il @ Now. al the time you wenl up 1o the Bellingham branch, that

12 this consistent story from all of thern. The company 12 was August of 2001, Do vou know wheiher Heusehold had done

13 responded consistenily that this person is misiaken, this 13 an internal audit prior to that of the Household branch?

14 person is mistaken, and so fonth. It seemed a prudent thing 14 A ldon't know.

15 19 do 10 go out to some branches and just see what was up, 13 Q Inotice that this fener 10 Craig Castaim writen by Lori

16 see what we were ol 16 Gale is dated May 14, 2601, and in thaj lener she stales

17 I see. And in a nutshell. what did vou cither contirm or 17 1hat thev're going to discontinue or have discontinued Lhe

18 not confirm in your investigations? 18 effective interest 1ate pich.

19 MR. DUNNE: Again. fack of foundation as 10 1he 19 MR. DUNNE: Objection: completely mischaracterizes

20 other tesiers’ experiences. 20 the fetter. You won't find those words w1 the lener.

21 I found that some of what the horrowers were telling me also | 21 Q  (By My, Parlette) When you went to the Hauschold office in

22 happened with me. and my two examiners reporied similar 22 Aupust of 2001, was cffective interest rate used in your

23 things. Patrick Hardman had the most in-depth expericnce 23 application process or subsequent wlephone cails?

24 because he spent much more time with the loan officer. He 24 A | never heard those words.

25 had a1 least two meetings face-to-face that lasted for o 35 0 13id vou hear anvthing that was similar 1w it?

: 1age 133 Page 137
i period of time, and he asked a 11 of questions and dug I A The way the loan process was presenied w me helped me
2 really deeply. 2 confimm sn my mind that borrovers were fed 10 be confused
3 1 will - you earlier asked me a question about taxes, 3 uhout their transaclion on the rates and [ees. What led me
4 bust you asked about it in connection with effective interest 4 1 believe this is, 1 was pever once wild what a rate would
5 rate. | just want to clarify that Patrick Hardman did 3 be. | was shown 2 larpe runge of discount peints. That was
6 report that he spent a period of time talking about ax 6 actaally mailed 10 me. But Fwas never told there would be
7 consequences with his loan officer. Patrick has a finance 7 a large range of discount poims. When | asked what the
8 backeround, is almost finished with his MBA, has been an 8 range of discount points were. they pave a very sirange
9 examiner for a period of time. He undersiand taxes. And he 9 answer o me. | ihink Uwrote i inmy repon. She said
Hi| said this loan oficer was way off on some other planet 10 the amount is determined by loar amoum and value, 50 we
il describing the tax cffect and so forth to him, which he 11 have 10 quote a range. which gives me no information as a
12 allowed fim 10 de just to see what he would say. But 12 regulator or a borrower. To this day I'm no reatly sure
13 that - I'm not sure that was ever connecled with any 13 whai to make of that stalement.

14 effective interest rale connection. 14} Tmgoing 10 show you whal wis marked in Melissa Rutland-
15 (By Mr, Parletie) | see. 13 Prury’s depesition as Exhibit A which | won'l bother 1o

16 But | just want 10 mahe sure | didn't misanswer your arlier 16 make an exhibit here. Just have you Jook At just three

17 question. 17 documenis on the top here. The first one purports to be

18 Rut Patrick spent enough time with the loan officer 1o 18 cither an e-mail or 2 memo sent cut by o Rob OFHan, Have
19 come back and report that, you hnow, this whale thing is 19 viu - do vou recognize thar name Reb 41 lan. who he is?
20 just - it's a moving - sort of reponed it was a moving 200 A No.

21 sales scenario, Every time he felt he had it narled down, 21 Q  Would vou take a moment and read that mermp,

2 it would move on him. He tried to take documentation from 22 A4 Okav

23 the loan officer (o take back and show his wife was the 23 1} Inthe maerials produced o the Depariment of Finaneial
29 story he wanted to tell. He said the loan officer wouidn't 24 Institutions at your request by Houschold. have you ever
25 let him leave with any documentation frem the branch, so he 23 seen that document there?
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Page 138 Page 140
! A 1don't recall seeing it. 1 do know what he's referring 10. ] MR. PARLETTE: Do you want to make a standing
2 Q And whais it he's referring to in that? 2 objection?
3 A Customer satisfaction survey which the company came and 3 MR. DUNNE; No. should do it in response o
4 showed us on a couple different occasions, a form they 4 each question, You ignore me, and you de so because vou
3 intended ro begin using 1o verify that borrowers did 5 feet like it. On that question we have a different view
b understand the transaction, 6 about what effective interest raies means. so | understand
7 Q Okay. Similarly on a memo dated 7/6/01 from Mr. O'Han. take 7 why you don't change your question.
8 a moment and read that, if you would. please. 8 A Okay. Now, I'll make you ask me the question again or have
9 A Ivereadit 9 her read it to me again.
10 Q In the documents produced for you al the Depanment of 10 MR. PARLETTE: Yes. Read that question back.
11 Financial Institutions, have you ever seen that document or Bl THE COURT REPORTER: Question: "Now., in vour
12 anything similar? 12 review of the complaints 1hat were filed here with the
13 A |don't believe so. 13 Department that contirtued through vear 2001 and up 10 when
14 Q@ How do you read that document from My (Han 10 all the 14 you wrale your reporl in early 2002. did vou find people
15 apparenily branch offices? 13 complaining that the effective interest rate or equivalent
16 MR. DUNNE: Gbjection: lack of foundation, calis 16 interest rate was continued to be used by Houscheld
17 for speculation, vague and ambiguous. 17 representatives?
18 A It appears 1o be an instruction to siaff people tha are 18 A VYes.
19 apparently Iocated at HFC sales offices and 10 certain 19 Q (ByMr. Parlenie) And while you answered 1hal question, you
20 management 1o educale them on how the payment and prograin 20 were reviewing your own repert. [id yvou count up the aumber
21 would actuallv work under the Pay Right Rewards Program. the 21 of people in thal 1ime period? Were vou counting”
22 E-7 Pay Plus, and to 1¢li them noi to do cenain things, 22 A Well. what | was doing was 1rving to determmine what |
23 Q) (By Mr. Parlette) And what did he telf them not 10 do? 23 thought vour question was that you didn't really ask, which
24 MR. DUNNE: Same objections. 24 was subseguent to this date did - was there amy of that
25 A Sales offices must never quole any mgerest rates other than 23 heing identified, And I identified 1wo subsequent 1o this
'.
' Page 139 Page 141
! the comract rate or APR that appears on the HOLP. Under no b dinte. but your question reaily was jusi during 2000. 2001
2 circumstances should you discuss or attempt to factor in the 2 period of time did [ see it continusng to vceur [har's why
3 anticipated interest savings over The original term ol the 3 | gave vou Lhe answer of yes.
k! loan o derive al a reduced or. in quotes. etfecnve 4 MR DUNNE: F'm going 1o move 10 sioke betause
5 interest rate. 3 hig 1esiinony, the previous answer, was nonresponsive 1o the
6 O (By Mr. Parlene) Now. in your review of the complainis [ queslion,
7 that were filed here with the Depariment that continued T 0 (B Mr Parlene) What you did do while s ou were - before
8 through year 2001 and up 1o when 00 wrole your report in L] vou answered (ot question. vou revicwed 1t and what vou
Y carly 2002, did you find people complainng ihat the 9 just sasd i3 that vou discovered hwo instances where the
10 effective interest rale or equivalent interest rate was 10 cguivilent interest rate presetation or effechve rake was
15 continued to be used by Household representatives? H used after the date of Mr. O'Han's memo of W6/01 15 tha
12 MR. DUNNE: Can | have the quesiion read hack. 12 rue?
t3 please? 13 MR, DUNNE: Objection: vague and ambiguous.
14 THE COURT REPORTER: Question: "Now. in your [4 A You're using the term effective and equivalent imeresi
15 review of the complaints that were filed here with the L3 rate. What | did is identify situations in w hich 1he
16 Department that continued through year 2001 and up 1o when 6 borrower's stury of what happened was consistent with what |
17 you wrote your repert in early 2002, did you [ind people 17 lve called the effective or cquivalent isterest ritie,
18 complaining that the effective interest rate or equivalenl IR0 (By My Parleug) Okay. Now. vouhad perposely gone to the
19 interest rale was continued to be used by Howschold 19 Bellingham office. Can vou tell me why vou picked that
20 representatives?” 20 affice?
21  (By Mr. Parlette} Do vou understand the question, 21 A Wehad more complaints rom the Bellingham office and not -
22 M. Cross? 1z not - pave me an eppodunity 1o eo home lor the weckend  So
3 A ldo 13 we had complaints sgainst Bellingham 1 could have sent an
24 MR DUNNE: 1 going 1o ubject for lack of 24 esaminer up there, but | went upon a < ook a ¥riday o po
25 foundation. vigue and amMeuous 23 up and stay ed over the weekend. su it was conenient for me
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Page 142 Page tad
\ 1 to do so. 1 don't - we never accept an excuse of I didn't know that was
/% 2 Q  Arc you familiar with the complaint or generally familiar 2 going on in my offices. I's unacceptable 10 repulators.
3 with the complaint of Corey and Jennifer Dodge, | believe it 3 Q (BvMr. Parlette) Were you ever told by Household
4 is? 4 rcpresentalives that any loan officers, account execurives.
3 A Dodge, yes. 3 sales managers, ¢ffice managers at the Bellingham office
6 Q Andibey're in the Bellingham area, are they not? 6 were ever sanctioned or disciplined?
7 A |believe so, yes. 7 A Yes. ] wastold that.
8 Q Anddo you know the anomey by the name of David Lean? B Q What were you 10ld?
9 A | know David. 9 A ) was told that Melissa Rutland-Drury was let go. That was
10 Q@ Was there not a complain that he filed in superior court in 10 in the summer of this year. ] want 1o say in June or July.
I the carly 2001 time frame that emanated out of the practices 1 We had a fairiy larpe conlingent from Houwsehold come here
12 of Bellingham office? 12 and ¢!l us they had removed her from that office.
I3 A [believe so. 1couidn't tell you which transaction il was. 13 They had 1zken the action and fired her?
14 but | do have docementation from David in one of the 14 A They didn't use - | don't know ifthey said “fired.”
15 complaint files, i3 They indicated that they had acted upon their findings in
16 Q isee. And are you personally aware that Household ever 16 that office and that she no longer was working in that
17 audited that Bellingham office in the summer of 2001 or 17 office.
I8 before? 18 ¢ l'ovour knowledge. was she the only emplover in the state of
1% A No. | bave no knowledge of that. | was 10ld about an audit 9 Washinglon who was dismissed. terminaied. let go o,
Y in June of 2002 by Household. 20 howcver you want [ phrase it?
X Q  Ofthe Bellingham office? 21 MR. DUNNE: Objection: lack of foundation.
XA Yes 22 A l'oms knewledge. she's the only one | ever heard of.
23 (@ Do vou believe that Household would have known in the summer 23 @ (By Mr. Partenie) And in that conversation where they used
et of 2001, let me sav by ihe date of Mr. O'fHlan's memo here, of 24 her name. they didn't identify any others?
13 the praclices that had pone on ite the BeHingham office? 23 A Ne
i
, : Page 143 Page 143
1 ME. DUNNLE: Objection. The pracuices are aren’y 1 Q  Areyou aware through other sources that Flouschold
1 specilicd. so that question is vague and ambiguous, 2 thsciphined. werminated. let go safes officers in any other
3 MR. PARLETTE: let me make that one more specific. 3 uffices?
1 MR, DUNNE: Let me sust help vou out. I'm going 4 A haven't heard. ne. | haven't heard than frem anywhere.
3 to ohieet 10 speeulation about what Household would have 3 4 You just said something that was interesting. AH
O known 6 complaints that have been filed here ot DFE amomatically
7 € {By Mr. Parlene) Do veu believe that Houschold would hivve 7 gel sent o Houschold?
b reason 1o know, based upon what you did here in the 8 A Yues
9 Depariment respending 1o customers” complaints and Y ) How guickly are they sent?
30 contacting thern and requesting documents and so fonh. that 10 A Well, we've had a littie prablem with our svstems lately. |
11 Household would have known about the eflective imerest rate 1 wanl 1o say until approximately the summer. start of the
12 or equivalent interest rate sales piteh that had been used 12 summer of this vear, within five days of receipt by us. bul
13 in the Bellingham office by the summer of 20017 13 we got backlogged. Our systems have been in this gigantic
14 MR. DUNNE: Sume vbjections. 14 dutabase conversion project. so things have slowed down. We
13 A I'woanswersiothat. All of the complaints that we receive. 13 found aurselves weeks behind here in recenl months getting
16 thal we receive aeainst any licensee. we forward a copy of 16 mformation out.
17 the complaint along with our instructions of what we need 17 However. | know that the staff, and F'm just tatking my
18 from the licensee to therm. 5o when we have a complaint 18 processing staff in complaints which arcn't involved in any
19 fited against any branch. we send it 10 the company and suy. 19 investigalive or cxamination maters, had developed a
20 look into this and get back to us. We had some filed 20 relationship with whoever was processing complaints at
21 against the Bellingham office price to the dale of 1his 20 ltouschold Houschold indicated they realiy wanted to pet a
22 memo. 22 handle on the complaints and get on top of them, so they
23 The sccond part of my answeer is my regulatory response. 25 connected with Wilma, who is on my s1alt who pracesses this
4 which is it's ous rcgulatory expectaion 1that our eensees 24 <tulf. And [ think - | bave 10 let Wilma answer this for
23 will know what gees oa in their branches and we do not - we 25 sure. but I'm pretty sure that Wilma was trving 10 get stuff
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Page 146 Page 148
i to them faster so they could gel a bener handle on it and 1 here where they state. “in explaining the potential saving.
2 get the stff. I'm just 1alking this summer, this |ast 2 amortization schedules were employed 1o show the comparison
3 sumumer. 3 by ilfustrating the difference in a potential savings of an
4 Prior 10 that, our system was pretty much up and 1 18-vear loan al 12.69 percent over a 30-year loan 21 6.9
3 working. and within zbout five days afier receiving a 3 percent. This was done for demonsiration purposes only and
6 complaint, we launched off (o any company. [ was not intended to apply o establish that the interest
7 Q Okay. On my page 52, which must be your pape 57, you have a 7 rate on the loan Mr. and Mrs. Luna were considering
8 section emitled Clear, Conspicuous, and Segregated 8 purchasing was 6.99 percenl.” My point in this section is.
9 Disclosures, 9 regardiess of that, Truth in Lending says vou can't de that
10 A 38 forme. 10 %ind of thing for the very reason that it could mislcad
1t Q And you can take a minute 10 review afier 1 ask the I somebods inte thinking something is different than what the
2 question. What was your issug in this section? 12 transaction really is.
I3 MR. DUNNE: Objection to form. 13 @ Okav. On the next page you make the slatememt that
14 A Repulation Z is specific about the issue of clear, 14 House - quote, Household has provided various respanses 1o
13 conspicuous, and segregated disclosures. That's what I'm i3 the PYepariment ranging from statements that the borrowers
16 discussing here, There were documents | found in loan files 16 were imistaken 10 claims that the practice is isolated to a
17 in one of the identificrs. the Luna file, where information 17 branch in Washington. The Depanment belicves these
18 1hat shoutd be seprepated to the Truth in Lending disclosure i8 responses to be disingenuous, however. What do vou mean
19 statement found its way on to other documents. And my 192 & - why did vou make that statement. that you believed them
i finding was that's a violation of Repulation Z under 1he 0 1w he deangennous?
n Truth in Lending Act. 21 A Yousaid nwas on the next page”
22 Q  (By M Parletie} Specifically what found its way on o 22 MR DUNNE: 1don't sec it either.
23 other documenis? 23 MS RATH: On mine it's on the 1op of the page
24 A The amount financed. Let's sce, Let me read this. Yeah, 24 after the nest page,
23 | believe the amount financed was shown on the E-Z Pay 23 ME.DUNNE: 1 think evesy one of us has iton a
A Pase 147 Page 149
t document. 1 differem page.
2 Q And it should not have been” 1 Q (ByMr Parlene) it's about - what you were reading from
3 A No There's specific items in the Truth in Lending 3 earlier. Mr. Cross. it's about five paragraphs down. Starts
4 disclosure statemnent that are to be segregated and kept 4 willt - e paragraph starts, “In the documents reviewed by
3 apan from any other information not at issue in the Truth 3 the Depirtment.”
6 i Lending disclosure statement. These are even bounded by 6 A Okay ]iooked at that paragraph, didn't sec witat you just
7 boxes in the Truth in Lending disclosure. You're not 7 read.
8 supposed to pul) these things off and use them in other 8 (@ s atihe botiom of that paragraph. the fast two
o representative ways. ’ 9 senIencet.
{0 Q Andihey had done that with the Lunas? 10 A Isee, (kay Let meread this paragraph. And your
b A Yes, I question was, why did | state thal we beiieved it to be
12 Q Do you recall what forms they used the Truth in Lending -- 12 disingenuous -
13 A It was an amortization form that | found off and on 13 VYes.
14 connected with this E-Z Pay Plus, Looked like it had been I4 A - the statement to be disingenuous? Because 10o many
15 run out of somebody's dot matrix printer, but it would 5 horrowers - so many borrowers - in our belief, so many
16 capture specific information that would maybe or maybe not 16 borrowers can't be mistaken. We do give companies the
17 be relevant te the loan that the person ended up with, but 17 benelit of the doubt. You know, an occasional borrower
18 it would be included in there and then these amortization 18 tells us lhey believe something doesn't seund quite right.
19 tables run. Let's see. 19 The company responds with po, that's not really how i1 was.
0 And looks fike there was rates and APR's on that form 20 You know. they must have misheard or they're mistaken or
2 that were not - didn't appear 10 be reievant to the 2t whatever, We'll ofientimes give companies the benefit of
22 borrower's situation. But the borower is telling us those 22 the doubt. We did that very thing with Household for a
1 very documents were used o convince them that they were 23 sianiftcant peried of time. We trusted this company for a
24 senting a 6.99 percent {oan. 24 long time. We used to have a very pood relationship with
25 The company responded to me. and there's a quolc in 25 this company.
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Pape 130 Page 152
\) 1 So I have (o say that as of today. with hindsight over ] occasions wilh us, 50 he clearly knew what was going on. He
- 2 the lest couple of years, there were borrowers put through 2 just argued each 1ime there was nothing wrong with it
3 more because the Department believed | lousehold first and the 3 Q (ByMhr. Parlette) And his job description again”
4 borrower second until finally the weight of the complaints 4 A Director of compliance is hew his letters were signed during
3 and our investipative work just sort of finally pushed us 5 a period of time. <
6 over and made us wake up. if you will, and thal’s - that's 6 Q Topof the company? !
7 what we're arriving at here. We're saying. look, the 7 MR, DUNNE: Objection: lack of foundation. A
8 company has been 1elling vs over and over berrowers are 8 A Yhavenoidea. g
9 mistaken or we have rogue loan officers. but just the weight 9 MR. DUNNE: Vague and ambiguous. ;
10 of - the sheer weight, volume coming from not only this 10 Q (By Mr. Parletie) Not director of compliance in the siate i
1] slate but other states 1elling 1he same story over and over 11 of Washington i
12 caused us 1o finally say we don't believe that argement 12 A MNo. Hewas in I¥inois. | don't know whiat director means -
13 anymore. That's 3 disingenuows argument. 13 at Household.
14 Q Okav. Youmake - in the next paragraph you refer to the 14 Q  When do you believe he kpew?
b5 Bley complaint. 15 MR, DUNNE: Objeciion; calls for speculaion, lack
16 A Yes 16 of foundation.
17 @ Apparcnily that must have come out of the Bellingham office. | 17 A 1recal] he was putting us in his letiers back in 2000.
I8 Is thal true? 18 Q (Bv Mr. Parlette} And your earlier testimony. and ! don't
19 A | could el you. 19 wanl (o be mischaracterizing it in any way. but | asked you
20 Q Excuse me. |said Bellingham. | meant Spohane. 20 a question about what happened afier this July 6th, 01,
21 A Yes. Spokane. There was a moment in time when | had atl 21 memo lrom Mr. O'Han, and you indicaied vou lound twe
2 this memosized, but it's long sunce passed. 22 instances where similar interest rate confusion had occurred
23 O You say that in this repon that the 7 percent equivalent 23 in - by reviewing the complaint forms filed here subsequent
24 interest rate scenario had occurred in several branches in 24 1o this date.
35 Washington and in mutiiple locauons in the country. Was 13 MR, DUNNLE: Objection: mischaracterizes the
1
{
' Ifage 151 Paue 133
1 the Spokanc branch one of the places where this was showing 1 lestimony.  The summary is vague and ambiguous,
2 up? 2 A lwant o clurily thar D said | believe that's what you were
3 MR. DUNNE: Ohjection: o erbroad, vague and 3 getiing at. but you pever really asked me that. Il vou're
4 ambiguous. and leading. lack of foundation. 4 asking me thal now --
3 A 1 led you o believe that here, Let's see if that's reatly 30Q  {By My Parlened P'moasking vou that now,
6 the sruth. Yes, Borrowers claimed - the Bieys complained 6 A Yes. | lound two in here that were subsequent Lo thit date.
7 of confusion about thetr imerest rale 7 Q  Which1wo did you find. if you can recall?
8 @ {(ByMr Parlente) Atthe bottom of that paragraph you 8 A Lunawasone. And vou should bave asked me this when we
9 stale, quote, the Department helieves that the equivalent 9 were on i,
to interest rate sham proffered by HFC represenialives is known 10 Q ‘Thar's all right. | don't want 10 lake your time now and
R and likely fostered by the cosporaton itsel o1, a1 the " have vou go through.
12 least, by corporate ofTicers overseeing large segments of 12 MR, DUNNE: [ weuld tike him 1o answer the
13 Ihe country. This belief appears ta be supponied by HIC 13 question, please.
4 headguarter's knowledge of the disclosures and safes 14 A San over.
13 practices when responding 1o complaings, end quote. Who do 15 Q  (By My, Parleree) You found in?
16 vou believe at Household knew about this equivalent interest 16 A No, | only see Luna now.
17 rate you ¢all sham? 17 Q@ Okav.
18 MR. DUNNE: Objection: calls for specutation und I8 A ldontknow il either saw a dawe prior w huly of ¢l
1o lack of foundation. 19 hefore or il my eves are just gelting - prohably Hind 1L
20 A Araminimum, Tom Schneider, who at leust, at one point in 20 50 minuics afier vou walk oul of here
21 time. was director of compliance. e wsed the lerm 21 (2 What was the date ot the Luna complaim®?
22 efleciive andfor equivalent interest rate in his responses 22 A November 2001,
23 to us. 1t could very well be where | first even came across 23 Q Okay.
24 those terms was from Mr. Schiocider in his responses (o our 24 A Actually thar was the complaint date anvway,
25 complainis. But he used this teaminelogy on several 25 MR. DUNNE: What page are vou looking al. please?
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Page 154 Page 136
A THE WITNESS: 36 of 73 for me. ! document. The company never came 0 me and said. vou know,
T 2 A Youknow what? I've been looking at the wrong date on P that's a practice we were doing that we were going to guit
3 these. Let me just get this right, | have 10 apologize o 3 doing. They did say that they had. you know. checked the
4 Bob. 1 was looking at the comgplaim date, not the 4 company over. made sure that people weren't doing it. 1
5 wansaction date, and this would key ofT the transaction 35 mean, things along those lines. You're asking me do T know
6 date. |don't even have any transaction dates in here 6 specifically when the company stopped --
7 subsequent Lo that dale. 7 @ (ByMr Parleng) Right
8 Q (ByMr. Parlette) So you woulda't know? 8 A --doingil. No.|doni.
9 A lwouldn't know. 1 wasled a bunch of time 9 Q Sothe effect of what you just said 10 me is that the firss
10 MR. DUNNE: Thal mischaracrerizes his tesiimony 10 1ime that vou swere aware that the company put a nolice out,
11 He said he has no transaction afier that daie  That's what 11 said stop doing this, intemally to the branch oftices was
12 he just said. That's different from he doesn’t hnow, 12 Mr. O'Han's memo of July 20017
13 MR. PARLETTE: He would have no way of knowing, i3 MR, DUNNE: Mischaracierizes the wstimony,
4 MR. DUNNE: Mischaracterizes his iestimony. 14 leading. and lack of foundmion.
15 Q (ByMr. Parlene) Okay. Mr. Cross. getling down to the 15 A | may have scen a leter from Detelich that makes reterence
16 next section, afier you discussed Schneider's response. you 13 101his. tn the materials that Houschold provided o us. |
17 make the staiement, “Yet this complaint fifed in December of 17 may have - something strikes me that there was a letier in
13 2000." referring to 1he Johnson complaint, No. 2382, "was 18 there. something along the lines of saying. you know, ne
19 neither the first nor the fast complaine concerming the 19 don't do this. This 15 what - vou know, this 1sn'l aur
20 7 percent rate scenario that HFC responded 107 20 practice or something fike that. Not Wy me. but 10 some
21 A Okay. 21 stafl. but ., .
22 QDo you know how manyv? Would vou have any way of knowing. | 22 Q  (By Mr. Parlenz) Te the best of vour knowledge, this
23 without going back through all these complints bows many 23 memorandum {remn Mr, O'Han was never produced 10 you at DFI?
24 more came in after the Johnsan complainl. Jehnson complaint? 24 A Tdont cemember seeing this memo.
35 A 1dont know how mony more would have come m because [ 15 And looking on the nest page there's a memo from a Craig
Puue 133 Page 157
1 stopped at a certain point in tme. Bul wulin ths report, t Caswlin dated July 101h. 2001 Tave you ever seen tha
2 | would have to Mip through here  $'m at fohnson nght 2 memo’
3 row | would have 1o go beyond here | remember the Lonas 3 A Noltomy knowledee.
4 came afier the Johnsen ane. That woukd have been subsequent 4 Okay. Dosouvantio ske 3 moment and read that?
3 10 the Johnsons. Fenton, What did | sax i my statement 3 A Dovew wiant me o eead it or do vou want mc o reasd 8 1o
6 there? G refresh mysel!!
7 Q "This was ncither the first nor the fast complamt 7 Q  Relresh your memory to make sure you hadi'tseen o before.
8 concerning the 7 percent raie scenane.” 8 A Okav, Fmpreay sure I've never seen this
9 A I'vegot Smant in here. There's three others 9 0 Okay. Moving on 1o the next subject. sou s page 34,
10 Q The point is. Mr. Cross, you notificd Household and 10 which must be probably your page 60. you have a caption
11 Mr. Schneider specifically in December of 2000 about this 1§ called Spunious Home Equity Lines of Credn
12 vquivalent interest rale scenario because vou sent him the 12 A VYes
13 Johnson complaint. so thes had an opportuniy afier that 13 Q  What was your issuc with the Spurigus Home 3quity Lines of
14 date 1o correct their actions? 14 Credn?
13 MR. DUNNE: Objection to form '3 A Ieanwshell | fel that Houschold hid desnmed 1ts upen-
16 Q (By Mr. Parlenie} Isthat a frue statement” 16 end hume equity hnes - let me rephease that lsuschold had
17 MR. DUNNE: Objection to forin 17 laken whut wis really a closed-cnd second mongape and made
18 A linformed them of that complaint on that date. sure. ] 18 It appear 10 be 2 home equity line of credn or an open-cnd
19 puess they would have an opportunsy from that point forward 19 Ime of credit. which is referred 1o as spurivus home equity
0 10 ¢0 something abou i, 20 lines of credit in case law under the Tash ny | ending Act.
21 Q (By Mr. Parleite) Do you know when they Nnaily did do 21 @ And why did vou feel these lines of credit were spurious or
22 sumething about that. the eguivilent interest rate sham? 22 false”
23 MR. DUNNE: Objection o Turm, lack of foundation. 23 A Bervause they --
24 A No. Bevzuse the company never admitted o me 11 was 2 sham, 2 MR DUNNE. Objeetion. 1t na the sword he used
23 so the company never told me thal - vou showed me this 23 and misstates his testimony.
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PARLETTE (CROSS)

Page 158 Page 160
1 Q (ByMr. Parlette) You used the word "spurious.” Why did 1 that's on my page 56. 1t must be your 62.
ol B you consider them spurious? 2 A 63forme.

3 A There are specific tests that hiad been used 10 identify when | 3 Q 63, We've walked a bit aboul the insurance. The

4 a loan holds more of the characteristics of a closed-end 4 penetration rates that you referred 1o are aciually reciled

5 loan versus an open-end loan. These loans 1 looked at seem 5 in the report, are they not —

6 to meet encugh of those tests, in my opinios, to really be a 6 A Yes

7 closed-end loan disguised as an open-end joan. 7 Q- by the various branches?

8 Q What's the significance of that? 3 And the highest penetration rate was in the Vancouver

9 A Well, you avoid giving a good-faith estimate and a 9 office?
10 Section 32 disclosere on those types of loans. 1o MR. DUNNE: You're referring to the report again
17 @ Whats a Section 32 disclosure? i here?
12 A It's the HOEPA disclosure, Home Ownership and Equity 12 MR. PARLETTE: Yes.
i3 Protection Act disclosure. It informs borrowers they're 13 A Yes. Forthat period of time, July 2001, 5o it would be for
14 entering ino & higher rate, higher risk transaction in 14 a six - six-month period of time, the first six months of
15 which they're puning their property at risk, 135 2001.

16 Q Andso whenever Household would call it a line of credit, 16 Q (By Mr. Parlette) For the first six months of 2001,

17 they wouldn't have to give that type of HOEPA disclosure? 17 everybody who got a home loan in Vancouver also got credit
I8 A They believed they wouldn't have to. The reality of itis, 18 fife insurance?

19 regardless of what you call i, it's what it is, and you're 19 MR. DUNNE: Vancouver/McLoughlin or Vancouver/
20 supposed 10 give your disclosures. 20 Parkway?
21 Q  Did you find that they ever did give the disclosures in -- 21 MR. PARLETTE: I'm looking a1 Vancouver/
22 A Ne. 22 McLoughlin,
23 (Q Whalis the penalty under HOEPA for not giving these 23 MR. DUNNE: You're not refering to the
24 disclosures? 24 77 percent -~
25 MR. DUNNE: Objection; calls for a legal 25 MR. PARLETTE: No.

Page £539 Page t61

! conclusion. tack of foundation. also calis fur expen | MR. DUNNE: -- Vancouver/Packway. Okas.

2 opinion. 2 A lcant give you. you know. 2 response as to confirmed fact

3 A Youcould - vou. as ap attomey. ceuld bring an acion i 3 on this is 1he report that Househeld generated lor us and

B covil court and sue for that, Regulatonly speaking. ] the penetration rates.

3 there's nothiag - there's no penabiy we would find Tor a 5 Q {By Mr. Parlette) These numbers came from Houschold”

6 Milure 10 comply with the Truth in Leading Act Where (he b A Yes

7 peralty eomes in is wnder the Consumer Loan Act we ¢in 7 Q0 Andheir report then showed in Federal Way evervbody that

] assess penalties for not - for ouy ficensees who do nat 8 got a real estale foan in Federal Way 2lso g credht hife

9 complying with Reg Z and the Truth in Lending Act The 4 inswranee Al reading 1hat correctly”

10 penalties 10 us would be under qur statute We don'l have n MR. DUNNE: Objection: mischaracterizes the

bl the abulity 10 impose any penalties under the Truth in 1 docunicnt,

2 Lending Act. 12 A Well you can't say that from this form because it could be
t3 Q (BvMr Parlene) Cana consumer who doesa’y get these i3 that - I'm sorry, Ask the question again.

14 disclosores rescind the transaction’! b Q  (By Mr Parleie) Does this document sav thal cvenyone who
13 MR. DUNNE: Objection: calls for an eapert opinion 13 took oul a real estute loan in Federal Way in that tine

16 and legal conclusion, tack of foundation. and calls for 16 peniod also ot credit life insurance?

V7 speculation. 17 A No. seys that 94 pereem of the people got eredit bie

18 A matenal disclosures are not madc. then the rescission 18 Insurance.

19 rights extend for three years nto the future from the date 19 Q Upatthe lop it savs Al Loans/All Real Estare loans/Credit
20 of consummalion. 20 life.

20 Q) {By Mr. Parleste) From the date of? 21 A Dhisavs Al loans/All insurance, Next columa. Real Estare
32 A Consummation, 22 loans/Credut lile only.

23 Q Ml dido -~ 23 Q Righo

2 A Consummarion. 24 A Okav

25 Q  Consummatien. Under the section entitled Insurance Packing. 25 Q  How do | read this thing? | mean, i1 {ouks tike 11 was
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PARLETTE (CROSS)

Page 162 Page 164
1 intended that of all the loans it gives then a percenm that 1 interest?
2 were real estate loans and then a percent that had credit 2 MR. DUNNE: Leading.
3 life insurance, 3 A The answer to that is yes. And even what - what { think Fm
4 A How | would read this, | would have to direct Household 1o 4 stressing very strongly in this report is it was in the
3 probably help you with this, but [ think that onty 5 borrower's disinterest. In other words, it put the
6 94 percent of the loans were real ¢state [oans. 1 just s0 6 borrowers in a bad situation at a very greal retum te
7 happens that all 94 percent of those real estate loans had 7 Household.
8 credil life insurance on them. B Q (ByMr Parlette) The unlicensed activity that you refer to
9 Q Right. Soit's 100 percent penetration of credit fife 9 on the next section, what is the sanction or penalty for
10 insurance in the real cstate loans? 10 conducting unlicensed business in the siate of Washington?
1t MR, DUNNE: Objection: leading and Il A Well, if we had assessed penalties or brought sanctions,
12 mischaracterizes the testimony. 12 could have been a loss of Household's main office license,
13 Q (By Mr. Parlette) Is that the way you read it? 13 loss of any or all of its branch licenses, restiwtion (o
14 MR. DUNNE: Also lack of foundation. 14 consumers from any profits made at those localions where
I3 MS. RATH: Bob, it looks like, for some reason. 15 1hey didn't hold a license, and penalties of $100 a day for
13 uur copy has it all bunched together here but their copies 16 every bit ol busiress that was done for every day out of
17 have it in tables and that might clanify some of the 17 there. So il you had a branch that did 100 Joans for
18 confusion about how 1o read the table. | don't know why it 18 100 days. it would be 160 times 100 times §00, a significant
19 looks so different. 19 amount of fines,
20 A Amtcven using the same table you are? 20 @ Wow. Does it give the consumer a right 1o rescind
21 Q (By Mr. Parletie) The numbers are the same. 1 wani to make | 21 teansactions that were unlicensed?
22 sure 'miinlerpreting il ripht. You got the same numbers | 22 MR. DUNNE: Objection; calls for a legal
23 don. 23 conclusion.
4 MR, DUNNE: You got me stumped. 24 A inmyopinien, no.
35 A Ddon't know. but 1 could tell vou that our conclusion was 25 Q (ByMr Parlene) That's between the two people, the two
Page 163 Page 163
¥ that there was 4 high level of penetraton. Whether thars 1 pastics W the transactron. W doesn't - doesn't enhance
2 100 percent or 94 pereent. | don't cate. You're right. 2 the consumer's right 10 rescind the transaction?
1 You're saelose (o 100 percent. i deesn't much matier, 3 A Theonly ares - the Truth in Lending is the only thing that
4 Bul | can's say whetlier this means - | understand what ] ives them a right o rescind and licensing has nothing to
3 you'te saving. Al did was take their table. extruct the 3 dor wath the Truth in Lending Act.
8 hemdings of T their table, and create a wahle here 6  Andihe seehon on Affilialed Business Arangemenis. what's
T Q i3y Mr. Parleue) Se this s all their information’! 7 the ssue there?
& A Irsaheir mfonvation, & A My -
9 Ohay And the next to last section of your repon. your 9 MR, DUNNE: Objection to fonm.
0 evpanded report, refers 10 Steering or Control Borrowers to 1¢ A My opimien 15 thin there were twa different entities ;
11 Muxtmize Revenue, What was your issuc here ar your finding? H operating out of Household's brick and monar locations:
12 A Letmetake 2 Jook here. [ think that if you look at the 12 Ifousehold Realty and Household Finance. Househeld Finance
13 second paragraph of that section. last sentence, that’s 13 was e only company thar was in cvidence as operating from
14 probubly the hest summary of all of these several 14 there As Hleamed latgr, there was @ third company
13 paragraphs. |t was apparent 1o us that Houschold was 13 operating vut of these Jocations known as Household Payroli
16 seching 10 pui the borrowers into a maximum amount of loan 16 Serviees, which is a separate corporation that carried all
17 they possibly couid. repardless of whether that was 4 17 the emplevees for the branches. But at the point in nime
18 heneficial transaction or beneficial lending scenario for 18 was imvestigatng this, | dida’t understand about Household
19 the borrowers. And they would - there was a variety of 19 Payrofl Services. That was explained to me later. and |
20 1cchmques that were used 10 get them there: layering on of 20 talk about that, three pages in here.
21 ealtis points. packing in eredit insurance. adding un second 21 Borrow ers would come 10 Househeld Finance. They walked
22 Inans. whatever it took 1o get more and more loan amount for 22 through the Trunt door of Houschold Finance, they saw people
23 These people. 23 weirine these polo shins thet referenced Housebold Finance,
24 43 in other words, doing something that wasn't necessarily in 24 There were husiness cards that said Househiold Finance,
23 the horrewer's interest, but certainly was in Houschold's 25 Nowhere wis there any wdentifier of Household Realy
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PARLETTE (CROSS)

Page 166 Page 168

| Corporation. | lpoked arcund when | went tnio the Household H consider il to be a criminal act.

2 office and didn't see anything. Nobody cver represented 2 Q Isec

3 themselves that way. In the phone book you don't find 3 A Whether its buried in mongage fraud or some ather kind of
4 Household Realty. Al of the hoiding out is by Houschold ] fraud. ir’s criminal.

5 Finance. 5 Q Werethe praciices vou were referring 10, were those

6 However, virtually every borrower who ever walked back L Household practices, even though you didn't use their name?
7 outof those offices with a first morigage had obtained it 7 MR. DUNNE: Objection.

8 from Household Realty Corporation. Household Realty 8 A [ wasn'l focusing my --

9 (orporation, Houschold Finance Corporation are affiliates of 9 MR, DUNNE: Objection to form.

10 each other and, to me, there's a very apparc! business 10 Go ahiead.

I arrangement between the two. When you walk in the door of 11 A lwasn't focusing my comments on Household, but of my

12 one company and walk back out with somebody else's loan, my 12 findings within this Household case | think could be

13 arpumenl was there was a referral of business from either 13 considered to risc 10 the level of what | was 1alking about.
14 Houschold to Household Realty or from Houschold Realty back i4 MR. DUNNE: I'm gomg 10 object: move to strike

15 1o Houschold Finance. 15 the lasi sentence as unresponsive 1o she question.

16 Q@ (By Mr. Partette) Did you find a connection between MBNA 16 Q (BvMr. Parlerre) Does the State have original crimenal

¥ and Househotd? 17 jurisdicnion’

18 A Well | found a connection. | remained somewhat confused 18 A Well it depends on what you mean when vou say “the State.”
19 about thal connection. but what | was told was that 19 Q Daes DFi have original jurisdiciion?
20 Household simply processed MBNA loans as sort of a contract 20 A Nao.
2} processor for them. [U's just interesting to me that all of 21 Q Dous the Stne oppose the temporary restraining order where
» the documentation that - where MBNA is identilied is exactly 22 this report was prohibited from being published last May or
23 the same documentation that you would find if Household had 23 June”
24 done the toan all themselves. 24 A Ne
25 @ Didyou find ary instances where MBNA credit cardhoiders 25 Q  Thal motion was heought by Houschold?

Page 167 Page 169

| were referred 1o Houschold for monpage financing? 1A Conect.

2 A Well ¥ believe that they were, but I'm not sure how | would 2 2 And s the commued prefiminary infunctien, we'll call s

3 document that, Borrowers held those credit cards and they 3 on 1he dacemenis that they produced. was that similarly -

q later ended up with a loan that was closed in the name of ) that mwtien brovglt by Houscheld?

3 MBNA but compleiely on llouschold decumentation und 1hen 5 A Yes

& immedialely sold te Houschold. 6 O lasihe Siate opposed that?

7 Did you find any business connection between Edgewaicr 7 A bdoatthiok we line -

8 Appraisals in the Beliingham arca and the Beflingham 8 At DUNNID Ghjection; tnck of foondation.

9 [Househald office” : 9 Go ahead

10 A Other than the fact they did appraisals. 10 A Wedon't have a specific position of apposition o it, |

11 Q Did they do them cxclusivety. do you know? It know we woubd like iT 10 go away. | know that Susan Carlson
12 A ldon't believe so. 12 has found hersell mere and more drug Into arguments where
13 Did you lind & business connection between the lFort Knos I3 she was stay e out of it befere, bul ot least DF1 doesn't

14 Bank and tlouschold. a business affiliation? 4 have a <tuted upposition 10 the injunction. It's been a

15 A Notunder - not as it would be defined under affiliated 5 hassle but we pust - whatever the coun wants 1o decida on

16 business wrrangemenls under RESPA. no 16 thal mattee

17 Q 1heard vou testify al the Seouate subeommittee hearing up in 17 Q  (Bs Mr Parleney The documents that | - jet me strike the

18 Mount Vemon about predatory lending in the siae of 18 guestion  1id vou ask Huousehold 1o produce all writien

19 Washington, and you deseribed practices which you censulered 19 memorandi or correspondence rom headguarters 1o branch
20 10 be fraudelent praclices and then went on 1o make ihe 20 offices penaning to equivalent interest rne practices und

2 statement Ihat you belicve it 1o be criminal fraud, Do you 21 thal sorl of thing”?

22 remember that staternent”? 22 A Youknow, my directives and subpoenas were from Jenuary or
23 A Yeah ocwally - if Isaid it that way, how | would - i'm 23 Februan of last vear. and | cant remember. b would have

24 net sure exactly the words | used. but my point was Itaud is 24 to actually pull those 1o tell vou what [ashed (or |

25 craminal. So 1o the extent that | find Traud anvwhere. | 25 ashed tor o burch of stfl
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PARLETTE {CROSS)
Page 170 Page 172
) 1 Q Now, the things that 1 presented 1o you today as Exhibit B 1 settlement nature, then | think there's some problems with
A2 to Melissa Rutland-Drury's deposition, would those, you 2 penting into those arcas. | think ii's appropriate (o ask
3 believe, have been covered by your request? 3 about orders. decrees, fudgments, but | think gerting into
4 MR. DUNNE: Objection; lack of foundation. 4 specifics of (he negotiations would be highly inappropriaie.
5 A Depending on what they are. | don’t know what that stuffl’ 5 Q (ByMr. Parlenc) Mr Cross, do you understand my question?
6 is. So if thaf's training materials, then definiiely, 6 A Yes.
7 but... 7 Q1 wanito know if there was 2 moratorium that Household
8 Q (ByMr. Parlette) And in Exhibit A from Melissa Rutland- g unilaterally put in place in the state of Washingion saying
9 Drury’s deposition where these memorandums or e-mails or 9 that they would not foreclose against any of their bormowers
10 whatever they are from Mr. O'Han and Mr. Craig Castalin, 10 pending the settlement negotiations. Are you aware of such
11 would they, do you believe, have been covered by your H a moratorium?
12 request? 12 MR. DUNNE: Objection: vague and ambiguous.
13 MR. DUNNE: He said he didn't know what the 13 A Idon know if there was a moratorivm. There was an
14 request said, 50 | think there's a clear lack of foundation. 14 understanding that such would be in place and that. 10 my
15 I don't know what the point is of asking this kind of 13 knowledee. is hor confidential becawse 1w's been 1abked
16 question. 16 about pretty openly by the Anomey Generai's Office.
17 A Tmicoking for my scction of the report 1o see if | state 17 Thesc's a letter 1o the effect of that a1 some point in
18 what | asked for. 1 apologize. I'tm gening a little tired 18 time. Whether it was an actual moraworium in place. | don
19 here. Do you have the section memorized? 19 know. That would be an actual event that would happen.
20 Q (ByMr. Parletie) No, | don't. 20 Q (By Mr. Parlette) Okay. Dao vou know if that undersianding
21 A lknow ] covered it somewhere in here. 21 was made pubtic 10 the borrowers?
22§ Whal you requested is covered in this written report? 22 A There was sonc borrowers, | believe, that were aware of
23 A Well, I know [ covered the subjcet inthe wrinen reportand | 23 1hat. There were barrowers calling i with problems and
24 the lack of response. So what [ didn't get - 21 issucs. and | believe that the AG's Oflice was communicating
25 Q see. 23 we've g0 this worked out for vou. There shouid be -
Page 171 Page 173
b A 1just don't know il 1 cavered i specilically ! ihought 1 there's a hold on this forectosure process. bt didn't cover
2 if | did, then { could answer your queshon Anuther thing 2 all loans and all situations. 1t was just sort of a
3 that 1 would do is simply ask Susan Carlson whether those 3 gencral, | don’t wam to say informal, but written
4 subpoenas are protected or nal. 4 understanding that --
3 Qs itpossible 10 get1a copy of your subpocena” 5 Q@ informwal but writien”?
6 A I iUs col protecied. 6 A Yeah. It was agood - we characterized it as a good-faith
7 @ Did you participate in the negouations where 1he Attorney 7 aesture while negotiations were going on. But clearty there
8 Generals and Houselold arrived at thew e1al consent degree 8 wais specific situations in which the company could continue
9 sertlernent? 9 16 protect its interests.
10 A |'msorry. Ask me that apain. 10 QDo you remember what those situations were?
1t Q Did you panticipate in the negotiations wilh the state IT A No. That was being handled by David Hewey at the AG's
12 Atiorney Generals and the mulusime Atorney Generals’ |2 Office. 1t was somewhat technical and legal. | just didn't
13 thing arrived at a consent decree with Household? 13 get involved in that area.
4 A Yes. 14 Q  Leime ask you this hypothetical question. 1f a borrower
13 Q Wasthere in place a moralorium. a unitateeal moratorivm. on | 135 was not made aware of this understanding that foreclesures
16 foreclosures or against foreclosures unnil September 3Mih of 16 would not proceed pending these negotiations, he thea would
17 this year? 17 not be aware that he shouldn't leave his home il he had
18 MR, DUNNE: I'm going 10 object, vague and 18 received a foreclosure notice, wou'ld he?
19 ambiguous. I'm having problems with this aren of 19 MR, DUNNE: Lack of foundation; calls for
20 questioning because | think vou're gething into confidential 20 speculation.
21 negoliations between the Department of Frnancial 21 A |cant geiin the borrower's head. And again, | couldn’t
22 Institutions. 22 tefl you whether on that specific borrower's transaction
23 MR. PARLETTE: Il lev Mr Crass decide thm, 23 that the company would, you keow, be able to go ahead and
24 MR DUNNE: Let me finish. please | vou're 24 foreclose, i'mi not sure that there was anything legally
23 gening inte confidential negotiations that are of a 23 preventing them from foreclosing on the property anyway
!
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PARLETTE (CROSS)

Pape |74

despite this, for lack of a better word, moratorium on
foreclosures.

Q (ByMr, Parlente) I'll ask the question in an inverse way.
If a borrower didn't know that there was such an
understanding and left his home, there would be no way he
could protect it agains! a foreclosure sale if one of the
conditions of that understanding was thai there not be an
abandonment,

MR. DUNNE: Objection; calls for speculation and

10 tack of foundation.

DB L B LR —

Page 176

not asked for a moratorinm on foreclosures pending the
distribution of funds?
A TThisstateor. .. 7
Q Right. This state,
3 A lcanonly answer from —
6 MR. DUNNE: Before you answer, I'm going o object
7 under Rule 403. | think this is an inappropriate line of
8 questioning. 'm going to object for lack of foundation
9 that you assume that this witness is the persen who mahes
10 those decisions and has personal knowiedge of what that

1 vou haven't done that.

2 MR. PARLETTE: Let me tell you why this s

3 relevant. Mr. Dunne.

4 MR DUNNE: i appreciale it.

5 MR, PARLETTE: This is televant because when |

G move for class certification and | move for an misncnion n

? prevent foreclosure activity pending this disirtbubon or

8 the resolution of our case. these people will be losing

o homes. And il seems 1o me incumbent upon Houschold and (he
10 Stale that if there's poing to be money paid e people that

11 could suve their homes, it ought 1o be pand or they ouyht 1o
12 know about it.

13 MR. DUNNE: If you want to ask lim aboal -

14 MR. PARLETTE: | justdid

13 MR, DUNNE: -- the procedures for pay ment,

16 procedures [or payment as opposed 1o negotistions and

17 settlement, | think that's a different subject. so | dont

18 have an objection.

i MR, PARLETTE: This is my depositon Mr Dunne.
20 | can ask the questions | wanl,

21 @ (By Mr. Parleng) Now. my question s, Mr -

22 MR. DUNNE: Theres a federal rule thin allows fos
23 vhjections in depositions,

24 MR PARLETTE: Righ.

25 € (By Mr Parlette) Do you kaow, Mr. Cross, why the State bas

11 A You'e just out of my bailiwick now, Bob. I'm sorry. 1t would be. And, again. | want 10 emphasize how disturbed |
12 Q (By Mr. Parleite) Pending the distribution of that 12 am by this line of questioning.
13 settlement money that the AG's obtained, can you explain to 13 MR. PARLETTE: You can be disturbed. I'm asking
14 me why the State did not suspend or ask that foreclosures be | 14 Mr, Cross a question.
15 suspended until the borrowers could get money to help pay 15 Q (By Mr. Parlente) You may answer the queslion.
16 their loans? 16 A Thisis going 1o be from my own. you Know.
17 MR, DUNNE: Objection to form and 1 think that 17 Q@ Fmasking if you have knowledge of why.
18 asks aboul the subject of confidential negotiations of a 18 A lwould say that my knowledge would be incomplere. that that
19 sertlement nature, which, as you know, are completely 19 area was driven by the AG's Office.
20 irrelevant under Rule 403, so 'm not sure where we're going | 20 @ Okay. Do you know when a determination of the distrbutien
21 with this. Bt I'm considering whether to ierminate the 21 formuia will be made by the state of Washingron?
2 depositicn and move for a protective order. 22 A When we will determine how much money people get. is thas
23 MR. PARLETTE: You're not gaing 10 terminale my 23 what y ou’re asking?
24 deposition. Y ou might object -- 4 0 Yes
25 MR. DUNNE: Yeah. Read the federal rules, 13ob, if 25 A We have 2 pucsstimaie at this point in time. We beliewe
Paze 175 Phge 177

1 somewhere around March. roughly.

2 Do you have any guesstimates about the amount that eould be
3 paid wo each vieum?

4 A No. We've run some scenarios, some possible scenanos. Bul

5 until we pet the extraction of infammation out of | louseheld.
[ which won't oceur untid Jansary 13th, and then from there
7 that information is actually delivered 16 an adnunistrator

8 and the data needs {0 be nassaged and reponed 10 us, so

9 i's puing o be mid-February | think realisncatly before

10 we're seeing enough numbers 1o start making 1hese hind of
11 detenninmions. Now. we've - you know, as we should do.
12 we're trying to look forward and are running some variows
i3 scenarios and so forth. but they're really atl over the map
14 Q Under that seitlement. people will have to 11le o clum

13 furm?

16 A Ne. Qur intent is 1o netify consumers as ko how much

17 settlement we believe Their share is. and thev need 10

18 respond with a release if they want to reeetve a chech for
19 that seitlement amount,
200 @ Isthis - canthis be characterszed as an opl-in setilemen?

28 A Yes:

22 Q  So people will actuaily have to do something in order w get
23 moneyv?

24 A Corrent

2500 Iwont e automatic. Do you have any iden - we've already
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PARLETTE (CROSS)

Page 118 Page 180
1 asked this question in a different way - how large a group 1 which carries a higher rate is advantapeous to the cusiomer?
2 the victims will be? 2 A Sure
3 MR. DUNNE: Objection; characterization. 3 @ Whenisthat? )
4 A Ourguesstimate is somewhere around 11,000 is the number, 4 A That would be in situations where, for example, someone has
5 1the population of consumers. Again, we'll know exacily here 3 to get a loan and rates have gone up. A divorce, for
6 in a few weeks. 6 example, or somebody really wants to add a bedroom on a home
7 Q (DyMr Parlenie) Does the State - does the State intend 10 7 or remodcl the kitchen of repair a roof. for example. but
8 buy back the security on the second mongages as provided in 8 rates have gone up in the meantime. But, you know, you
9 that settlement? 9 can't aliow rain Lo come in the house and you got 1o take
10 A Wedon' believe at this moment in time that that's the best 10 out a foan 10 repair the roof. You might end up being -
B expenditure of consumers' funds, but we're stifl It moving from a lower rate loan 10 a higher raie loan,
12 investigating that. We may end up looking on a case-by-case 12 © Now, when | asked that question. I'm talking about a lirst
I3 basis. The consent decree allows us to approach that on a 3 mongage. 1f you had to repair a roof. you could get a
14 casc-by-case basis. The dollar amounl trade-ofT. we're not 14 second moneage and accomplish 1he roof expenditure. could
15 convinced, makes the most sense for borrowers but that's not 15 vou net?
16 a finality yet. 16 A Maybe
17 Q Who sets the price for that? Household? Or is that 17 MR. DUNNE: Objection; specuiation.
18 negotiated? 18 Q (By Mr Parlene) Let me rephrase -
19 A 11 was pan of the consent decree. 19 MR. DUNNE: Excuse me. Bob, if | can finish my
20 3 Irsanesablished price, Mouschold knows how much ir's 20 objeetion. Calls for speculation and it's an invomplete
21 120ing 10 cost 10 release the sceurity? 214 hypothetical,
22 A Itsaprice per thousand. 21 Q (Bv Mr. Parlenie) I'm poing 1o rephrase that question. 1f
23 O Willthe victims be given the right 10 buy back the 23 a second mongage is available. is there ever a circumsiance
24 security? In other words, 1o get the mongage released off 24 where - or an occasion where refinancing a first morigage.
25 their second? 25 which carrics a lower rate. is advantageons to the borrower
Pave 179 Page IR}
i MR. DUNNE: Objection; characierization. 1 1o refinance inle o oew mortgage at a higher cate where o )
2 MR.PARLETTE: I'm asking a question. 2 seeond mortgage s available?
3 A The slates will determine whether the victins will be 3 A Depends on the charactenstics of the second mortgage.
4 aflowed 10 do that or not. S0 in some states, the answer 10 4 Albright Explan that answer, please,
3 that is yes and in s6me no, and we haven't determined that 5 A doent mean to do battle with you --
4] vel here, 0 Q None
7 Q (ByMr. Parlette) In your professional opinion, do vou 7 A - but there's so many potential scenarios.
8 think that the equivalent interest rate or effective 4 Q Right
0 interest rate sales pitch was a fair sales tactic (o use or 9 A Let's say, Tor examiple. you have a $10.000 first morigage
14 do you believe it was misleading? 10 lefi on your home and vou're currently paying an 8 percent
Il MR. DUNNE: Objection; vague and ambiguous, 1 interest ratle  Let's sav @ second mortlgage is running al
12 assumes the fact there was a single such pitch, so it 12 13 percent and vou need 10 borrow 530,000, Tumight be more
13 assumes facis not in evidence and leading, 13 advantapeous 1o take out a foan for $20.000 at 9 percent
14 A Qur position throughout has been that that was a deceptive id versug having vour first for $10.000 at 8 percent and a
15 practice. We documented that in the report. 13 second at $10.000 &t 13 percent. 11 depends.
16 Q [ByMr. Parlette) Based on your experience in private 16 Q Right
17 mdustry - | can’l remember your title when you were working | 17 A It gels very [act specific
18 for the bank. 18 Q Now.inacase where - in Houschold's case where they were
19 A It was a mortgage company. 19 refinancing first mortgages. vou reference this ot the end
200 QA morlgage company, 20 of your report, Sweering or Controlling Borrowers 10
21 A | was general manager and vice president. 21 Maximize Revenue. By refinancing 2 first mongage with o
22 @  When you were general manager and vice presudent of the 2 higher rate second - excuse me. with a higher rate first
3 moreage company, do you believe that there was - based on 23 muortgage. in the case - lel's use the Lunas. Jor example.
24 your experience there, is there ever an occasion where 24 They had o 7 3 Chase rhertgree and they were relinanced mo
25 refinancing a first morigage which has a lower rate with onc 15 a first morgage at Houschold at 12 and a hall pereem Was
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PARLETTE {CROSS)
Page 182 Page 184
\ 1 there any advantage whatsoever to them? 1 loans were E-Z Pay Plus biweekly plans?
- 2 MR DUNNE: Objection; incomplete hypothetical and 2 A Theydid provide us preliminary reporis on that. 1cant
3 lack of foundation. 3 remember the numbers now, Pan of the information they will
4 Go ahead. please. ] provide 10 us later on will identify specifically whether
5 A Inmy expersience. based on my experience both on the lending 5 that feature was part of the loan or not.
6 side and on the regulatory side, 1 did not find any of the 6 @ Did you ever find an instance in your review of the
7 situations that | analyzed in here, Lunas' or anybody 7 complaints where the borrower acwually did buy down an
8 cse’s. in which it appeared that the borrower is in a more 8 interest rate with the points?
9 benefieial position than they had been before. . 9 MR. DUNNE: Objection: vague and ambiguous.
10 G {By Mr. Parlene) Soin the 19 cases you examined. none of 10 A Working from Houschold's documentation, that's a somewhat
1i those people benefited by the refinance of the first 1 difficull determination 1o come 1o. Throughow the
12 mongage? 12 complaints that | analyzed for this report. [ felt that what
13 A Notevery ene of those went through. but of those that 13 1 had a1 my disposal 1o look at pointed more towards the
14 closed. | don't recall anybody where | saw a benefit to the - 14 fact thay the raie had not been bought down, the fact that
13 borrower in moving from where they had been 1o where they 15 it hadn't been bought down, but their documemation is quite
16 ended up 16 cumbersome. And these are gaps in information that make
17 Q@ Now.inthe AG sentement. Household claims that they will 17 making an absolule certain determination of that difficuh
18 provitde a net tangible benefit 10 the borrowers an all foan 18 at best,
19 ransactions (rom here on out. What's meant by the words 19 But my opinion. and | recount i throughout the repont,
20 "net [angible benefit™? . 20 is | can’t see where - | would find a rate a1 the carliest
21 A The loan has to show some - considering possible scenarios 21 point | could in the 1ransaction. Sometimes i would be on
22 thal a harrnwer could find themselves in. the loan has 1o n some decuments. sometimes on others. 1t was difficult to
23 show a tangihle benefit. So taking inte consideratzon the 23 findd. But | find o rate and | would find a disclosure of
24 borrower's needs, whin they had before. what they end up 24 discount peints that seem to corrclate 10 the peint in time
23 with now nel of all those various scenarios, the borrower 25 that rate appeared on i document and thenr at closing the
! Page 183 Page 183
| ends up benefiting from taking out this loan versus the 1 rade Trequently would be higher than the rate i was here,
2 comapany beneliing from the borrower tking oul the loan. 2 but al the same time. the points would have gone up 1o the
3 Q  Now, | helicve it was in early 2002 Houscheld adopted what 3 top. Su it would seem like the relationship wasn't working
4 they called best practices 4 as the malis savs il would work, where if poinis go up,
3 A lcan't remember the date, but that's about right. 3 rates should go down. 1 found oo many siteations where
6 Wasthere ane tangible benefit best prachee? 6 rates and points went up tegether,
7 MR DUNNE: Objection: lack of foundation. T Q (B3 Mr Parlene) 1see.
8 Q By Mr Parfetier Do yvou know? 8 A Thars why ever and over threughout this report | came to
9 A ldunt remember Lread v butl I can't remember now 9 the deternrinativen this it did net appear that these discount
10 Q  Ofthe loans that were splil loans, that is first and the 10 points were buyving anything down.
11 second or the spurus second. how - excuse me. What Il Q Justiakeasccond here. | think I'm done.
12 percent of all the real estate loans that Household made 12 Is the investigalion now concluded, your investigation
13 from your review were split loans? 13 of Household?
14 MR DUNNE: Talking about the §9 loans? 14 A Well. ves wixd no. The bulk of the investigation concluded
13 MR PARLETTE: We'll ask it two ways. 13 with the consent degree. 1 have complaims that consumers
16 Q (Bs Mr Parlene} Of the 19 loans. 16 have filed that fall outside of that window of January 1959
I7 A Ywould have 1o count, and Houschold repened that the ¥ 10 Seprember 2002 that | have an obligation 1o deal with.
18 experience for Washinglon State was approsimately 19 percent i8 S0 on a case-hy-case basis those complaints will be
19 of all the luans they made in Washimglon bad that first 19 investigated.  Rut Jor that window of time. January '99 1o
20 simultasesus second split loan seenario. 20 Septembier 30, 2002, yes. case closed on that except {or the
21 ©Q  Soallthe real estate loans they made dunng the ume 21 administration from this point {onvard of, you know, the
22 rerivd of vour examination, they reported to you 22 funds and the menktoring of compliance and so fonh,
23 approsimatels 19 percent of them -- 23 @ Andas understood your lestimony, you made no atlempt (o
24 A Correat 24 order in order ol imporiance the various patiens and
23 Q.- were splt” Did they report 1o you what percemt of their 25 practices that you ohserved?
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Page 186 Page 188

1 A Well- i that the greatest number of complains far and away, if you

2 MR. DUNNE: Objection; mischaracterizes the 2 combined Household and Beneficial together, that was the

3 1estitony, 3 largest single complaint arca of any of our licensees.

4 A 1think | what said was | fitst was trying 1o paint a 4  (By Mr. Parlenie) From your analysis that you've pul in

5 picture in the best order. } won't say that some things of 5 this writien repor1, what ciaims or complaints have a

6 more importance don't falt in front of other things. Bw 6 predominaling core of commen issues?

7 that wasn't the driving - | wasn't trying 1o do a 7 MR. DUNNE: I'm going to object. Vague and

8 hierarchical report in this report. g ambiguous: lack of foundation.

3 @ (By Mr. Parlene) Do yeu have an opinion. as we sit here 9 @ (ByMr. Parleite} Do vou undersiand the question?
10 10day, which one are the most egregious of the pancrns of 10 A No. Are you asking what commonality?
1 practices that you observed? 11 Q Well, you said that this - | think you described it asa

12 MR. DUNNE: Objection: vague and ambiguous. 12 cloud of confusion and misrepresentation. Would that be the
13 A 1 have opinions about the patterns and practices. and 13 common core of all the other specific complaints?
14 there's some that do nol concern me nearly as much as i4 MR. DUNNE: Are vou talking about the 19 or
13 others, There are some that don’t concern me much atall 15 something etse?
16 that concern some other states 1hat ended up in the consent 16 MR. PARLETFEE: Ofhis report here.
17 decree that Washingion didn't even care much about. so we do 17 A Yes. Aslrecall, every single complainant in here was
8 have optnions and degrees of concern. I'm not sure | coutd 18 confused about either whal they were supposed te get or what
19 raie a single one for you except for in the context of the 19 they did get1, And so thal would be common to all of them,
20 report where 11alk about this misrepresentation. confusion. 20 regardiess of whesher one consumer was taiking abow the
21 the number one  There was sort of tis overriding or this 2i monthly payment or another consumer was talking about the
22 drifting cloud throughout all the transactions, | guess 22 interest rate or anether was tatking about discoun points.
23 that concerns me more than anvthing because that - vou don'l 25 The common thread was they were confused and didn't
24 always find the same events happening. but vou do find this 24 undersiand and betieved something ether than what was
25 consistency ol misrepresentation and confusion and 25 reality.
Page I1R7 Paze 189

! misstecring and so forh. I Q  (ByMr. Parletie) And afier vou saw these numbers

2 Q {By Mr Parloe} Okay, Youtalked about the - in the 2 appearing. | think vour 1estimony was. you hnow, Houschold
3 matrix where you woull expect the more points thal are paid 3 had been one ol s aur better licensees. and afier a cenain

4 mterest rate goes down, but in Household's case they both 4 period of 1ime the numbers gol so large you stopped giving

5 secmed 1o vo up. Have yoeu ever found a situation here in 3 the benelit of 1he doubs 10 Household and stared

& the staie of Washington 1hat you've gxamined where that has 6 investignting the comsumer complaints

7 simifarly occurred with other fending instistions? 7 MR, DUNNE Objection: leading and asked and

R A We've done a couple of predatory lending investigations that 8 answered.

9 resulted in charges Hied i Washingnon swhere at times that 9 Q (By Mr Parlene} s that a lar swminarization of your -

10 charactersstic was there. G the genesis of this repon?

L Q  Have vou - when you were talking about the numbers of 11 A The numbers and the content of the complaints, not just the
12 complaints staning to nse in the late 1990s, on a relative 12 numbers alone, hur what the borrawers were saying as well.
13 scale was - in the state of Washington. was the Household 13 And it was the confusion element of what the borrowers were
14 experience the grealest number of complaints vou've ever 14 saviag that was the most importam?

$3 seen or the 1astest fisg in complaints? I3 MR, DUNNIE- Objection: Jeading

16 MR, DUNNE. Objection: vapue and ambipuous. 16 A No. The discount point range that we ideatified over and

17 Go ohead 17 over and over aginn was the mosl important.

18 A They consistently vied with Beneficial. There's only two 1% MR PARLLETTE. | bave no fusther quesiions

19 nther companies besides Household and Beneficial ihat 19 fRecessed a1 4,12 pm))

20 cven - mavhe Lwe or three others that even rank in the 20 {Reconvened at 4:18 p.m }

21 numbers of complaints that we found with Household and 21 EXAMINATION

22 Henelicial  Fhere's 2 period of time where Assoviates had & 22 BY MR DUNNE:

23 sipaificant number of complaints. There's a puriod of e 23 Q Myvaameis [an Donoe, | represent Household Finanee

24 where FAMCO had a significart number of complainis Oneor | 24 Corpormion and Berelicial Mongape Company in some

23 1w other companies drift into that categeny, but | believe 23 litigation tn whieh Mr. and Ms. Lina and some other
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DUNNE {(CROSS)
Page 190 Page 152
) } plaintilTs are suing them under the Consumer Protection Acl. i documents relating to Household at any time or relating to
2 You and | haven't met before, have we, Mr. Cross? 2 his clients or potential clients at any time?
3 A Only by iclephone. 3 A |believe that - matter of fact, Bob and | may have come
4 Q Have you met Mr. Parletie before? 4 inlo contact over the Luna complaint because | was
5 A Yes 5 conducting an investigation into the Luna complaint, and he
6 Q How many times have you met Mr. Parletie? 6 might have given me some stuff. 1 might have asked him for
7 A Two, I think before ioday. 7 some stuff or maybe [ asked Jeanie Luna for some stuff that
8 Q Two in-person meetings? 8 1 got from Beb, | don't really recall right now.
o A Yes 9 Q Allright. While we're on that subject, there's a statement
10 Q And have you had additiona] telephone conversations with 10 in your report that the Lunas paid $25,000 in discount
11 him? 1 points on two real estate loans that were originated in Jess
12 A Yes. 12 than a year, about $14,000 on - $13,000 or 314,000 on one
13 Q When's the first time that you actually had any 13 and a similar amount on 2 second. Do you remember that?
4 communication with Mr. Parlette? 14 A Sounds familiar. | could Jook at it and confirm that for
15 A Wild puess, February. March of 2002, | think. 15 you.
6 @ Okay. And did that have something to do wilh | lousehotd 16 Q¢ Do you remember having any discussions with Mr. Parlette
17 Finance? 17 about whether that was a true or false staternent?
18 A Yes 18 A No. Teil you, 1 didn't really 1alk to Bob. [ think Bob
19 Q Have all of vour communications with Mr Parlette had 19 found me 2 lintle frustrating possibty over the last year
20 semething 1o do with Household Finance? 20 because when I'm daing an investigation, | really dor't like
24 A Almost. [ think ene time we talked about a website he had 2} to talk to people very much. So I'm going to tell you that
22 set up for Kids 10 educaic themselves or something hie 22 probably threc of the four or five phone calls were almost
23 that. 23 nonsubstance, more of me just saying, I'm doing my thing,
24 Q About how many telephone calls would vou estimate that vou | 24 You're doing your thing. Let's kind of keep i that way.
25 and Mr. Parlente have shared? 25 Q What was the thing that Mr. Pariciie was calling and tatking
. ‘I
i Page |4 Page 193
1 A Actual phoae calls, four to five where we sctualh spoke and 1 10 you about”?
2 then just countless. you know, lcaving messages 2 A He had a case with Jeanie Lunp, | was aware of that. He
3 Q  Doyouknow wheiher Mr. Parlenc 1alked 10 other examimers 3 would want 10 know where the Slate's case was going, how
4 in the oifice here? 4 were we progressing, were there - you know, what were we
3 A No. [ don't know whether he has or net. 5 finding, who were the victims, things along those kines.
6 @ Okay 6 Q Aliright. You said you had three, four, five 1elephone
7 A lwould have been - inall likelibood. | would hasve boen 7 conversations with him?
8 told. but ne. 1 don't know, & A | would say four or five actual, where we aclually spoke.
5 Q  Whal was the frrst occasion of your first mecling wih 9 Q And the first one was February, March of this year?
10 Mr, Parienie? Did he call vou 1o sel that up? 10 A Asbest!can recall.
1t A lknowthat | - 'm preity sure | never called hom. bus | i1 Q  When was the last one?
17 think he found me. but | really can't recall 12 A Last week from my cell phone. | was going 10 a Matlboxes,
13 Okay. Wasihat a meeling here at these offices? 13 Etc. iremember sitting in the parking lot wanting 1o get
14 A Youmean face-lo-face? 14 in before they closed, and we were having a conversation,
15 0 Yes. 15 Q Talking abour this deposition?
I6 A TI'msorry. | thought you were talking by iclephone 16 A Yes-no. Talking about Melissa Rutland-Drury.
17 No 17 Q  Tell me what was said in that conversation, if you would.
18 A My hirst face-to-face meeting with him was a Senate 18 A | knowthat Bob had wanled (o take her deposition and that
19 subcommitiee hearing ot Mount Vemon. Washingtun 19 there was issues over her attorney being reluctant for her
20 Q@ 1ihought you mentioned 1hat you first met hum i March or 20 10 1estify. He was worried about further State
21 Aptit of this vear? 21 investigation and/or prosecution and was asking il our
22 A Telephone. sorry Just tike | said. | thoupht vou meani 22 depanment could sec its way to agreeing 1o resolve our
23 over the phone. 23 issues with Melissa through some sort of a consensual
24 G ldon't know il usked you this. Did vou and he cxchungy 24 agreement that would allow her 1o feel comfortable in poing
|25 any correspondence? Dhd he send veu any correspondence, any 25 ahead and testifving,
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DUNNE (CROSS)

Page 194 Page 196
1 Q And is there some investigation a1 this point going on wilh 1 Q Okay. Soanything else that you and he said abow Metissa
2 her? 2 that you haven't testified to?
3 A Boy,I'mnot currently conducting any work in that area but 3 A He was expressing (o me how much Melissa's testimomy would
4 1 think officially we would say that that matter is still 4 mean 10 him and his case and ultimately 1o Washingion
5 open. 5 consumers, being able 10 get additional testimony from her
6 Q Allright. And do you know how My, Parlene lcamed about 6 and liow valuable that would be. He was irying to sell me on
7 this? Did you convey some information aboui an 7 the idea of agreeing to do a consent order with her insiead
8 investigation of Ms. Rutland-Drury at some poipt? 8 of ronducting an investigation and filing charpes 10 remove
9 A | don't rernember saying anything 1o Bob, but | commumicated G her from the industry.
10 a bunch with David Hewey from the AG's Office aboul cur 10 Q You may not be able to answer this. but have you initiated
] obligations, our regulatory obligations, with Melissa and 1 charges or initimed an investigation. communicated that to
12 the need to seriousty consider following through on those 12 Ms. Rutland-Dirury?
13 and genting her owt of the industry, And it may be more 13 A | have never spoken with her before.
] likely - | can'y speak for David, but it might be more 14 Q llas the Depanment initisted comact with her about an
13 likely that David would have told Bob that that was the 135 investipation?
16 direction they were heading. [ den't remember aclually 16 A No. |talked 10 her husband or, I dow't know. somebody she
17 teliing Bob that. 1 lives with. She called me, left a message on my voice maif
18 Q Allright. So did you and he talk about this deposition -- 18 | called back. He znswered the phone. She was there in the
19 A Thisone? 19 house. and he velled at her and said [ was on the phone. and
20 Q- his week'! Yes, 20 she didn't get on the phone. so 1 didn’t know what she
21 A Youknow, the discussions about this deposition wert Ief? 21 wanted. 1said. "Well. tell her I'm retuening her phane
22 with his secretary, as | remember. We talked a while back 22 call.” Thart's the ciosest ['ve ever come 10 talking 1o her.
23 aboul doing a depaosition. and we set the date up and set 23 The departiment has not begun anything mere fermal than what
24 that up. That was, | don't know. | want to say three wecks 24 we've already done in regards to Melissa,
23 back or fuur weeks back. Fean't remernber now. 1 couldn 23 Q@ Okas, Whatisthar?
PPage 193 Page 197
H get ahald of him, and | necded to tell him about this - I A Tothe extent that she had involvement in any of The files
2 finding out that | had 10 g0 10 this meeting and that Susan 2 we reviewed. we reviewed those 1iles and 1 would use these
3 Carlsen had said i could not produce specific docurments for 3 facts i the case | did bring. but | don's have a case.
4 him, but | don't think 1 ever actually connecied with him. + Melissa-identified case. going on,
5 I think 1 had 10 leave messages through his secretary, 3 Q  Have you interviewed any individuals about her conducl” And
6 Q Howdid you receive service of this subpoena® 6 what I mean by “you,” | mean the Depaniment,
7 A Justappeared in my in box. When | came 1o work one T A Well uny Deparinient interviews would be conducied by me.,
B morning, it was in the in hox. 4 There's a mongage broker in Bellinpham - | want w say her
9 Q Didyou make some agreement with Mr. Parlette and the 9 name 15 Deborah Koch - who catled me one day and 1alked
10 plaintiffs abowt acceptance of service? 10 about @ transacuion sie had with a borrower she was trying
11 A No. Butl signed a document saying that | had accepted 11 10 refiniince away from Household, and | think that - it wis
12 service. 12 quite some months back now. but | think [ queried her a
13 @  Alirigh I3 little about wha Melissa was and what she did for thm
14 A My assumplion, it just came in the mail, but { don't apen 14 office and so forth “Fhe woman worked in the momgage
15 the mail here. 13 business up i Bellingham and scemed to hnow - she hnew some
16 Q I'mgoing to work backwards on these conversations. This 16 other Joan efficers from [ houschold 1hat had gone 10 2
17 one that you had last week, how long did that ast? 17 company calied Top Mongage. s0 | might have queried her a
18 A Fiveloten minutes. 18 little bt abowt Melissa.
19 Q Inaddition to the questions thal you exchanged about 19 Q Okay.
20 Melissa Rutland-Drury, what else did you 1alk ahout in that 20 A Other than that. | spoke with Tom Detclich and Kate Curtam
21 conversation? 21 a intle b about Melissa. Nobody at lower levels. |
22 A 1think we talked or he talked about how much - are you 22 think John Schummel. | want 1o say his name is, spohe a
23 saying - wait a minwte - in addition to Mclissa? 2 littde bit about ber when he came in here.
24 ) Y, 24 Q  SoMr. Pariette was trying 1o ask for the Department 1o
25 A lthink we only 1alked about Melissa. 23 consider his request 1o ke somc action that would aid ki
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DUNNE {CROSS)
Page 198 Page 200
) 1 in his cavil tirigation. s that right? ! stage process 10 the press conference, Chris Gregoire weni
- 2 A |think that would be the outcome of it, yes. He wanted her 2 in. did a 1ekephone hookup with Roy Cooper and Tom Miller,
3 wstimony. and her anomey was saying my ¢licnt is not 3 the other Aniorney Generals that were really involved in the
4 testifving as long as whatever she says can be used against 4 case directly around the negotiating \eam. When they did
5 her by the Siate, 3 their press release, the national press release, she hooked
6 Q Now. about three weeks ago you and Mr. Parletie 1alked about 6 vp with them. But mysclf and Paul Silver and Dave Hewey had
7 scheduling of this deposition, right? 7 arrived earlicr at the airport 1o be prepared. And we had
8 A Um-hmm 8 coffe with Bob, Jet's say, 43 minuies before the Washington
9 Q Other than basic scheduling matters, did you have any 9 press release while Chris Gregoire was doing her national
10 discussions of substance? i press release.
11 A Well, not what | would consider to be of substance, He 1old 1 Did you ask me what did we 1alk about?
12 me he was poing to ask me about this report and some about 12 Q Yes
13 complaints. He never posed any questions to me. He never 13 A Wegave Bob - we - they. | sat and lisiened.
14 prepped me in any way. Again, I've avoided, to & large 14 Q "They" being?
i3 extent, having conversalions with Bob. 15 A Paul Silver and Dave Hewey. Gave Bob a courtesy hatfl hour.
16 @ Okay. Whor's the next most recent 1ime that you remember 16 43-minuic advance heads up to what the agreement and
17 having a conversation with him? 17 principals contained and whal was going 1o be siated in the
18 A Priortothat? You mean going backwards? i8 press conference,
19 Q Going bachwards. And other than incidental nonsubsiantive 19 Q@ Alinght Did Mr. Parlente ask for anything at any time in
20 conversalions 20 that mecting”?
21 A tihink the lestiime prior to that that Bob and | hooked up 21 A Heashed the typical questions that evervbody has asked us.
22 were these, vou know, leaving a message. call me back kind 2? why so little. you know, why this. why that. You know. why
23 of things. Bul where we aciually hooked up was in person al 23 didn’t vou ask for this. that kind of thing.
24 Sea-Tac Airport, Well. that was the day. 1 was a press 4 G QOkav. Other than questions abow the terms of the release.
a3 release day follow ing the agreement in principal in October, 23 do vou remember him asking other questions?
¢ Page 199 Page 201
| and Bob was a1 both Sea-Tac - | think be was in Rellingham. I A Notihat ! recall.
2 [ can't remember for sure whether he weat 1o Beltingham, We 2 ) Didhe ash about whit impact the sclilement would have on
3 dig press releases at Sea-Fac and Bellingham. | went with 3 the higation that he was snvolved in?
4 the Attorney General, Chris Gregoire. 1o do these press 4 A ldon't remember bimoasking thal, [ Know that was a concern
3 releases | hnow that | saw him at Sea-Fac. | eant 5 of Pxave and Paul's.
6 1emember now who went o Bellingham., 6 Whydosou say tha?
7 Q  Mr. Parlette was there attendimg press releases at the sanie 7 A DBecuuse they lotd me it was thor concern, They, the AG's,
8 tme 1hat vou and Chrisline Gregoire were doing press H have a dilferent concern than DF] does, We're a regulatory
9 releases on the subject of this agreement with ouschold P agency | hehieved thin Bob was doing a good thing trying
10 is that nght” 10 10 help consumers. but 1 coudd reallv care less about his
11 A Him and a whale bunch of people. i case. Thats the honest truth, 1've got my regulatory
12 How dud it come Lo happen. 1o your knowledee. thit 12 mission § pursue € with 3 venpeance. I'm 10 percent
13 Mr Purlelie was there at both of these meetings? Did v 13 commilted to my mission. What he dots has nothing 10 do
14 mtorm ham of this? R withme 115 his case. 1've goi my case. | tried 10
13 A Ne | ddntinform him. Somcbody from the AG's (Hfwee 15 remain vers nonipteractive with him on bis case.
16 might have informed him. 16 The AG's 1abe a different approach. They have a
17 Q  What conversation -- 17 history of. at times. coupling with people whe are doing
18 A Butnwas also - we do - we notily. We put oul a peneral 1% class actton sints ar bringing them in. enveloping them
19 notilicatran, we will he showing up to da a press release al 19 within their actions . We discussed this un several
20 such and suth a jocation. 20 occasions, and b on several ocensions. | toid Dave and
21 £} Avcenher of these localions when you were doing 1hen, press 24 Paul, you guvs want e interact with Bob. that's your deal
22 conferences. did vou and Mr. Pailette have any discussions? 22 That's not what | doat 11 1 stav separate and apant. 1
23 A Yes 23 try to be the investigator and be separate. But | certainly
24 3 What did vou lalk about? 24 don't dictate what they do.
Ci 25 A Wenwnn the morning before the actual - there was s ino- 25 So 1 hnow that thes were concerned. They felt that he
7
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DUNNE (CROSS)

Page 202 Page 204
! had, 1 think. brought them 2 lot of information on their 1 A Early July. late June.
2 side of the case. ond he deserved an advance nolice of what 2 Q Than was after the date of vour expanded report?
3 was going io come down on this press conference moments 3 A Yes
4 fater. 4 Q Okay. Lei's talk - that was released on April 30ih. 1s
5 Q Wasthere any discussion about what role Bob Parletie might 3 that right? .
6 play with the press conference or the press release or the 6 A Youknow. it's dated as of April 30th. 11 wasn't shipped .
7 ability 10 speak 10 reporters at the same time? 7 until. | believe, May 14th or May 13th, Yes. We havea
B A 1know they - | saw him speaking with reporters, him and 8 cutaff date for things. and then we finalize them and send
9 Jeanic Luna. | didnt discuss with him what roie he might 9 therm. But the facis are considered o be as of April 30th
10 have there, The reporters have a tendency to talk to who 10 and [ want to - 1 just wani 10 qualify that if we said - you
1 they wani {o. il Just said meeting al the Senate subcommitiee. 1 want 1o
12 Q Okay. Did vou sit in any meetings with Mr. Parlene and 12 make sure vou're not using "meeting” differently than me,
13 Ms. Luna and Attorney General Gregoire? 13 I'm using "meeting” in the form af meet somebody. 1 was
14 A No 14 never alone with Bob at any point in time that evening. ner
15 Q Because I've seen photographs of Ms, Gregoire shaking hands | 15 did we discuss any el my investigation that evening.
16 with Ms. Luna Lhat day, Were vou present when those pholos 16 Q Allright
17 werc laken” 17 A Bu | did meet him there. He spoke on a panel, and 1 spoke
18 A Yeah | wasthere. There were photos being shot. 11 was @ 18 on a panel.
19 voom. | don’t know, five (imes the size of this room. It's 19 Q Did vou and he 1aik with other people present about anything
20 a press room at Sea-Tac, and there were several borrowers 20 of substance regarding Flouscheld?
21 there. Fhe Lunps. the Vaoghns, Georgia Sman. and there are 21 A No. ithink he maght have had some story that he wanted to
2 people fram the agencies, and there was a whole bunch of 22 tell. but 1 cenainly was very tight hpped about anything
23 press there and then some other sort of peeple that | don't 23 that | was up te. very tight lipped.
24 even know that were imteresied in one way or anolher. Yeah, 24 Q  Sohewas conveving information 1o you?
25 Chris Grepeire was i the room and even ouiside the roon. 23 A Attempring lo. Agmin. i - we inv 10 do our own
Page 243 Page 203
| it sorted of drilicd in and out of this 100m as the press ] investigation. And when we want information, we go and, you
2 was inlerview g people, and there were shots being taken 2 Lnow, show our badge and sel you down in a room and hand you
3 here and there. 3 a subpoena, i necessary, and ash you for information. We
4} Sodida mumber ol people whose complainis you revicwed gel 4 do z lol of these kinds of cases. and when people come out
5 advance nonice of thys seitlement and netice that there 3 of the woodwork and start wanting 10 1€]1 us things. we're
& would be a press confereace about the settlement and the 0 peneralls ~ sou know, we will come and ask you when we want
7 detinls of « you hnuw . sd Ms. Vauphn was there. Georgia 7 10 knnow somctinng. | don't think 1was rude 10 Bob but
8 Smart was there. How did the people find out? 8 that's kind of where |Fwas.
9 A The AG™s Office speaifically isvied Ms. Vaughn, She bad 9 Q@ Prior o the date that the Departnent released this report,
10 come and testitied a1 1he Senate subcommittive meeting at 10 hew many phone conversalions have vou had with Mr. Parletie?
B Mount Vemon. T dont - 1 can't speak for Dave and Popul. A Two, mavbe nwo.
12 but I don't beheve they would have told Ms. Vaughn whal was 12 (¢ Okav. inthose conversations. had he conveved informalion
13 eoing Lo be said. but just that this is a big deal. It 13 10 you about whal he believed Houschold's practices 1o be?
14 involved Houschuld and you ought to come en down - oA Yes.
13 Q Okav. 153 How long did those conversations fast?
16 A --andbehere |ihink Georgia Sman might have come with 16 A Mavbe, { don't know. 13, 20 minues.
17 Bob. just like - | don't 1ink Jeanie Luna came to Ses-Tac 17 @ Euach?
18 Mavbe she did | can’t remember now becagse we went 10 wo 18 A Something like that. seab  I'm goessing now. | can’t - 1
19 difterent locations, and 1 think Jeanie is from Bellingham. 14 could picture ane standing vp near my old desk. You know
20 s0 | don't remember if she came 10 Sea-Tac or net. 20 how you can remember something, standing instead of sitting
21 Q HNow.the power meeting you had with Mr_ Parlette, that was 21 in my chair. 1 remember - | remember why now. | had this
22 it a comateed hearing, lepislative commitice beanng. in 22 fite cabinel. and [ was tnang 10 pet over o the file
23 Mount Vermom® 3 cabinet 10 get somethung oul of i, probibly check something
24 A Right 24 that he was telling me. but that's all 1 remember.
25 What was the date af thm? 25 Q  Now.did he well vou - grve yvou information about Ms. Luna's
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DUNNE (CROSS)
Page 206 Page 208
) 1 complaint? 1 nine request items. 1L might be ten request iiems thal we
E 2 A Yes. 2 want from Household on each borrower. ft's information we
3 Q Anddid he give you more general information about what he 3 put inlo a matrix. We will assign points based on, for
4 beligved Household's practices ta be? For example, did he 4 example, whether a borrower paid under five discounts points
5 talk 10 you about people who were contaeting him and what 5 or over discount poims, they might pet one or two points of
6 they were saying aboul Household's practices? 6 harm assigned te them and 101al up their points and they'l]
7 A Yes. He would tell me some of that. You said gencral, and 7 get the pro rata share of the money 1hat way. That's our
] frequemtly he would kind of give me more speeific ) intent 10 assign the money.
9 information. not specifically general. 9 | cannot promise you thal we won't get all the
10 What sonis of specific information do you recall him giving 0 information from Household. go, my God, it's poing Lo lake
1l you? 11 us a year and a half 1o figure this thing oul. We're just
12 A |ialked 1o this borrower and they say this happened 10 12 going 1o wke the 11.000 borrowers and divide it into the
13 them. I've seen this documentation. 1don’t know, They 13 £21 million and evervone gets a check. We're not leaning
14 were 10ld this on this datc. This is what they caded up 14 that way, but [ jusi can'l promise vou that - it might be we
13 with, that kind of thirg. 13 could find curselves in a situation where it made more sense
16 Q This was in (he period between the time that you issued a 16 1o gel people money back. some money back, sooner than
17 subpoena to }lousehold and the time thar the report was 17 figure out exactly who deserves which piece of what money.
18 completed. Is that right? A couple of conversations? 18 @ Okay. Atthis poinl. you're working with nine separake
19 A TI'mnol sure whether 1he subpoena would have been before or 19 factors?
2 after. bt that window ol time. somewhere around there. 20 A It might be ten, nine or ea.
21 Q@ We've only goi ten minutes left, so let me touch on 21 @ Do those tic 1o practices that have been reported in the
2 something Mr. Parleite asked you about on these Attorney 22 expanded examination repost?
23 Generaf seitieanen procedures. Are you involved inthe lask 23 A They tic verv well buck 10 this report,
24 force that is working on - what did vou call them? - 24 Okav. So can you explain 1o me how they tie back?
25 seenanos for corpensation to Haousehold horrowers? 25 A Yes. Piggvback loans. what | call them here - I'm sorry.

! Page 207 Page 209
1 A In Washingtor Swate? 1 Spitt loans or simulianeous seconds, whatever, that's one of
2 Q  Yes. Justin Washington Siate. 2 the criteria we will measure. e amoent of discount points
3 A Well it's not really a tisk foree. I's myself. Dave 3 paid. whether we believe that a barrower was subject 10 the
4 Hewey. and Paul Silver continue o work out the detands. 4 ctfective interest rate or equialent inlerest rate sales
3 Q  Alsight Do you anticipate publishing any rule making or 3 pitch, whether a borrower pind a prepayment penahty or not,
6 15 1here just poing fo be some government decision aboul [} whether insurance was tinanced e the luan. There's one
7 what the allocation procedure will be? 7 more. Let me come back. | might remember.

8§ A Taking ahout the settlement? 8 Now. draw yoarsetf a line. and I'm going 10 give you
9 O Yeah Letme- Pmoalking about the seilement between 9 three factors that we call mitgating facters that wonld
1 Household and the state of Washington. {1} reduce the amount of money peeple hud coming back to them.
11 A Right. You mentioned rule making. To us. that's a specilic 3] That would be if any interest rate eeduction had been given
12 process. 12 1o 2 borrower by Household. and I'm not talking about a
13 Q Right. That's what I'm asking. 1 guess. let me ask vou 13 refinance, bint ke in the case of Georgia Sman where she
14 genesally. How is the stare of Washingion gaing 1o decide 14 was able 1o renegotiate with them and pet them to lower her
13 who o compensate and how to compensate them and how nruch to 13 loan.
16 compensale thenr”? 16 Q  Orin the case of Jeame Luna who pot a new Joan at
17 A Weintend 1o use whar we're calling a hanm's malrin. W b7 7 percent from Mouschold?
18 will extract - provided this all works. | lousehold is 18 A Ident know the specifics of that |7 that was a
19 siting on a mountain ol information. We're not exactly i9 refinance. no. it wouldn't be considered  1F i1 was simply
20 sure how the elecironic bites of 1heir informalion et mio 20 an interest rate reducnion of an existing lean. then 1
21 a uscable format for us. bur we're trving to sec the tulure 21 would be considered as a imtiganng factor. And Household
22 und develop 1ools thal we can use. 2 says they can produce this infornation for us - We won't
23 And our theony of the best wis to handle it is 1o 23 even know - we won't be able o e you if this amount of
24 develop a mutein. extract specific pieces of information Tue 24 points i5 assigned th feanve Lona. 1S poing o be
23 cach bomower. sl we have it narrowed dawn to. | ilunk. 25 horrower X.

p
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DUNNE (CROSS)
Page 210 Page 212
) 1 Q Okay, 1 A Well, | need know what you're asking.
L 2 A The second mitigating factor is whether any refunds have 2 Q Would you agree with me that harm is a subjective word?
3 been paid to any borrower, the dollar amouns of any refunds 3 1" restate it. Would you agree with me that harm = thas
4 for any reason whatsoever. 4 different people can come up with different ¢vajuations of
5 Q Okay. 3 harm for any piven borrower?
6 A The third mitigating factor would be whether any borrower 6 A Yes
7 ever has made a claim and been paid a benefit under any 7 Q And so you're not atiempting 1o make a perfect subjective
8 insurance plan they had. The theory there being that if 8 attempt 10 establish what that harm is. are you?
9 they had been assigned points of harm because insurance was 9 A That would be impossible.
10 financed into the loan and they ever got benefit from that 10 @ Okay. What you're trying to do is provide an objective
11 insurance, then we need to negate those. B} system that provides compensation to Household borrowers in
12 Q Okay. And how do - so you've gol what you've identificd as 12 relation to the kinds of harms that they sulfered. 15 that
13 five categories of practices? 13 a fair statement?
14 A There's another one there. LTV, loan Lo value, t4 A | believe that's a fair statement,
13 Q  Andihen you mentioned harm. Do you rate the harm off 15 Q@ Does the Department of Financial Institutions have a right
16 practices on a scale? 16 to recover directly or indirectly in fees or other funds
17 A Yes. We're really using a scale of one point versus 1wo 17 that Househeld is paying 1o the state of Washington?
18 points, Well, zero points, one point, and two points for 18 A 1don' undersiand your question.
19 cach borrower. 19 Well, have you focked at the consent judgment that was
20 QDo you wnal the number of points and that will have a 20 entered between Household and the state of Washington?
21 dollar vajue? 21 A We're etting, 1 believe. $606.000. 15 that your question?
32 A Iwill evemually have a dollar value. So let's say you 22 Q Ycah. My question is. does any perticn of that get
23 had twe berowers and one got five points and the other got 23 atlocated to the Department of Financial Institutions?
24 ien points. that would be a totai of 13 points. The 2 A Yes. ves
25 borrower that got five points would get 30 percent of the 25 @ What portion is that?
}
' Page 21 Page 213
1 distribution, The borrower that got the ten poinis would I A That hasn't been decided yet. We've decided to give, |
2 et 66 pereent of'the distribution. 2 believe. somewhere sround $10.000 or something Tke to the
3 Q [Isee. Soatthis stage it's the intent of the Anomes 3 Insurance Commissioner's Office 10 compensaie them for the
) General and the Departmem of Financial Institutions 1o 4 minor part of the investigation they did i sort of joining
5 ailtempt 1o tzilor payments 1o Household borrowers 10 the 3 in on this. And we will decide at a Jater point in time how
6 kinds ol violations or apparent violitions, 1 should sy, 6 inuch of the remaining amount pots 10 the AG's Office and how
7 that huve been identitied in your expanded examination 7 much goes 10 qur office. The prohlem is the AG is part of
g report? & the general fund. and we don't want thase monies to pet
9 A Thalis our goal. 9 swepl back inlo just the geacral $2 bitkon hele we have in
10 Q  And you believe, if vou're able 1o, that you will be ably 1o 10 the State budget. We wanl 10 make sure it pets used for
I tailor the actual paymenis or retmbursements to ome I consumer gutreach. finencial literacy. or whatever, There
12 reasonabic measure of harm? 12 will be a point in time where after the AG's have recouped
I3 A Toa-{want to make sure | understand your question | 13 their costs, probabiy the remainder of the moncy will come
4 dont think this is your questicn, but if your guestion is. 14 us to because we have a dedicnfed nonappropriated fund that
i3 will the dollars be - corretate dirzetly 1o their harm. no. 13 we can earmark those (unds to financanl Tiieracy outreach
16 But the harm itself will be a representation of how much of 16 and predalory lending cases ond that kind of thing.
17 those dollars they get. In other words, we feel they're 17 Q  What's your estimate of the smounts that vou're talking
g poing to get pennics on the dollar for how much they've been 18 about. financial outreach and literacy proprams?
19 harmed. We just want 1o make sure we give the right pennies 19 A Well you know. oy, we're under waty with 2 project right
20 to the right people, 20 now tht already has a price tag of $160.000 for just a
21 QDo you really know what the relationship is going 10 he 21 study 1o daermine who we should be targeting in financial
22 between the compensation and some notion ol harm? 22 fiteracy and vutreach. so . ..
23 A Right, T undersiand what you're asking. We helieve 23 Q  Arethese funds that are beang pad te the state of
24 that -- 24 Washington by Houschold?
123 Q  The question is. do vou know? 23 A Well.no. We're committed to thal research project. vou
J
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DUNNE (CROSS)
Page 214 Page 216
) I know, regardless of Household. 11's just that's what we're 1 an appearance of unfaimess of some agencies have 10 cul.
o 2 probably going to apply those funds to. 2 but others don't have 1o cut. So it's sort of forced on us
3 What's your best estinate of ke amount of funds that are 3 out of this son of picture of faimess.
4 going 10 come from Houschold to the Department of Financial 4 Q Okay
3 Institutions over this peried of this consent judement? 3 A Forunately it hasn't been significany.
6 A My best guess would be half of the roughly $600,000. 6 @ And have the culs here been less than tn other areas of 1he
7 Somewhere near $300,000. 1know the AG's have over $200.000 7 govermnment?
B in costs. We were 5030 pariners in that, so the split B A Yes
9 should be somewhere around 50/30. We might get more than 9 Q  Andis the success in Houschold one of the 1alking points
t0 $300.000. 10 that the Department has used to justify the staffing of alt
11 Q Now.is there any other ecanomic benefit 10 the Department 1 the people who work in enforcernent?
12 of Financial Instinations from this consent judgment? In 12 A No. Because the budgeting process had come 10 an end beforye
13 other words, going forward {rom a regulatory perspective, 13 this case made it 1o where il's going, but I can tel! you
14 does the consent judgment afTect your operations in any way 14 that if you looked a1 the minutes [rom the Senate
13 that changes the economics around here? 13 subcommittee hearings and so forth. this case has been
16 A Well, ina sense it does because had we not enrered the 16 talked among the lcgistature, quite a talk. but net asan
17 consent judgment, we probably would have been in  five-veur 17 inent 10 get us more,
i3 Jegal battle with Household that costs umpieen hundreds of 18 Q Inwhat sensc?
19 thousands of dollars. so that would have been a cost 10 us 19 A Pdon't think thay exact team has ever gone 1o Lhe
0 Also by - we betieve the hikely cuicome of 1that would be we 20 legislature and said. "Look what we dhd. We need more
21 would close Household down and/or foree it into bankrupies. 21 FTE's.™ The simple fact is this is a wonderful case that
22 Houschold's probably our second larpest ficensee We pel 22 we've done. It doesn't much matier, 601 limits our growih,
23 revenues from Houschold on an annual basis. 23 We have a variety of limiters on us that - vou knonw, it
24 Q How much are those revenues? 4 doesn’t matter how many dragons we shay. It doesn't
23 A bdon't remember. but - | don't remember. 18 in the tens Eh] necessarily mean --
. Y Page M3 Paec 217
! of thousaneds of dollars a vear. I Q  Well T undersiand you can grow, but ] imagine that when,
2 ¢ Okay. Onejast set of guestions here. The state of 2 vou know, your director goes 1o talk to the legislature
3 Washingion iy in o very serious budpel erisis right now, 3 about how many employces at least have 10 keep their jobs,
4 correct” 4 he 1alks about what a goed job the Department is doing. Am
3 A That's my understanding. 5 | mistahen about thar?
& Q  Andits ruc.isn'Uin that producing substantial revenues 6 A | would say that's correct, but we don't - first off, you
7 from a licensee such ns Household Finance Corporatiun 7 don't go to the legislaiure to talk about thal. It's been
8 enables the Department to justify its value 1o the siate of 8§ the governor that's been directing the cuts in FTES. |
4§ Washington and gives it something 0 talk about with the 9 don't believe anybody has gone up 1o argue, look at 1he pood
10 legislators when budpet ttme cormes around. Would vou agree 10 we've done. Don't cut us so much. The argument has been,
11 with thm? t were compietely self-funded. What good does it do 10 cut
12 A No Because thar's not how « we're a very unique agency 2 us? 1t doesa't matter if we wese, you know, paving roads or
13 We're a dedicated nenapproprialed funds. Our funds are noi 13 being librarians. Our budget doesn't affect your budget, so
14 available 1o balance the budget. 14 why do you want to take our people away (rom us?
15 Q Okay. Soyour funds are exciusively provided by Heensees? 15 (¢ Okay. I'll let you pet out of here and we'll get oul.
16 A Weessentially have 1o kill what we eat, so 1o speak. We're 16 A Thanks.
17 like a private corporation, We're self-funded. 17 MR. DUNNE: On the record, let me say two things.
18 Q And your employment status here, the number of employees s 1R First of all, we have discussed some documents that
1% stafl ind all 1hat. is completely outside of the realm of 19 tousehold believes should be considered confidenial, and
20 the budgeling process? 20 for simplicity sake, what § would do is designate this
21 A No. | wish il was., We, as aresult of being a State 21 depositian confidential, and Mr. Parlette and 1 can talk
22 apency, the povemor - the governar has a plan of culting 22 about what pertions of it are confidential and not
23 FTE's. full-time equivalent. or people oul of the general 23 confidential. Not every document in those exhibiis is
24 budget. We have been subjecled to some of these cuts. not 24 necessarily confidential. but our process of discussing
25 berause we can’t afford 10 have people, but because there's 25 those issues has been interrupted, 50 - because [ was
1
;
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CoLLOQUY
Page 218 Page 220
) 1 instructed | needed o file a motion for protective order. | CERTIFICATE
e 2 So for presem purposes, until counse] and | have a chance 2 I. REBECCA S. LINDAUER. a duly authorized Notary Public in
3 to work that out, 'm going 1o designate 1he transcript 3 and for the State of Washingion, residing at Lacey, do hereby
4 confidential with the idea we can discuss what portions are 4 certify: . -
5 and are not confidential. 3 Thal 1he foregomg depasition of CHARLES L. CROSS M1, was
6 MR. PARLETTE: Wait 2 minute. Keep talking. 6 taken before me and :fomplucd on the 19th day of December, 2002,
' . 7 and thereafier transcribed by me by means of computer-aided
7 MR. DUNNE: And } anm:apa}e that the courl.wlll B transcription; that the deposition is a full. true, and CDmp]c[c.
g enter some form of a general protective order regarding 9 1ranscript of the testimony of said whness;
9 confidential information and this designation would be 10 That the witness. before examinaion. was by me duly swam
10 within that general proteclive order, 11 1o 1estifv the wruth. the whole truth, and nothing but the ruth,
1! Secondly, we haven't finished today. [ have quite a 12 and that the witness reserved signature:
12 bil more to do with Mr, Cross in cross examination, and so 13 That 1 am not a relative, employee. atlorney. of counsel of
13 we're going 1o adjourn, but reschedule for a time in advance 14 any party 10 this action o5 refmive or employee of any such
14 of the class certification hearing. E3  atloracy o counsel, and | am not financially imterested in the
15 MR. PARLETTE: ! want to make it plain that I'm 13 said.aclion o the vutcome thereof:
16 not agreeing that this deposition is confidential. | do §7. “That] am herewith securcly scaling the deposition of
17 agree that Mr. Dunne and | have an ongoing dispute aboul :g El :::\r:{LLk;:S;_LT.,FCROSS IH. and prompuly mailing the samie 10 MR. ROBER'T
I8 Exhibit D, wh|fch was f’lgmuﬂ‘sIExhnblt Bto Mchssa 20 IN WITNESS HERTOF, | have hercunto sel my hand and affixed
19 Rutland-Drury's deposition. He's made a motion to have that 21 v olficial seal of this 2tel dan of Dece
; scal of this 2Est dor of December, 2002,
20 deemed to be protected, and | will honor his request thal 2 ’ ’
21 that document can be marked as confidential, but § do not 23
22 agree that the rest of this deposition is confidential.
23 MR. DUNNE: As | said, | think that's something 23 Rebeeea S Lmdauer. CSRALI-ND-AR.5I06NT
24 that counsel are required to work out under the local rufes. Nutary Pubhic in and for the Stne of
25 And to the extent that M. Cross estitied about 23 Whashington, residing a1 | acey
!
- Page 219
} confidential information and documents, that portion. in my
2 view, should be confidential.
3 MR. PARLETTE: Do you have a date, Dan, for that?
) You've gol seven days 1o get the protective order
5 established. Do you have a date vet?
6 MR, DUNNT: You filed a motion. Noted it for a
7 date. The date is the 3(hh.
8 MR.PARLETTE: Of December?
9 MR, DUNNE: Yes. The count decides 11 when it
10 peases the court 10 do so. So | don't know when your brief
1 is due, but i's sometime next week. Qur reply is due a
12 week from tomorrow,
13 MS. RATH: [ think 50,
4 MR DUNNE: | think that's all we need 10 do on
15 the record. |s that right?
16 MR, PARLETTE: As far as I'm concerned.
17 MR, DUINNE: Thank you.
18 (Adjourned a1 5:00 p.m.)
19 {Signature reserved)
20
21
22
23
24
75
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